Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
National

Meeting date:
. Assembly for
Thursday, 23 April 2015 Wales

Meeting time: 'i/ ~
09.00

For further information please contact:
Bethan Davies

Committee Clerk

0300 200 6565
SeneddFinance@Assembly.Wales

Agenda

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09:00)
2 Papers to note (09:00-09:05) (Pages 1 - 99)

3 Renting Homes (Wales) Bill: Evidence Session 1 (09:05-10:00) (Pages
100 -112)

Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty

Simon White, Bill Manager

Ceri Breeze, Deputy Director, Housing Policy

4 Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales: Evidence
Session 1 (10:00-11:30) (Pages 113 - 125)

Jon Rae, Director of Resources, Welsh Local Government Association

Gary Watkins, Revenue Services Manager, Cardiff Council

Nick Jones, Service Director for Operational Finance, Rhondda Cynon Taf County
Borough Council



5 Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales: Evidence
Session 2 (11:30-12:30) (Pages 126 - 138)

lestyn Davies, Senior Head of External Affairs (Devolved Nations), Federation of Small
Businesses

Janet Jones, Chair of Welsh Policy Unit, Federation of Small Businesses Wales

6 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business: (12:30)
ltem 7

7 Local Government (Wales) Bill: Consideration of Draft Report (12:30-
12:40) (Pages 139 - 183)



Agenda Item 2

Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Meeting date: Thursday, 19 March 2015 ,
National
Assembly for
Meeting time: 08.49 - 10.50 Wales

http://senedd.tv/en/2684

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: i//

Concise Minutes:

Assembly Members:

Jocelyn Davies AM (Chair)
Christine Chapman AM
Mike Hedges AM

Alun Ffred Jones AM

Ann Jones AM

Julie Morgan AM

Nick Ramsay AM

Witnhesses:

Leighton Andrews AM, The Minister for Public Services
Caroline Turner, Welsh Government

Sanjiv Vedi, Welsh Government

Kate Chamberlain, Healthcare Inspectorate Wales

Nicola Williams, Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health
Board

Committee Staff:

Bethan Davies (Clerk)

Leanne Hatcher (Second Clerk)
Tanwen Summers (Deputy Clerk)
Martin Jennings (Researcher)

Richard Bettley (Researcher)

Joanest Varney-Jackson (Legal Adviser)

Pack Page 1


http://senedd.tv/

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions
1.1 The Chair welcomed Members to the meeting.

1.2 Apologies were received from Peter Black AM.

2 Papers to note
2.1 The papers were noted.

2.1 The Committee agreed to write to the Minister for Finance and Government
Business requesting clarification on the figures around the protection offered to the
Local Government Budget.

3 Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales:

Evidence Session 10

3.1 The Committee took evidence from Kate Chamberlain, Healthcare Inspectorate
Wales and Nicola Williams, Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Local Health Board on
its inquiry into Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.

3.2 Nicola Williams agreed to provide a copy of the letter to patients outlining the
health boards complaints process and the recourse to the Public Services Ombudsman.

3.3 Kate Chamberlain agreed to provide figures on the independent healthcare
sector in Wales and the numbers of private units within NHS organisations.

4 Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales:

Evidence Session 11

4.1 The Committee took evidence from the Minister for Public Service, Caroline
Turner and Sanjiv Vedi, Welsh Government on its inquiry into Consideration of powers:
Public Services Ombudsman for Wale.

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business:
5.1 The motion was agreed.

6 Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales:

Discussion of evidence
6.1 The Committee considered the evidence received.

Pack Page 2



7 Forward Work Programme
7.1  Members agreed the work programme for the summer term. Members also
agreed to write to the Minister for Finance and Government Business with regard to

Business Rates.
8 Collection of devolved taxes: Approach to scrutiny

8.1 Members considered the approach to scrutiny for the Committee’s inquiry into
Collection of Devolved Taxes.

Pack Page 3



Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Meeting date: Wednesday, 25 March 2015 ,
National
Assembly for
Meeting time: 09.02 -12.10 Wales

http://senedd.tv/en/3155

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: i//

Concise Minutes:

Assembly Members:

Jocelyn Davies AM (Chair)
Peter Black AM

Christine Chapman AM
Mike Hedges AM

Alun Ffred Jones AM

Ann Jones AM

Julie Morgan AM

Nick Ramsay AM

Witnesses:

Georgina Haarhoff, Welsh Government

Sarah Tully, Welsh Government

Bethan Davies, Welsh Government

Leighton Andrews AM, The Minister for Public Services
Gareth Thomas, Welsh Government

Clare Smith, Welsh Government

Nick Bennett, Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Susan Hudson, Policy and Communication Manager
Katrin Shaw, Public Service Ombudsman for Wales Office

Committee Staff:

Bethan Davies (Clerk)
Leanne Hatcher (Second Clerk)
Tanwen Summers (Deputy Clerk)

Pack Page 4


http://senedd.tv/

Martin Jennings (Researcher)

Richard Bettley (Researcher)

Helen Jones (Researcher)

Joanest Varney-Jackson (Legal Adviser)

1 Factual briefing from Welsh Government on Landfill Tax
1.1 The Chair welcomed Members to the meeting.

1.2 The Committee received a factual briefing from the Welsh Government on
Landfill Tax.

1.3  Members requested the following additional information:
e a list of qualifying waste;
e a list of local authority landfill sites; and
e alist of the 191 registered Environmental and Distributive Environmental bodies
in Wales.

2 Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Bill: Initial

Consideration

2.1 The Committee considered the financial implications of the Regulation and
Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Bill and agreed to invite the Minister for Health and
Social Services in for further scrutiny.

3 Introductions, apologies and substitutions
3.1 There were no apologies.

5 Local Government (Wales) Bill: Evidence session 1
5.1 The Committee took evidence from the Minister for Public Services on the Local
Government (Wales) Bill.

5.2 The Minister agreed to make available to the Committee:

e any estimates of costs contained in the cases submitted to him by the six local
authorities for voluntary mergers;

e clarification on whether the Welsh Government has the power to merge pension
funds and if there are specific rules regarding local government pension funds;
and

e areport of the previous staff commission (possibly published in September
1996) in relation to previous mergers.

Pack Page 5



6 Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales:
Evidence Session 12

6.1 The Committee took evidence from the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales on
its inquiry.

8 Consideration of powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales: Key
Issues

8.1 The Committee considered the key issues of its inquiry into Consideration of
powers: Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.

7 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business:
7.1 The motion was agreed.

4 Papers to note
4.1 The papers were noted.

Pack Page 6



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee

A FIN(4)-07-15 PTN1
|/

-

WALES AUDIT OFFICE Wales Audit Office / Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
SWYDDFA ARCHWILIO CYMRU

24 Cathedral Road / Heo! y Gadeirlan

Cardiff / Caerdydd

CF119LJ

Tel / Ffon: 029 20 320500

Fax / Ffacs: 029 20 320600

Email / Ebost: wales@wao.gov.uk
www.wa0.gov.uk

Ms Jocelyn Davies AM
Chair, Finance Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA
Date: 25 March 2015
Our ref: MP/2299/fgh
Page: 10of1

INQUIRY INTO THE CONSIDERATION OF POWERS: PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a note to clarify a matter that | mentioned during the
Committee's evidence session on 11 March 2015.

In responding to Julie Morgan's question as to whether the Ombudsman’s recommendations are
sometimes ignored (para 104 of the transcript), | said that | had a recollection that, in most
sectors, the Ombudsman’s recommendations are not ignored (para 106). On reflection, that is, if
anything, an understatement, and | note that the Ombudsman says in his paper for the
Committee of 21 January 2015 that, thus far, no public service provider has refused to implement
a recommendation (para 2.49(f) of that paper). However, | also suggested that there was a
sector that tended to ignore recommendations, but | realised while speaking that | was thinking
somewhat at cross-purposes (para 108). What | had in mind was that the Local Government
Ombudsman (for England) found it necessary on a couple of occasions in 2014 to issue private
social care providers with adverse findings notices because of their failure to comply with
recommendations.

Following the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, since November 2014, the
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales has similar jurisdiction in relation to private social care
providers as the Local Government Ombudsman has in England. Clearly, it is rather early to
establish whether that sector is proving problematic in Wales, but | note that the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales has said in his paper for the Committee of 21 January 2015 that
compliance may be harder to secure with social care providers than with public bodies

(para 2.49(f) of that paper).

| hope that explanation is helpful, and | apologise for not being clear in the session.
.-‘.'H-F- b
Foel oo il

MARTIN PETERS
COMPLIANCE MANAGER

Direct Line: 029 2032 0526 E-mail: martin.peters@wao.gov.uk

Pack Page 7



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 PTN2

Direct line: 0300 062 8379
Email:Kathryn.chamberlain@wales.gsi.gov.uk

By email: Tanwen.Summers@cynulliad.cymru 10 April 2015

Dear Tanwen,

Following my Committee appearance on 19 March 2015, | agreed to provide further information on
the number of independent healthcare providers in Wales and on the numbers of private units
within NHS organisations.

Independent Healthcare Providers

A table detailing independent healthcare providers registered with Healthcare Inspectorate Wales
as at 31 March 2015 is attached at Annex 1.

Private Patient Units
There is currently only one private patient unit in operation in Wales. The Bridgend Clinic

(www.bridgendclinic.co.uk) is located within the Princess of Wales Hospital grounds and is
operated by Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board.

The Bridgend Clinic comprises nine beds and an out-patient suite containing five consultation
rooms. It offers consultation and procedures for a range of specialist areas.

The Bridgend Clinic (PPU) does not need to register with HIW since it is owned and operated by
the Health Board. We understand that it is also used as an overflow for NHS patients when
needed.

For the purposes of complaint processes and the role of HIW, the Bridgend Clinic is treated as an
NHS site and it is HIW understanding that if a complainant were not happy with the Health Board’s
response to their complaint they would have access to Public Service Ombudsman for Wales. If
HIW were to receive a complaint relating to care in the Bridgend Clinic we would direct the
complainant to the Health Board complaint processes in the first instance and we have previously
done so.

Hywel Dda University Health Board confirmed during our research that 6 beds are allocated to
private patients in Glangwili General Hospital, Carmarthen. But these do not form a unit and may
also be used by NHS patients as required. All other Health Boards and Trusts confirmed that
currently, they do not operate PPU’s.

Yours sincerely

DR KATE CHAMBERLAIN
Chief Executive

SICRHAU

GWELLIANT

TRWY

AROLYGU ANNIBYNNOL
A GWRTHRYCHOL

DRIVING
IMPROVEMENT
THR

UGH
INDEPBRKPageS

OBJECTIVE REVIEW

Welsh Government ® Llywodraeth Cymru
Rhydycar Business Park ® Parc Busnes Rhydycar
Merthyr Tydfil ® Merthyr Tudful

CF48 1UZ

Tel: 0300 062 8163

Fax: 0300 062 8387

www. hiw.org.uk


mailto:Tanwen.Summers@cynulliad.cymru
http://www.bridgendclinic.co.uk/

ANNEX 1

Independent Healthcare Providers in Wales (excluding private dentists)

Setting Type Number
Mental health/ learning disability hospitals 21
Hospitals (non-mental health) 26
Clinics 12
Medical Agencies 1
Laser/ IPL Services 72

Pack Page 9



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 PTN3

Pack Page 11



Pack Page 12



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 PTN4

Y Pwyllgor lechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol
Health and Social Care Committee

Jocelyn Davies AM
Chair of the Finance Committee

2 April 2015

Dear Jocelyn,

Further to my letter of 10 December 2014, | am writing to provide an update
on work undertaken by the Health and Social Care Committee in relation to
health service reform following the recommendation made by your Committee

in its report on the Welsh Government’s Draft Budget 2015-16.

| wrote to the Minister for Health and Social Services on 10 December 2014 to
seek clarification about whether the additional funding for 2014-15 and
2015-16 would be used to maintain current service levels and address
anticipated deficits in health board and trust finances, or to implement new

and more innovative models of service delivery.
In his response of 3 February 2015 (copy enclosed), the Minister states that:

“the additional funds announced in the draft budget will be used,
alongside the totality of the healthcare budget to continue to deliver
the high quality and safe services our patients expect while at the
same time ensuring the whole budget is used in a way which
contributes to reshaping and reforming the way we deliver our health

services to ensure we are on a more sustainable footing.”

The Minister notes that health boards and trusts are expected to outline the
reforms and changes that they are intending to make in their three-year

Bae Caerdydd

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

Ffon / Tel: 0300 200 6354

E-b Email: Seneddlechyd@Cynulliad.Cymru/

PaCk Page ?fy SeneddHealth@Assembly.Wales
Trydar / Twitter: @seneddiechyd / @seneddhealth
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh



mailto:SeneddIechyd@Cynulliad.Cymru
mailto:SeneddHealth@Assembly.Wales

integrated plans. He states that these plans must clearly demonstrate how the
reforms will contribute to meeting policy objectives and ensure the delivery of
sustainable services in order to receive Welsh Government approval. Refreshed

guidance to this effect was issued on 31 October 2014,

In written evidence provided to inform the Committee’s general and financial

scrutiny of the Minister and the Deputy Minister for Health on 19 March 2015,

the Minister indicated that the draft three-year integrated plans for 2015-16
to 2017-18 were submitted on 30 January. The plans are currently
undergoing an assessment and challenge process, and the Minister noted that
he intends to make an announcement on the approved plans and the next

steps by the end of April 2015.

The Committee will be holding a further general and financial scrutiny session
with the Minister and Deputy Minister on 17 June 2015, which will focus
primarily on financial scrutiny. The Ministers’ evidence paper and transcript of
that session may provide further details in this area, and you may wish to

draw them to your Committee’s attention in due course.

Yours sincerely,

David Rees AM
Chair, Health and Social Care Committee

Enclosures: Correspondence from the Minister for Health and Social Services,
3 February 2015

Pack Page 14


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s37704/HSC4-09-15%20Paper%201.html?CT=2
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s38249/19%20March%202015%20-%20Draft.html?CT=2

Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Liywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref : SF/MD/312/15

David Rees AM

Chair of the Health and Social Care Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

’:D. < D | abé,.' 3 February 2015

Health finances and reform

| refer to your letter of 10th December in which you ask for further information to help inform your
decision on whether or not to undertake work on health reform before the end of this Assembly. To
help inform your Committee’s consideration of the Finance Committee’s recommendations you have
asked for further information as outlined below.

Current funding

The independent report published by the Nuffield Trust in June 2014 clearly set out the future
financial challenges facing the NHS. This report provided the main supporting evidence for the
additional funding to be provided to the NHS. One of the main conclusions from the report was that
the NHS in Wales is affordable in the future if it receives a share of national income and continues to
deliver the productivity and efficiency gains it has in the past. These productivity and efficiency
actions will continue, with further potential efficiencies coming from centralising highly-specialised
services, providing more care in communities closer to people’s homes, preventing people from
being admitted to hospital for routine treatment, further increasing the integration with social services
and pursing a prudent healthcare agenda across all services we deliver.

Consequently the additional funds announced in the draft budget will be used, alongside the totality
of the healthcare budget to continue to deliver the high quality and safe services our patients expect
while at the same time ensuring the whole budget is used in a way which contributes to reshaping
and reforming the way we deliver our health services to ensure we are on a more sustainable
footing.

The refreshed planning guidance, which was issued on 31 October 2014, clearly outlines our
expectations in terms of what changes we expect to see. The extent of the reforms and changes
NHS organisations are planning to make will be evident within their three-year integrated plans to be
submitted by 30" January 2015. In order to obtain Welsh Government approval they will need to

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Liinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchPa@R%Page 15 Printed on 100% recycled paper



clearly demonstrate how such reforms will contribute to meeting the policy objectives and enable the
continued delivery of sustainable services.

All NHS organisations are required to submit service and workforce plans in line with the new
planning guidance and requirements. Whilst some organisations were unable to satisfactorily
complete three-year balanced plans in accordance with the requirements, they must ensure they at
least submit robust board-approved plans on a one-year basis.

It is important that organisations continue to be held accountable to deliver against the original
planning commitments their boards approved. Consequently the additional £200m has been
allocated in accordance with the original resource requirements outlined within their plans.

A proportion of the £200m is needed to cover the cost of the pay award, which will be distributed
separately. The remaining £175 m has been allocated as follows:

Organisation Additional Allocation of
£m

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University HB 26.100

Aneurin Bevan HB 26.700

Betsi Cadwaladr University HB 35.000

Cardiff and Vale University HB 15.500

Cwm Taf HB 8.000

Hywel Dda HB 38.700

Powys HB 25.000

Total 175.000

| have previously informed the committee that additional allocations in 2015-16 would be based on
an updated resource allocation formula. The £200m allocated in 2014-15 will need to be put into the
baselines of NHS organisations on this basis.

As part of the 2015-16, health board revenue aliocation letter, issued in December 2014 an
additional £200 m was allocated as follows:

Direct Needs Additional
Target Share - | Allocations - 2014
December
2014
% £m

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University 17.908% 35.815
Aneurin Bevan 19.132% 38.264
Betsi Cadwaladr University 21.257% 42.515
Cardiff and Vale University 14.395% 28.789
Cwm Taf 11.112% 22.225
Hywel Dda 12.128% 24.255
Powys 4.069% 8.137
Total / Average 100.000% 200.000

Pack Page 16



The receipt of NHS organisations integrated medium term service plans before the
beginning of next financial year will provide the further evidence required to inform the
distribution of any additional allocations that may be made from the small DHSS
contingency fund. This will support the additional financial flexibility which may be requested
and provided under the new regime introduced following the NHS Wales (Finance) ACT
2014.

As detailed in the note | sent to you on the 28 January, | issued a written statement to all Assembly
members on that day. The statement outlined how the additional funding from the Welsh
Government to the NHS would be invested.

The NHS Planning Framework issued 31 October 2014 included the following Plan Approval
timeline.

Action Timescale WG | NHS
NHS Boards approve ‘Final Draft’ version of IMTP January 2015 v
NHS organisations submit the ‘Final Draft’ Board- 31%' January 2015 v
approved plans to WG

WG scrutiny process February — March 2015 v

Boards respond to feedback from scrutiny process Prior to 31° March 2015 v
and amend Plans accordingly. Boards then approve

final versions

Future funding and long-term sustainability

pozt

As referred to above, the additional funding will enable the NHS to continue to deliver the services
and positive outcomes our patients expect, whilst at the same time reshaping and reforming our
services. The required delivery outcomes and the actions necessary to delivery these are/will be
clearly set out in the NHS organisation’s three-year integrated medium term plans.

We have a number of vehicles through which we monitor and oversee the performance of NHS
organisations to ensure they are delivering against expectations and remain on track to deliver
against their approved service plans.

These include:

* Monthly chief executive meetings where delivery and financial performance is
scrutinised.

e Joint Executive Team meetings (JET) are held every six months with each health
board and NHS trust and are attended by members of the executive director team

Pack Page 17




and the chief executive and the executive team of the individual health board or NHS
Trust.

e The integrated delivery board (IDB) is held monthly and chaired by the delivery
programme director or deputy chief executive of NHS Wales. This meeting monitors
the progress of health boards and NHS trusts’ performance against the delivery and
outcome framework and their integrated medium term plans.

e The quality and safety assurance group is held monthly and chaired by the deputy
CMO. This meeting monitors the progress of health board / NHS trust performance
against WG quality and safety delivery requirements.

e Quality and delivery meetings are held monthly, although they can be less frequent
when organisations are considered to be delivering on performance and quality.

o Detailed submission of monthly financial monitoring returns. Where the financial
performance is reviewed in detail and explanations sought for any adverse variances
from plan.

In addition we also have escalation and intervention arrangements developed in agreement with
HIW and the WAO, where information on the performance and progress of NHS organisations is
shared.

pases

One of the main ways in which we will examine whether services are being reformed is through the
medium term plans. The assessment of whether services are being reformed will be undertaken
through the formal review, scrutiny and approval of the integrated medium term plans, with
performance and delivery of those service reforms managed through the main performance
management arrangements detailed above.

The levels of funding required for the health service beyond 2015-16 is clearly a matter for Welsh
Government to consider in context of the settlement from the UK Government. The Nuffield Trust
report “A Decade of Austerity in Wales?” published in June 2014 is a key independent assessment
of the funding requirements and challenges.

Q}:ﬂ’ oo hs,
[\ ke

Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Pack Page 18



—

N

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 PTN5

. A list of Qualifying Waste

This is included in Appendix 1 of the Landfill Disposals Tax consultation
document. | have attached the English and Welsh versions.
. A list of Local Authority Landfill Sites

There are 2 Local Authorities that have and operate a landfill site. These
are:

Cardiff County Council - Lamby Way, operated by Cardiff County Council
Newport City Council - Docks Way Disposal Site, operated by Newport City
Council

However, there are Local Authorities that have landfill sites that are operated
by another body. WLGA and NRW do not have a readily available and up to
date list of which local authorities are involved in such arrangements and
each individual authority would need to be contacted to confirm the current
position.

. Alist of 191 Environmental Bodies

These are all provided on the Landfill Communities Fund regulator’s website,
Entrust. A link is provided below
http://www.entrust.org.uk/environmental-bodies/eb-search/

Pack Page 22



Number: WG24170

LIywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

WWW.cymru.gov.uk

Welsh Government

Consultation Document

Landfill Disposals Tax

Date of issue: 24 February 2015
Action required: Responses by 19 May 2015

Pack Page 23




Overview

This consultation seeks views on proposals for
Landfill Disposals Tax.

How to respond

Responses to this consultation should be
submitted to arrive by 19 May 2015 at

the latest. Responses can be submitted either:
electronically via the online form:
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/finance/landfill-
disposals-tax/?lang=en

E-mailed to:
FinancialReformMailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk

(please enter ‘Landfill Disposals Tax" in the
subject matter box).

Or, posted to:

Tax Policy and Legislation Division
2nd Floor East

Welsh Government

Cathays Park

Cardiff, CF10 3NQ

Further information and related
documents

Large print, Braille and alternate language
versions of this document are available on
request.

The consultation documents can be accessed
from the Welsh Government’s website at:
www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

The consultation on a Land Transaction Tax
can be accessed from the Welsh Government’s
website at: www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

The consultation and analysis of responses on
the Collection and Management of Devolved
Taxes White Paper can be accessed from the
Welsh Government’s website at:
www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

Details of the Commission on Devolution in
Wales (Silk Commission) first report, the UK
Government’s response to the first report and
the Wales Bill can be accessed from the Welsh
Government’s website at:
http://wales.gov.uk/funding

financereform/?lang=en

OGL

© Crown Copyright 2015

Contact details

For further information:

Tax Policy and Legislation Division

2nd Floor East

Welsh Government

Cathays Park

Cardiff, CF10 3NQ

E-mail:
FinancialReformMailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Data protection

How the views and information you give us
will be used

Any response you send us will be seen in full by
Welsh Government staff dealing with the issues
which this consultation is about. It may also be
seen by other Welsh Government staff to help
them plan future consultations.

The Welsh Government intends to publish a
summary of the responses to this document.
We may also publish responses in full. Normally,
the name and address (or part of the address)
of the person or organisation who sent the
response are published with the response. This
helps to show that the consultation was carried
out properly. If you do not want your name or
address published, please tell us this in writing
when you send your response. We will then
blank them out.

Names or addresses we blank out might still

get published later, though we do not think

this would happen very often. The Freedom of
Information Act 2000 and the Environmental
Information Regulations 2004 allow the public
to ask to see information held by many public
bodies, including the Welsh Government.

This includes information which has not been
published. However, the law also allows us to
withhold information in some circumstances.

If anyone asks to see information we have
withheld, we will have to decide whether to
release it or not. If someone has asked for their
name and address not to be published, that is
an important fact we would take into account.
However, there might sometimes be important
reasons why we would have to reveal someone’s
name and address, even though they have asked
for them not to be published. We would get in
touch with the person and ask their views before
we finally decided to reveal the information.

Pack Page 24


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/finance/landfill-disposals-tax/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/finance/landfill-disposals-tax/?lang=en
http://www.wales.gov.uk/consultations
http://www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

Landfill Disposals Tax

Content

Ministerial Foreword

Page
Chapter 1: Introduction and Policy Background 4
Chapter 2: Tax Rates and Taxable Disposals 14
Chapter 3: Compliance and Enforcement 24
Chapter 4: Administration 32
Chapter 5: Community Wellbeing 38

Appendix 1: Summary of the Landfill Tax (Qualifying Material) Order
2011

Appendix 2: Consultation response form, including summary of
consultation questions

Appendix 3: Glossary of terms

Appendix 4: Initial Regulatory Impact Assessment

1
Pack Page 25



Landfill Disposals Tax

Ministerial Foreword

The passage of the Wales Act 2014 means that the
way Welsh public services are funded will be
changing over the next few years. One of the most
important developments is that the National
Assembly has been given new powers to develop
its own devolved taxes, beginning with
replacements for the UK Government's Landfill Tax
and Stamp Duty Land Tax. This means that for the
first time in almost 800 years we are able to design
and deliver taxes that suit the particular
circumstances of Wales.

The Welsh taxes are due to be introduced from April 2018, and in the meantime
there is much to prepare. Underlying all the Welsh Government's initial development
work have been my four tax principles: | am seeking to introduce taxes which are fair
to the businesses and individuals who pay them; which are simple, with clear rules
which minimise compliance and administration costs; which provide stability and
certainty for taxpayers; and which support growth and jobs, which will in turn help to
tackle poverty.

This consultation on a Landfill Disposals Tax is the last of three that | am issuing to
gain your views on the new powers. The existing Landfill Tax is a significant driver
of environmental behaviour, encouraging greater prevention, re-use, recycling and
recovery of waste. Its devolution therefore provides us with a useful additional lever
to support Welsh Government policies, including the pursuit of our ambitious goal of
zero waste.

Through this consultation, | am keen to identify opportunities to address aspects of
the existing tax which may be confusing or cause uncertainties, and | wish to
consider whether and how a proportion of the tax revenue might be used to enhance
community wellbeing. | am also seeking to modernise the administration of the tax,
enabling it to operate more efficiently, minimising the burdens on business.
However, | am not looking to introduce changes where they are not warranted.
Indeed, | recognise that there may be areas where it will be preferable to maintain
consistency with England and Scotland.

An essential aspect of the tax development work covers compliance. This means | want
to ensure that all those who have waste to dispose of comply with the tax fully and
properly. Tax avoiders and evaders will be treated equitably in Wales and challenged
robustly, regardless of circumstances — seeking to avoid payment is simply
unacceptable. The consultation therefore asks for your views on how we can encourage
compliance, and on the steps we should take in response to non-compliance.

2
Pack Page 26



Landfill Disposals Tax

Landfill Disposals Tax will affect a broad range of interests - businesses, regulators,
communities and the Third Sector. | am seeking to consider the fullest range of options
through this consultation, so | encourage you to share your ideas on how we can design
this tax so that it works well for Wales. | look forward to reading your proposals.

Jane Hutt
Minister for Finance and Government Business
February 2015

3
Pack Page 27



Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 1: Introduction and Policy Background

Devolution of tax powers

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

In November 2012 the Commission on Devolution in Wales (the Silk
Commission), published its first report on the financial and constitutional
arrangements in Wales. The Welsh Government welcomed the report and
subsequently the UK Government set out a package of tax and borrowing
powers for Wales.

The Wales Act 2014 passed recently by Parliament sets out these new fiscal
powers for Wales including the devolution of Landfill Tax, Stamp Duty Land Tax
and an element of Income Tax subject to a referendum. The Wales Bill:
Financial Empowerment and Accountability Command Paper sets out the UK
Government’s intention that Landfill Tax and Stamp Duty Land Tax will cease to
apply in Wales from April 2018.

In preparation, last autumn the Welsh Government published a consultation on
the collection and management arrangements for devolved taxes' and this
summer it intends to bring forward an Assembly Bill setting out its proposals.
This will provide a clear and strong tax governance framework, starting with the
establishment of the Welsh Revenue Authority/Awdurdod Cyllid Cymru. The
Authority will have the responsibility for tax collection and management of
Welsh devolved taxes.

The operational priorities and processes of a tax collection and management
system can only be understood, and indeed be developed, with some clarity
about the taxes that they are seeking to collect. This consultation therefore
seeks views on the development of a Landfill Disposals Tax. Alongside this, the
Welsh Government is also currently consulting on proposals for a Land
Transaction Tax to replace Stamp Duty Land Tax in Wales.? The responses to
these consultations will inform the development of policy and legislation. This
will enable the next Welsh Government to introduce legislation on these taxes
soon after the next election (5 May 2016).

Landfill Disposals Tax Consultation

1.5 The Wales Act 2014 clearly limits the scope of the National Assembly’s powers

to legislate for a tax on disposals to landfill made in Wales; the replacement tax
must therefore relate to this method of waste management.

! The consultation and analysis of responses on the Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes
White Paper can be accessed from the Welsh Government’s website at:
www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

% The consultation on a Land Transaction Tax closes on 6 May 2015 and can be accessed from the
Welsh Government’s website at: www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

4
Pack Page 28


http://www.wales.gov.uk/consultations
http://www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

Landfill Disposals Tax

1.6 Landfill Tax is complex. The Welsh Government is aware of the
interdependencies between differential tax rates across borders, the challenges
of compliance and enforcement, and the dis-amenity impact of landfill sites and
illegal waste activity on communities.

1.7 The interdependencies between these different aspects means that changing
one aspect of the tax has the potential to cause disproportionate adverse
impacts as well as positive outcomes on another aspect of the tax; the Welsh
Government needs to be alert to these.

1.8 This consultation and the initial Regulatory Impact Assessment at Appendix 4
begin to consider these issues. Your views are particularly welcome on the
practical implications of the proposed options and any supporting evidence you
are able to provide in your responses.

Waste Management in Wales

1.9 The Welsh Government will be seeking to use the development of Landfill
Disposals Tax as an additional lever to support its policies, particularly on
waste.

1.10 The European Regulatory landscape has changed considerably since the
introduction of Landfill Tax in 1996 and is a significant influence on the way that
waste is managed in Wales. Notable changes have included the introduction of
the EU Landfill Directive in 1999 which particularly focused on the handling of
waste landfilled: setting out requirements for pre-treatment of waste and the
materials that may be landfilled. The EU Council Decision on Waste
Acceptance Criteria in 2002 also set out the standards that wastes must meet
to be accepted at different types of landfill.

1.11 The Welsh Government’s Towards Zero Waste Strategy sets out how we will
deal with waste in Wales to produce benefits for the environment, economy and
social wellbeing. It seeks to achieve the sustainable use of resources by
reducing waste and managing any waste that is produced in a way that ensures
valuable materials are kept within the Welsh economy and are protected for
future generations. It sets goals of significant waste reduction by at least 27%
(from a 2007 baseline) and a recycling rate of at least 70% with as close to zero
(<5%) landfill as possible by 2025 with an ambition of zero waste (100%
recycling) by 2050.

1.12 These goals support the delivery of the Welsh Government’s Climate Change
Strategy for Wales which sets out its commitment to reduce the greenhouse
gas emissions that Wales produces. The 2006 Stern Review on climate change
pointed to landfill sites as one of the primary causes of climate change-causing
emissions from waste. Food and other biodegradable wastes when landfilled
produce methane, a powerful climate change-causing gas.

5
Pack Page 29



Landfill Disposals Tax

1.13 In autumn 2013 the Welsh Government consulted on the Environment Bill
White Paper® which, amongst other things, set out actions to ensure Wales’
natural resources are used to best effect and that waste is recycled. To help
drive investment towards sustainable waste management solutions it included
specific proposals in relation to waste segregation, collection and bans on
certain materials going to energy from waste and landfill. Following the Welsh
Government’s consideration of responses to the White Paper, a Bill is expected
to be introduced in spring 2015.

1.14 In 2014 the Welsh Government launched Green Growth Wales: Investing in the
Future. Green Growth Wales aims to increase and accelerate projects to
deliver green investment in Wales. It focuses primarily, though not exclusively,
on encouraging investment in resource efficiency, renewable energy generation
and sustainable waste management projects. £5 million has been allocated
from the Welsh Government’s Budget in 2015-16 to the development of Green
Growth Wales. Green growth is a fundamental aspect of the Welsh
Government’s commitment to sustainable development in Wales.

1.15 For the last 15 years Wales has been recognised as leading the way in respect
of sustainable development, which has been at the heart of Welsh Government
policy from the very start of devolution. Sustainable development is the best
way to help us plan better for the future, so that the big problems facing people
and communities across Wales such as climate change, poverty, jobs and
growth, and making people safer, can be addressed.

1.16 The Welsh Government’s long-term vision for Wales by 2050 is to be the best
place to live, learn, work, and do business, with an environment that is
respected and enjoyed. We want a strong economy for businesses, people and
communities in Wales. We want to strengthen the conditions that will enable
businesses to create jobs and sustainable economic growth. These sentiments
are at the heart of The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill*, which is
currently progressing though the National Assembly for Wales. This legislation
will help us make this a reality by putting into law a set of clear, integrated,
wellbeing goals for Wales. They provide a shared vision of the Wales we want
to see now and in the future, and ensure that present needs are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

Landfill Tax
1.17 Landfill Tax is currently a UK tax on the disposal of material as waste by way of

landfill at landfill sites which are permitted under environmental legislation,
unless specifically exempted.

3 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/environmentandcountryside/environment-bill-white-paper/?lang=en
* http://wales.gov.uk/legislation/programme/assemblybills/future-generations/?lang=en

6
Pack Page 30


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/environmentandcountryside/environment-bill-white-paper/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/legislation/programme/assemblybills/future-generations/?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

1.18 Landfill Tax was introduced in 1996 as a key environmental behavioural driver:

‘...to ensure that landfill costs reflect environmental impact thereby
encouraging business and consumers, in a cost effective and non-regulatory
manner, to produce less waste; to recover value from more of the waste that
is produced; and to dispose of less waste in landfill sites’®.

1.19 Since the tax was introduced it has contributed to a significant reduction in the
proportion of waste sent to landfill and an increase in recycling. In Wales, the
total tonnage of waste landfilled fell by 52% between 2001 and 2013°.

1.20 There are currently 28 landfill sites and 23 landfill site operators in Wales.
Landfill Tax is currently administered by HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC)
and collected from landfill site operators. A lower tax rate applies to materials
listed in the Landfill Tax (Qualifying Material) Order 2011. A standard tax rate
applies to all other taxable disposals.

1.21 A fund to support local community and environment projects within the vicinity
of a landfill site is also provided for through Landfill Tax. The Landfill
Communities Fund (LCF) is a tax credit scheme that enables landfill site
operators to contribute a proportion of their tax liability to eligible projects.

Recent developments

1.22 In recent years HMRC has sought to provide greater clarity regarding how the
tax is applied. This has included updating guidance and introducing revised
legislation: the Landfill Tax (Prescribed Landfill Site Activities) Order 2009 and
the Landfill Tax (Qualifying Material) Order 2011. HMRC has also announced
its intention to introduce a Loss on Ignition (Lol) test from April 2015 to
determine the tax rate applicable to fines (the small fragments of waste which
remain after waste has been processed). The basis for the Lol test is explained
in Chapter 2.

1.23 There has been a notable string of litigation related to whether some material
sent to landfill is being ‘used’ (rather than discarded’) and should not therefore
be treated as a taxable disposal. The values of the claims currently before the
courts mean that a significant proportion of the Landfill Tax revenue is at risk.
The Welsh Government is keen to explore ways of designing a Landfill
Disposals Tax that takes account of the issues raised in these cases and which
provides as much clarity to both the taxpayer and the Welsh Revenue Authority
as possible.

® UK Waste Strategy (DoE and WO 1995:cited in ECOTEC, 2001)

® http:/naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-and-
guidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en

" For there to be a taxable disposal there has to be a disposal of material as waste, which the
legislation defines as occurring when ‘“the person making the disposal does so with the intention of
discarding the material.”

7
Pack Page 31


http://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-and-guidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en
http://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-and-guidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

1.24 In other developments, HMRC has increased its focus on the issue of waste
crime including addressing Landfill Tax evasion. In 2014, the UK Government
gave £5m to the Environment Agency (money that would otherwise have gone
into the LCF) to ensure effective compliance and enforcement of waste law in
England. HMRC is also currently reviewing the administration of the LCF in light
of concerns that a significant proportion of funds remain unspent.

1.25 Landfill Tax will be devolved to Scotland from April 2015. Scottish Landfill Tax
will remain broadly similar to Landfill Tax but makes some changes with regard
to how the tax is administered, including the scope of the tax (to extend the
definition of landfill sites to illegal deposits of waste) and the delivery of the
LCF. The Welsh Government has looked closely at Scotland’s proposals and
will continue to watch with interest as they are implemented. This consultation
considers the main changes being implemented in Scotland.

Landfill Tax Revenues

1.26 The standard tax rate has increased over time to incentivise diversion of waste
from landfill towards prevention, re-use, recycling and recovery. The standard
tax rate has risen from £7/tonne in 1996-97 to £80/tonne in 2014-15. The lower
tax rate has steadily declined in real terms since the introduction of the tax (it
has not kept pace with inflation). The lower tax rate was £2/tonne when the tax
was introduced and is currently £2.50/tonne.

1.27 In the 2014 UK Budget Statement it was announced that future Landfill Tax
rates will be maintained in real terms (by the rate of inflation as measured by
the Retail Price Index) until at least 2019/20. The Scottish Government has
recently announced that it is setting the same tax rates as HMRC for 2015-16°.

1.28 Landfill Tax revenues in the UK and estimates for Wales over the last ten years
are shown in Table 1. Recently, revenues have been around £1.1 billion in the
UK and an estimate of around £50 million in Wales. Revenues for both the UK
and Wales have followed a similar trend over the last decade, increasing
rapidly until 2010-11 and remaining fairly stable since then. Figures for the UK
represent actual revenues received by HMRC. However, figures for Wales
produced by HMRC are an estimate based on regulatory data on landfill
tonnages, rather than Landfill Tax returns.

8 http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/10/2706/4

8
Pack Page 32


http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/10/2706/4

Landfill Disposals Tax

Table 1 — Landfill Tax Revenue

Revenue (£ Million)

Year UK Wales (estimate) Wales (% of UK)
2003-04 607 30 49
2004-05 672 33 49
2005-06 733 36 49
2006-07 804 40 4.9
2007-08 877 38 4.4
2008-09 954 43 4.5
2009-10 842 40 4.7
2010-11 1,065 46 4.4
201112 1,090 46 4.2
201213 1,092 46 4.2
201314 1,189 50 4.2

Source: HMRC

1.29 Revenues received are the result of the tonnages landfilled and the rate of tax
paid. For most of the last decade, a rapidly increasing standard tax rate
outweighed the effect of falling tonnages of standard rate material being
landfilled, and therefore revenues rose. Falling tonnages of standard rate
material are illustrative of the success of Landfill Tax as a policy instrument.
This trend can be clearly seen in Chart 1 below, which shows tonnage declared
per quarter for the UK by the different tax rates.

1.30 Data are not available for Landfill Tax returns specifically relating to Wales,
largely because some operators are present across the UK and only submit
one return. However, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) does publish data on
waste management trends in Wales. These data show a similar trend in the
tonnage of material being landfilled, as shown in Chart 2. This shift away from
landfill towards other means of waste management represents policy
successes. In the Welsh context, Landfill Tax, European waste regulation and
Welsh Government policy including statutory recycling targets for local
authorities (along with other initiatives) are instruments designed to achieve this
outcome.

9
Pack Page 33



Landfill Disposals Tax

Chart 1 — Tonnage Declared (UK)

Source: HMRC

Chart 2 — Waste management trends 2000/1 - 2013

5,000

4,000

3,000

Kilotonnes

2,000

1,000

. e -
- -
=== Treatment
g | andfill
=== Transfer
P
”
e
— == == &
-
— = - - Metal
Recycling
2000/1 2002/3 2004/5 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Year

Source: Natural Resources Wales
http://naturalresourceswales.qov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-

and-quidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en

10
Pack Page 34



http://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-and-guidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en
http://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/content/docs/pdfs/our-work/Policy-advice-and-guidance/87161/wales-waste-information-eng?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

Landfill Tax Forecasts

1.31 The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) produces the UK fiscal forecasts,
and in its December 2014 Economic and Fiscal Outlook published Welsh
forecasts for the first time. The OBR forecasts for annual revenue until 2019/20
are shown in Table 2.

1.32 Revenues in the UK and Wales are forecast by the OBR to continue to exhibit
similar trends over the next five years (as they have in the past). However, this
may be largely driven by the forecast methodology which allocates a stable
percentage of UK revenues to Wales.

1.33 While in the past revenues at the UK and Wales levels have followed similar
trends, there are reasons to believe this may not continue to be the case. In
particular, the Welsh Government’s waste policy and statutory local authority
recycling targets and its goal of as close to zero (<5%) landfill by 2025 are
having a significant impact on waste management in Wales.

1.34 An example of this is the Energy from Waste facility in Cardiff which will be
handling the residual waste from five local authorities in South East Wales by
summer 2015, and a similar facility is in planning which would handle residual
waste from five local authorities in North Wales. These developments, along
with other investments in waste management, and the continued success of
Welsh local authorities and households in meeting recycling targets, could see
a significant fall in Welsh revenues over the forecast period. The number of
operational landfill sites in Wales is falling and could quite possibly be less than
10 by 2020 (down from 28 in 2015). These developments could see a
decoupling of the trends in revenues at the UK and Welsh levels.

Table 2 — Landfill Tax Forecasts

£ Million
2014-15 201516 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
UK Forecast 1226 1152 1077 1082 1134 1206
Welsh Forecast 54 51 48 48 50 53
Source: OBR

The case for introducing Landfill Disposals Tax

1.35 ltis the Welsh Government’s intention to introduce a replacement Landfill Tax
in Wales because the negative financial and policy implications of not doing so
would be significant.

1.36 The Wales Bill: Financial Empowerment and Accountability Command Paper
confirmed the UK Government’s intention that the process of devolving Landfill
Tax will result in the Welsh Government's block grant being reduced. The
exact adjustment method is yet to be determined. However, it is assumed that

11
Pack Page 35



Landfill Disposals Tax

the amount of Landfill Tax would have been raised in Wales in 2018-19 (the
first year of devolved taxes) will form the basis for the amount taken off the
block grant.

1.37 As Table 2 shows, the OBR calculates that the Landfill Tax raised in Wales in
2018-19 will be £50m. The adjustment in subsequent years will need to take
account of expected trends in revenue that would have occurred in the absence
of tax devolution. The Welsh Government would not expect the adjustment to
penalise Wales for any increased revenue arising from Welsh Government
actions, such as investment to improve tax compliance.

1.38 If the Welsh Government chose not to implement a replacement Landfill Tax in
Wales the Welsh Government would either need to operate with a reduced
budget (which would be challenging given the prolonged period of budget
austerity) or find alternative ways of raising such revenues to maintain existing
resource levels.

1.39 Without a replacement Landfill Tax sending waste to landfill would become the
cheapest waste management option. This would have impacts for the waste
management system in Wales and may undermine efforts in Wales to promote
the waste hierarchy (as set out in the EU Waste Framework Directive) which
seeks to divert waste from landfill through greater prevention, re-use, recycling
and recovery of waste.

1.40 This may affect the ability of the Welsh Government to meet its own ambitions
and targets for the management of waste set out in its Towards Zero Waste
Strategy. It would also impact on the Welsh Government’s wider aims with
regard to sustainable development, climate change and the environment.

1.41 As explained in Chapter 2, the Wales/England border is populous and has a
range of waste management businesses including landfill sites along both its
sides. Not introducing a replacement tax in Wales would likely trigger waste
tourism with waste carriers in England and further afield travelling to Wales to
dispose of their waste. There would also be wellbeing and environmental
impacts for communities, for example, from increased disruption for residents
near landfill sites and waste transfer stations and growing pressure on Wales’
remaining landfill sites with potential calls for new landfill sites to be developed.

Developing Landfill Disposals Tax
Principles

1.42 The Minister for Finance and Government Business has identified key
principles which will underlie the Welsh Government’s approach to tax policy.
These principles will ensure the Welsh Government’s approach will be fair to
businesses or individuals who pay taxes; be simple with clear rules which seek
to minimise compliance and administration costs; support growth and jobs,
which will in turn help tackle poverty; and provide stability and certainty to
taxpayers.

12
Pack Page 36



Landfill Disposals Tax

Key Factors

1.43 There are some additional key factors that will be an important feature of
developing Landfill Disposals Tax. These include exploring how the tax might:

e support and further deliver the Welsh Government’s aims with regard to
Towards Zero Waste, climate change, the environment and sustainable
development, without having a negative or undue impact on businesses

o reflect the developments within the waste sector over the past 20 years
including modern waste management practices and technological
advancements, along with changes to the European Regulatory
landscape

e maintain consistency with the UK where appropriate for ease of
administration or to prevent waste tourism and equally make changes
where there is good reason, this might be to provide greater clarity,
simplify administration and improve compliance

¢ develop an efficient and cost-effective administrative framework
particularly given that the number of landfill sites is reducing and tax
revenue is expected to decline

e maximise opportunities for the Welsh Revenue Authority, the Welsh
Government, industry, regulators, local authorities and wider public
services to work together to ensure that the tax is implemented
effectively

1.44 Over the past few months, the Welsh Government has sought the preliminary
views of stakeholders to inform its proposals set out in this consultation
document. This has included establishing a Technical Expert Group with
industry representation and hosting stakeholder workshops in North and
South Wales.

13
Pack Page 37



Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 2: Tax Rates and Taxable Disposals
INTRODUCTION

2.1 This Chapter will explore the disposal of material including the tax rates that
should be applied. In particular, it seeks views on:

e taxrates
e taxable material
e the area in which a taxable disposal takes place
e credit for landfill waste removed
¢ landfill site activities to be treated as disposals
e exemptions and reliefs that should apply
PROPOSALS
Tax Rates

2.2 Landfill Tax is charged by weight on waste disposed at landfill. A lower tax rate
applies to the materials listed in the Landfill Tax (Qualifying Material) Order
2011 set out in Appendix 1. The lower tax rate has steadily declined in real
terms since the introduction of the tax (it has not kept pace with inflation). The
lower tax rate was £2/tonne when the tax was introduced and is currently
£2.50/tonne. A standard tax rate applies to all other taxable waste disposals.
This has risen from £7/tonne in 1996-97 to £80/tonne in 2014-15.

Chart 3 — Landfill Tax Rates

14
Pack Page 38



Landfill Disposals Tax

2.3

2.4

In the 2014 UK Budget Statement it was announced that future Landfill Tax
rates will be maintained in real terms (by the rate of inflation as measured by
the Retail Price Index) until at least 2019-20. The Scottish Government has
announced that they will be setting the same tax rates as HMRC for 2015-16°,

In introducing their tax rates, the Scottish Government said that they would
ensure that the taxes raised from Scottish Landfill Tax would be revenue
neutral in comparison with the UK Government rate; it would address concerns
over potential 'waste tourism' were there to be a material differential between
the rates of tax charged in Scotland and the rest of the UK; and that this
provided appropriate financial incentives to support delivery of their Zero Waste
goal, which like the Welsh Government’s, is that <56% per cent of total waste
should go to landfill by 2025.

Developing a Welsh approach

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

One of the key principles guiding the development of devolved taxes in Wales
is stability and certainty for taxpayers. The Welsh Government appreciates that
businesses require long-term stability and certainty on which to base their
business plans and investments.

Whilst the Welsh Government will not be confirming tax rates until nearer the
time the tax is introduced (2018), it is seeking views in this consultation which
will enable it to reach a considered position on tax rates.

An option would be to increase or decrease the level of the lower and/or
standard rate of Landfill Tax relative to that set elsewhere in the UK. A
differential tax rate between neighbouring countries could create waste tourism
where it is more economical for waste carriers to travel further across country
borders to dispose of waste. In a similar vein, there is also ‘backhauling’ where
lorries cross borders to transport a load and take waste back to obtain a more
favourable tax rate.

As demonstrated in Map 1, the majority of landfill sites in Wales (and the Welsh
population) are within 50 miles of the England/Wales border. There are even
more landfill sites within 50 miles of the border on the English side. Many
landfill sites in the north-east and south-east of Wales are much closer than this
to sites in England. Haulage costs are likely to be an important factor in
consideration of this issue.

® http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/10/2706/4 and see also the draft Scottish Landfill Tax

(Standard and Lower Rate) Order 2015.

15
Pack Page 39


http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/10/2706/4

Landfill Disposals Tax

Map 1 - Landfill Sites and Populations — Wales/England Border"°

1% Location of landfill sites based on HMRC data 2012
http://customs.hmrc.gov.uk/channelsPortal\WWebApp/channelsPortal\WWebApp.portal? nfpb=true& page
Label=pageExcise ShowContent&id=HMCE PROD 009941&propertyType=document

16
Pack Page 40


http://customs.hmrc.gov.uk/channelsPortalWebApp/channelsPortalWebApp.portal?_nfpb=true&_pageLabel=pageExcise_ShowContent&id=HMCE_PROD_009941&propertyType=document
http://customs.hmrc.gov.uk/channelsPortalWebApp/channelsPortalWebApp.portal?_nfpb=true&_pageLabel=pageExcise_ShowContent&id=HMCE_PROD_009941&propertyType=document

2.9

Landfill Disposals Tax

The Welsh Government’s early engagement with stakeholders suggests that
there is little support for changing the standard tax rate but that there is
potential for exploring an increase to the lower tax rate to encourage waste
producers to prevent, re-use, recycle and recover qualifying materials rather
than disposing of them at landfill.

2.10 The Landfill Tax (Scotland) Act 2014 gives the Scottish Government power

2.1

(by way of secondary legislation) to set different lower rates of tax for different
categories of qualifying material, although they are not proposing to exercise
this power when Scottish Landfill Tax is initially introduced.

Stakeholders have suggested that this opportunity should be retained for the
Welsh Government also, to provide flexibility for the future if needed in order to
be able to respond to economic changes, social circumstances and/or
environmental developments. The Welsh Government is also mindful that were
the UK or Scottish Government to make significant and/or sudden changes to
their tax rates then it would be desirable to have the ability to make changes
itself to deter any negative impacts.

Question 1: How important is it that the Welsh Government maintains consistency
with the UK Government and Scottish Government on Landfill Tax rates and why?

Question 2: Are the current standard and lower tax rates (explained in paragraph
2.2) set at an appropriate level for Wales? Please explain your response.

Question 3: Is there value in the Welsh Government having the ability to set
different lower rates of tax (explained in paragraph 2.10 - 2.11) and why?

Defining the taxable material

Wastes that should be classified as qualifying material and charged at the lower tax

rate

2.12 Currently, the Landfill Tax (Qualifying Material) Order 2011 specifies the

materials which qualify for the lower tax rate (Appendix 1). In drawing up the
material to be listed in its lower rate Order, HM Treasury must have regard to

'S, 13(6) Landfill Tax (Scotland) Act 2014

17
Pack Page 41




Landfill Disposals Tax

whether the material meets the following criteria (as well as any other factors
they consider relevant)'?:

e Non-hazardous
e Low potential for greenhouse gas emissions
e Low polluting potential in the landfill environment

2.13 Assuming that a lower tax rate was to be retained for Landfill Disposals Tax,
the Welsh Government is interested in your views on whether there should be
any changes to the list of qualifying materials charged at the lower tax rate
(Appendix 1), for example, whether there are any further refinements that could
be made to the list to provide greater clarity for the waste sector and for the
Welsh Revenue Authority.

2.14 In determining the tax rates applied to different materials consideration might
also be given to how Landfill Disposals Tax can assist the Welsh Government
to deliver its waste policy objectives and how the tax might be brought up-to-
date to better reflect modern waste management practices and technological
advancements along with changes to the European regulatory landscape.

Question 4: Are there any changes to the list of materials qualifying for the lower tax
rate (Appendix 1) that should be considered, and on what basis?

Compliance with the lower tax rate

2.15 Currently under Landfill Tax legislation “where material is disposed of it must be
treated as qualifying material if it would in fact be such material but for a small
quantity of non-qualifying material”® (described as ‘incidental’ in Excise Note
LfT1: A general guide to Landfill Tax). HMRC’s approach acknowledges that a
load of qualifying waste will nearly always have some level of residual non-
qualifying waste in it.

2.16 The concept of a ‘small quantity’ of non-qualifying material is ambiguous and
open to interpretation. This uncertainty gives rise to the potential for
significantly less tax to be paid than if the higher rate material mixed with a low
rate load was taxed at the higher rate. This is demonstrated in an industry
report' which highlighted that if 30% was considered a ‘small quantity’, then a
20 tonne load would incur a Landfill Tax bill of £50 at the lower tax rate but if it
was charged at the higher rate it would have incurred a considerably higher
Landfill Tax bill of £1,600 (2014/15 rates).

'2'S. 42 Finance Act 1996 and Excise Note LfT1: A general guide to Landfill Tax

3. 63(1) Finance Act 1996

" Waste Crime: Tackling Britain’s Dirty Secret (2014) - Eunomia Research and Consulting
commissioned on behalf of Environmental Services Association Education Trust.

18
Pack Page 42



Landfill Disposals Tax

2.17 Some stakeholders have expressed concerns that quantifying what is meant by
a ‘small/incidental’ amount would encourage perverse behaviours, for example
deliberate mixing of waste up to a specified threshold and other stakeholders
agree that there should be a degree of discretion and flexibility. Meanwhile,
some stakeholders feel that a threshold should be specified with several
suggesting that 10% would be more than adequate.

2.18 Others argue that fully enforcing EU Council Decision 2003/33/EC on waste
acceptance criteria would help steer waste companies towards better separate
collection (in order to achieve high quality recycling) and away from a mixed
waste collection approach. Applying the waste acceptance criteria would most
likely significantly reduce the amount of non-qualifying waste in a qualifying
load.

Question 5: What would be the practical implications of introducing a threshold to
define ‘a small quantity’ of non-qualifying waste in a load of qualifying material?

Introduction of a Loss on Ignition (Lol) test

2.19 HMRC is introducing a Lol test from April 2015 as part of their efforts to prevent
waste misclassification of fines from mechanical treatment plants produced
through the process of segregation, sorting and screening (i.e. the small
fragments of waste which remain after waste has been processed). Fines are
not separately identified within Landfill Tax legislation but they can be lower-
rated if they comprise solely of materials listed in the Landfill Tax (Qualifying
Material) Order 2011 or comprise mainly of such materials, save for a small
amount of non-qualifying material.

2.20 The Lol test will involve taking a sample of the fines and testing it under
laboratory conditions. The Lol test determines the biodegradable and/or
combustible element of the waste, which is indicative of the likely pollution
potential of the material’®. The Lol test will assist operators of landfill sites to
determine the correct tax liability of fines and so ensure that the appropriate
rate of tax is paid.

2.21 The lower rate of Landfill Tax will apply where fines meet a Lol threshold (the
biodegradable and or/combustible element of the waste) of 15% or less
(reducing to 10% after one year). This testing regime effectively gives a more
precise and measurable definition to a ‘small quantity’ of non-qualifying
material, although only in the context of fines.

'® The combustible material will include organic material that, when landfilled, will produce methane (a
powerful greenhouse gas) and leachate. This organic material is typically contained in standard rate
wastes (i.e. non-qualifying material). Waste policy aims to reduce the landfilling of this material, to
help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from landfill.

19
Pack Page 43



Landfill Disposals Tax

2.22 Stakeholders appear broadly in favour of the Lol test and initial views are that
Wales should continue to implement the Lol test once Landfill Tax is devolved.
However, stakeholders have raised some issues regarding the practical
implementation of the test and the Welsh Government will keeg a watching
brief on the HMRC and the Scottish Lol testing arrangements'®.

Question 6: Would you support the introduction of a Welsh Loss on Ignition (Lol)
test when Landfill Tax is devolved? Please explain your reasons.

Defining the area in which a taxable disposal takes place

2.23 For there to be a taxable disposal, the disposal needs to be made at a landfill
site. The site may include areas for storage or for sorting waste for recycling.
Non-taxable uses of waste such as these must take place in a designated
‘information area’. These activities are subject to additional administrative
requirements including separate record keeping and weighing/characterisation
of the waste.

2.24 There is the opportunity to provide greater clarity regarding the area in which a
taxable disposal takes place. Current approaches to environmental protection
regulation across the UK mean that the tipping area is now more readily
identified in site permits. One option could be to legislate to provide that the
taxable area on a site is that which is identified in the environmental permit as a
tipping area. This would allow greater consistency between the tax and
environmental permit requirements.

2.25 However, this could raise practical issues regarding the application of the tax
point (currently at the site entrance where a weighbridge is normally sited) and
whether the tax point should be moved to when waste enters the tipping area.
This would be a significant change and could be complex to operate in terms of
weighing and characterising loads and may increase the likelihood for disputes
and evasion.

Question 7: Are there any problems with the existing arrangements for defining the
area in which a taxable disposal takes place, and if so, how might these be
resolved?

'8 Scotland is also expected to introduce a Lol testing regime as part of its Scottish Landfill Tax.
HMRC and Scotland have however developed different approaches independently of each other as a
result of the Scottish Landfill Tax devolution timetable.

20
Pack Page 44



Landfill Disposals Tax

Credit for landfill waste removed

2.26 Under the existing Landfill Tax arrangements'’, taxpayers may claim credit for
landfill material permanently removed from a landfill site either:

e to another landfill site
o for re-use, recycling, or incineration

2.27 Certain conditions must be met in order to be able to claim the credit including
having appropriate records as evidence for the claim. The credit is calculated
on the basis of the tax rate that applied at the time of the original disposal.

2.28 The Welsh Government wants to ensure that any arrangements for credit for
landfill waste removed are fair, simple and appropriate.

Question 8: In your view, are there any issues with the current arrangements for
credit for landfill material permanently removed from a landfill site and if so, how
might these be addressed?

Landfill site activities to be treated as disposals (and therefore subject to tax)

2.29 For there to be a taxable disposal there has to be a disposal of material as
waste, which the legislation defines as occurring when “the person making the
disposal does so with the intention of discarding the material.” '® The meaning
of these words has given rise to a string of litigation, essentially with landfill site
operators’ arguing that material is being used after it has entered the landfill site
and has therefore not been discarded and is not liable to tax. The values of the
claims currently before the courts mean that a significant proportion of the
Landfill Tax revenue is at risk.

2.30 HMRC introduced the Landfill Tax (Prescribed Landfill Site Activities) Order
2009 along with additional guidance to clarify landfill site activities to be treated
as disposals. The Order lists the activities that are considered taxable disposals
- including material received on a landfill site which is put to a use on the site.
However, this is an area that continues to be subject to challenge for example,
whether methane gas produced from landfilled material is a use of that material
that should therefore not be taxable.

2.31 The Welsh Government is keen to explore ways of designing a replacement
Landfill Tax that takes account of the issues raised in these cases and which
provides clarity to both the taxpayer and the Welsh Revenue Authority.

"7 Part V of the Landfill Tax Regulations S| 1996/1527
'8 . 64(1) Finance Act 1996

21
Pack Page 45




Landfill Disposals Tax

One option that has been put forward is to consider legislating on the basis that
all material entering a landfill site (other than that which is specifically exempt)
is subject to tax.

2.32 We are looking to adopt a common sense approach to items that would be
exempt; this might include for example, plant and machinery undertaking the
tipping and material stored in a non-disposal area. We also wish to ensure any
new arrangements support efforts towards re-use, recycling and recovery of
waste and minimise administrative burdens.

Question 9: What would be the practical implications of legislating on the basis that
all material entering a landfill site (other than that which is specifically exempt) is
subject to tax?

Question 10: What activities would you expect to be exempt (not subject to tax) and
why?

Question 11: Do you have any other suggestions for how we might clarify the
taxable and non-taxable activities on a landfill site and what would be the practical
implications of these?

Exemptions and Reliefs

2.33 Under the current Landfill Tax arrangements'® there are a range of exemptions
where Landfill Tax is not payable subject to certain conditions being met. These
are:

Dredgings - material removed from water
Mining and quarrying waste

Filling of quarries

Pet cemeteries

Waste from visiting (NATO) forces

2.34 During the Welsh Government’s preliminary discussions with stakeholders,
some have queried whether a Landfill Disposals Tax should include exemptions
suggesting that they can be open to abuse, inconsistently applied and a source

'9's. 43-45 of the Finance Act 1996 and Excise Note LfT1: A general guide to Landfill Tax

22
Pack Page 46




Landfill Disposals Tax

of dispute. In addition, the number of exemptions and reliefs can also add to the
complexity of the tax and add administration costs.

Question 12: Do you think that any of the current exemptions should be removed or
modified? Please explain your response.

2.35 There is also a water discount relief?’ where, subject to certain conditions being
met, the water content of waste can be discounted where it is not present
naturally when calculating the taxable weight of the waste. There are several
reasons why water may have been added to waste, these include for
transportation for disposal and as a result of an industrial process.

2.36 The water discount is generally acknowledged as being quite complex, which
can increase the scope for abuse, inconsistency and disputes. In addition, from
an environmental and public health perspective there are also concerns
regarding pollution caused by water being landfilled. Liquid waste going to
landfill is also banned under the EU Landfill Directive (1999). There may
therefore be less need to discount water than there was in 1996 when Landfill
Tax was first introduced.

Question 13: Is there a case for removing or modifying the water discount relief?
Please explain your response.

2.37 Other stakeholders have expressed an interest in introducing new exemptions
and reliefs, suggesting that this may be a way to tailor the tax to reflect different
circumstances and apply the tax with greater fairness.

Question 14: Do you think there is a case for introducing any new exemptions or
reliefs, and if so, what should they be and why?

20 Regulation 44 of the Landfill Tax Regulations 1996 (S| 1996/1527) and Excise Note LfT1: A general
guide to Landfill Tax

23
Pack Page 47




Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 3: Compliance and Enforcement
INTRODUCTION

3.1 This Chapter explores proposals to ensure that an effective compliance and
enforcement framework is implemented and that the negative impacts of illegal
waste activity, particularly caused by those seeking to evade paying Landfill
Disposals Tax are minimised. Specifically, it seeks views on:

e Improving regulation:
o Use of weighbridges
o Extending the definition of landfill sites to include illegal deposits
of waste within the scope of the tax
o  Criminal and civil penalties
o Compliance activity
e Minimising the impact of Landfill Disposals Tax evasion
e Tackling tax avoidance

BACKGROUND

3.2 Most people voluntarily pay any taxes that are due and recognise that our
public services are dependent upon such funding. The Welsh Government aims
to make the payment of devolved taxes as easy as possible. There is however
a minority who attempt to evade paying tax. Tax evasion can give people an
unfair advantage over those who pay tax, and reduces the amount of money
available to fund public services. This is unacceptable and the Welsh
Government will establish robust arrangements to prevent this from happening.

3.3 There have been cases of Landfill Tax evasion. In many circumstances this has
been to avoid paying the higher rate of tax. The standard tax rate has escalated
rapidly in recent years (to £80/tonne in 2014-15) and some people consider that
the profit that can be made from illegal waste activities far outweighs the risk of
being caught.

3.4 Landfill Tax payment can be evaded through a number of routes, including
waste misclassification, undeclared waste, and abuse of exemptions and
reliefs. Other forms include illegal waste sites, fly-tipping, waste fires, and
illegal exports of waste, which have direct impacts on communities.

3.5 Arecentindustry report®’ found that the cost of waste crime to the UK economy
is around £568 million per annum?. The pro-rata figure for the Welsh economy
would be in the region of £28 million per annum.

2! Waste Crime: Tackling Britain’s Dirty Secret (2014) - Eunomia Research and Consulting
commissioned on behalf of Environmental Services Association Education Trust.

%2 This figure consists of tax evaded (thought to be around £157m), illegal exports and the
remediation of illegal waste sites, illegal burning and fly-tipping.

24
Pack Page 48



Landfill Disposals Tax

3.6

3.7

Modelling presented in this same report found that for every £1 spent on waste
crime enforcement there is an expected return to Government of between
£3.60 and £5.60.

The UK Government has begun to focus more on the issue of waste crime in
the last year and £5m has been provided to the Environment Agency to ensure
effective compliance and enforcement of waste law in England.

Current efforts to ensure effective compliance and enforcement of waste law
within Wales

3.8

3.9

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) and local authorities have a regulatory role to
ensure effective compliance and enforcement of waste law, and that waste
management is undertaken without harm to the environment or human health.

The Welsh Government has been liaising closely with the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) on the initiatives proposed in their
Waste Crime Action Plan and talking to NRW about what action can be taken in
Wales to tackle illegal waste activity and improve site performance and
compliance in the waste sector. In the short term, the Welsh Government will
be consulting with Defra on changes to the Environmental Permitting
Regulations to extend some of the enforcement powers available to the
regulator. In addition, the consultation?® also includes a Call for Evidence
inviting views on further measures that the Government wishes to explore to
tackle waste crime.

3.10 Waste policy is devolved and a variety of initiatives are being taken forward by

3.1

the Welsh Government’s Natural Resources Department to tackle waste crime.
These include actions set out in the Welsh Government’s strategy to tackle fly-
tipping — A Fly-tipping Free Wales** and a recently completed consultation with
Defra on commencing powers in the Clean Neighbourhoods Act to strengthen
the powers of local authorities in seizing vehicles in relation to offences
concerning waste.

In other developments, the Welsh Government has worked with the UK
Government and other devolved administrations to develop an electronic duty
of care system (e-doc) which facilitates a consistent, accurate transfer of waste
records throughout the chain of collection and management. The widespread
adoption of the e-doc system would have benefits for simplifying tax
administration and supporting tax compliance.

PROPOSALS

3.12 As stated in the Minister’s tax principles, the Welsh Government is seeking to

establish Welsh tax arrangements that are simple and easy to understand. This

3 hitp://wales.gov.uk/consultations

2 hitp://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/epa/cleanneighbour/flytipping/?lang=en

25
Pack Page 49


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/epq/cleanneighbour/flytipping/?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

will help to support compliance particularly amongst those that become
genuinely confused or in some cases careless with regard to paying their tax.

3.13 However there are a small minority that deliberately seek to evade or avoid
paying tax and in discussions with stakeholders the Welsh Government is
considering a number of options to reduce the opportunities for non-
compliance.

Improving regulation

i) Introduce an obligation on landfill site operators to use a weighbridge where one is
functional and available on the landfill site or within close proximity of the site, with a
corresponding penalty for failure to do so.

3.14 The amount of tax due is calculated on the basis of the weight of material being
disposed; therefore sufficiently accurate weighing methodologies are required
to ensure consistency, openness and fairness. Currently HMRC’s Landfill Tax
Guidance (Excise Note LfT1) states that landfill site operators are expected to
use a weighbridge if one is present.

3.15 In order to provide greater clarity to taxpayers and the Welsh Revenue
Authority an obligation on a weighbridge’s use where one is functional and
available on the landfill site or within close proximity of the site could be
introduced with a corresponding penalty for failure to do so.

3.16 Other arrangements would be required for weighbridge breakdowns or when
an alternative weighbridge is not available within a close proximity. These
arrangements would need to be agreed with the Welsh Revenue Authority.

3.17 This may help to create a level playing field between operators and act as a
financial deterrent that outweighs the profit to be made from under-declaring
waste.

3.18 It is intended that Scottish Landfill Tax will introduce a weighbridge obligation
and corresponding penalty in Scotland.

Question 15: What would be the practical implications of placing an obligation on
landfill site operators to use a weighbridge where one is functional and available on
the landfill site or within close proximity of the site, with a corresponding penalty for
failure to do so?

26
Pack Page 50




Landfill Disposals Tax

i) Extend the definition of a landfill site

3.19 The structure of Landfill Tax means that it cannot be imposed on illegal

deposits of waste as they are not landfill sites within the definition of the
legislation. If Landfill Tax had been chargeable on illegal deposits of waste,
NRW estimates that a recently uncovered illegal waste site in Bridgend would
have been liable to over £2 million of tax.

3.20 In addition, there were over 32,000 fly-tipping incidents recorded on public land

3.21

in Wales during 2013/14 costing nearly £2 million to clear up®. These incidents
varied in size from a bin bag of rubbish to large-scale dumping of lorry loads of
waste.

lllegal deposits of waste present a range of environmental, public health and
social concerns for communities. It also places legitimate waste businesses at
a disadvantage as illegal operators avoid waste disposal costs and undercut
those who abide by the law. It also reduces the amount of money available to
fund public services.

3.22 Scottish Landfill Tax?® will define a landfill site more widely than the UK

legislation, so as to extend the scope of the tax beyond disposals made at an
authorised site (i.e. a site holding the requisite permits or authorisations) to also
include disposals made on any land where an authorisation should have been
obtained but has not been. This means that anyone caught illegally disposing
of waste (and/or anyone who knowingly permits the disposal to be made) will
have to pay the tax at the point where they disposed of it illegally and again
when it is remediated to a licensed landfill site. The Scottish Government has
extended the definition of a landfill site with the intention that it will act as an
additional financial deterrent to such environmental crime and re-align the
balance of risk so that the consequences of being caught outweigh the profit to
be made.

3.23 The Welsh Government is considering introducing a similar extension to the

definition of landfill sites to include illegal waste deposits within the scope of
Landfill Disposals Tax. This could be a further lever with which to support the
Welsh Government’s Fly-tipping Strategy®’. However, any adoption of a similar
extension of the definition of landfill sites will need to be carefully considered in
terms of i) minimising the negative impacts of illegal waste disposal and ii) the
cost-effectiveness of enforcement, including simplicity of administering and
operational costs.

2 Flycapture data — This is management information reported by local authorities to the Environment
Agency.

%6'55.12(3) and 16(3) of the Landfill Tax (Scotland) Act 2014.

“"The Welsh Government's Fly-tipping Strategy is available to read at:
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/epg/cleanneighbour/flytipping/?lang=en

27
Pack Page 51


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/environmentcountryside/epq/cleanneighbour/flytipping/?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 16: What would be the practical implications of extending the definition of
landfill sites to include illegal deposits of waste within the scope of the tax?

iii) Criminal and Civil Penalties

3.24 The White Paper on the Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes
explained that in developing a penalty framework, the Welsh Government will
consider the extent to which a consistent approach is taken across the
devolved taxes and where it might be appropriate to take a specific approach to
individual taxes i.e. Landfill Disposals Tax.

3.25 The Welsh Government will give careful consideration to the introduction of civil
penalties and the creation of criminal offences relating to the administration of
Landfill Disposals Tax. It will be important to consider how the balance of risk
might be aligned so that the likelihood and consequences of being caught
outweigh the potential profit to be made, for this to be achieved it will be
important that the punishment is proportionate to the crime.

3.26 The existing Landfill Tax arrangements include a variety of criminal offences
(with corresponding penalties) and civil penalties. Civil penalties include failure
to:

register or deregister

notify that you are no longer liable to be registered

notify HMRC about a controller of a landfill site

preserve records

produce information and records

comply with the regulations made under Part Il of the Finance Act
1996

¢ notify an under-assessment by HMRC or errors in taxpayer documents
in some circumstances

3.27 Criminal offences include knowingly being involved in the fraudulent evasion of
tax, the provision of false information and entering into a landfill contract with
reason to believe that tax in respect of the disposal concerned will be evaded.
When found guilty of a criminal offence set out in Part IV of Schedule 5 to the
Finance Act 1996, the potential penalties flowing from that conviction are also
set out there and comprise a financial penalty and/or imprisonment.

3.28 In 2014, the Sentencing Council issued new guidelines for magistrates on
sentencing for environmental offences. Importantly, this guidance states that it
should not be cheaper to offend than to take the appropriate precautions.
Magistrates should ensure that the combination of financial orders imposed
(compensation, confiscation if appropriate and fine) remove any economic
benefit derived from offending.

28
Pack Page 52



Landfill Disposals Tax

3.29 Environmental offences often involve an element of Landfill Tax evasion. It will
therefore be important for the Welsh Government, Welsh Revenue Authority,
Regulators, Police and other enforcement bodies, to work effectively together to
tackle illegal waste activity. The Welsh Government will seek to work with the
Sentencing Council to ensure appropriate sentencing takes into account any
Landfill Disposals Tax evaded.

Question 17: Are there any issues with the current penalty regime and if so, how
might they be addressed?

iv) Compliance Activity

3.30 The Eunomia Report on waste crime states “Whatever the level of
penalties...they will not act as a deterrent unless offenders believe it is likely
that they will be caught and prosecuted.”?®

3.31 Stakeholders indicate that over the past 5-10 years the number of on-site
inspections carried out by HMRC has reduced with greater emphasis on desk-
based assurance to identify and prevent Landfill Tax evasion. It is understood
that this has been due, at least in part, to budget pressures and operational
priorities (given that Landfill Tax is a small UK tax).

3.32 Stakeholders have told us that they would like to see a greater ‘boots on the
ground’ approach in Wales to support effective enforcement. There is growing
momentum around this view and the UK Government recently provided £5m
extra funding to the Environment Agency (money which would otherwise have
gone into the Landfill Communities Fund) to ensure effective compliance and
enforcement of waste law, in particular waste misclassification, illegal waste
sites and illegal exports.

Question 18: Is there a need for increased compliance activity on the ground, rather
than desk-based? If yes, please explain your view and provide evidence/explain the
benefits where possible.

8 Waste Crime: Tackling Britain’s Dirty Secret (2014)- Eunomia Research and Consulting
commissioned on behalf of Environmental Services Association Education Trust.

29
Pack Page 53




Landfill Disposals Tax

Minimising the impact of Landfill Disposals Tax evasion

3.33 It will be important to raise awareness of Landfill Disposals Tax to increase
understanding and compliance. There is also a need for effective information
and intelligence sharing between Welsh Government, Welsh Revenue
Authority, Regulators, Police and other enforcement bodies; this includes
pursuing and prosecuting individuals who commit waste crime in order to deter
other incidents. As part of this the Welsh Government will look to put in place
robust whistle-blowing mechanisms.

Question 19: Are there any further actions the Welsh Government might take to use
its new tax powers to improve compliance and enforcement and minimise the impact
of Landfill Disposals Tax evasion? If yes, please describe what those actions could
be?

Tackling Tax Avoidance

3.34 Whilst it is generally recognised that evasion is a key issue for Landfill Tax (and
the proposals set out earlier in this Chapter seek to minimise the opportunities
for this) the Welsh Government is also interested in gaining a practical
understanding of the type and extent of any avoidance in the context of Landfill
Disposals Tax.

3.35 HMRC explains avoidance in the following terms: ‘Tax avoidance...unlike
evasion is not in itself illegal, but it involves using the tax law to get a tax
advantage that Parliament never intended. It frequently involves contrived,
artificial transactions that serve little or no purpose other than to reduce tax
liability.’*

3.36 Those who engage in tax avoidance gain an unfair advantage over those who
pay the fair amount of tax. It also reduces the amount of money available to
fund public services and can also undermine confidence in the wider tax
system.

3.37 The Welsh Government will expect the Welsh Revenue Authority to support
taxpayers who pay the appropriate amount of tax in a timely way, but take firm
action against those who avoid, or seek to avoid, paying tax. The Welsh
Government will not limit the options available to the Welsh Revenue Authority
to deal with aggressive or intentional tax avoidance, and will consider the full
range of operational, policy and legislative tools to deliver this aim.

3.38 The Welsh Government recognises the need to be clear in its expectations, and
will provide comprehensive support and guidance on the meaning and

2 hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-tax-avoidance--2

30
Pack Page 54



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-tax-avoidance--2

Landfill Disposals Tax

application of its legislation to ensure that taxpayers can operate confidently
within the new tax system.

3.39 The Welsh Government’s White Paper on the Collection and Management of
Devolved Taxes included a number of questions around the benefit or need for
a General Anti-Avoidance or Anti-Abuse Rule (GAAR), and the possible need
and proportionality of safeguards and other measures to support and enable its
application.

3.40 On the basis of the responses received, the Welsh Government intends to
introduce its own Welsh tax avoidance rule to enable the Welsh Revenue
Authority to counteract the tax advantage of avoidance arrangements and
activities. This will draw on both the UK General Anti-Abuse Rule and Scottish
General Anti-Avoidance Rule. The Welsh Government will also look to wider
experience and knowledge in considering how widely to apply this rule to Welsh
devolved taxes. The nature and scope of the Welsh tax avoidance rule will be
determined in light of responses to this consultation, as well as responses to
the Land Transaction Tax consultation.

3.41 The Welsh Government is aware that the UK GAAR does not currently apply to
Landfill Tax, although the Scottish GAAR does apply to the Scottish Landfill
Tax. To inform the Welsh Government’s consideration of this issue it would
welcome views on whether there is evidence of tax avoidance within the
existing Landfill Tax, keeping in mind that avoidance is action taken within the
context of the legislation, but not in keeping with the spirit or intention behind
this legislation.

Question 20: In your view, is there evidence of tax avoidance within the existing
Landfill Tax, and what is the nature of this?

31
Pack Page 55




Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 4: Administration
INTRODUCTION

4.1 This Chapter explores proposals to simplify and modernise administrative
processes and make compliance simple. In particular, it seeks views on:

¢ aligning the invoice period with the financial year

o the practical implications of making it a requirement that European Waste
Catalogue codes are used in completion of the tax return

e opportunities to simplify and modernise the filing of tax returns including
improving electronic and online support

e the circumstances in which bad debt relief is appropriate

e resolving tax disputes

BACKGROUND

4.2 Landfill Tax is paid by landfill site operators. There are currently 28 landfill sites
and 23 landfill site operators in Wales. A small number of operators currently
within Wales also operate in others parts of Great Britain. Once Landfill Tax is
devolved to Wales there may be three different tax administrations in Great
Britain with which these waste operators will need to comply.

4.3 Furthermore, the Welsh Government’s waste policy is likely to significantly
reduce the amount of waste going to landfill in the coming years. This will
impact on the revenue generated by Landfill Disposals Tax and the number of
landfill sites in Wales is likely to be fewer than 10 by 2020.

4.4 The Welsh Government is therefore keen to develop a simple and efficient
administrative system for Landfill Disposals Tax which is cost effective,
proportionate to the tax raised and a low burden on landfill site operators.

PROPOSALS
The invoice period

4.5 Currently landfill site operators pay Landfill Tax on a quarterly basis. The
quarterly date at which payment falls is set by HMRC to enable them to
manage work flow. It does not necessarily align with the financial year, or with
the quarterly waste returns that landfill site operators complete for Natural
Resources Wales (NRW) as part of their environmental permitting
requirements.

4.6 One option the Welsh Government is considering is to align the quarterly
invoice period with the financial year, also making this consistent with the
landfill site operators’ waste returns to NRW. Aligning these could support
compliance activity by enabling them to be cross checked against each other.

32
Pack Page 56



Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 21: Would you support aligning the tax return period with the financial
year? Please explain your reasons.

European Waste Catalogue codes

4.7 A further step could be to require European Waste Catalogue (EWC) codes to
be used to complete the tax return. The EWC allocates a 6 digit code to identify
each waste and whilst there are over 600 EWC codes there is well-established
guidance available on their use. EWC codes are already used to complete
waste transfer notes and the quarterly NRW waste returns.

4.8 This would provide greater consistency with environmental permitting
regulations thereby further supporting compliance by simplifying the process of
cross-checking tax and waste returns. It might also further help to provide
greater clarity for taxpayers and the Welsh Revenue Authority as the EWC
codes provide tightly defined waste descriptions.

4.9 The EWC codes also require waste producers to clearly identify the source of
the waste and its constituent parts reinforcing principles of good waste
management. If EWC codes were applied to tax, then some landfill site
operators might incur one-off costs such as amending software/invoices.

Question 22: \What would be the practical implications of making it a requirement
that European Waste Catalogue codes are used in completion of the tax return?

Filing tax returns

4.10 The current filing system for Landfill Tax is entirely paper-based. HMRC send
out the self assessment tax forms every quarter and they are returned by post
by the site operators. The form is available online, but only as a sample form
that operators are not able to print. Payment is usually by cheque or bank
transfer.

4.11 It has been noted that the number of landfill site operators in Wales is likely to
reduce to fewer than 10 by 2020, and continue to reduce as waste is diverted
from landfill to re-use, recycling, and recovery. As a result, a complete move to
an online platform for Landfill Tax may be difficult to justify for cost and
proportionality reasons at this stage. Online filing and payment for Landfill Tax
is not a priority for HMRC at this stage as it is one of their smaller taxes. In
Scotland, where there are approximately 58 landfill sites run by around 52
operators, taxpayers will be able to use an online system or keep using a paper
based approach.

33
Pack Page 57



Landfill Disposals Tax

4.12 It would be helpful to understand the appetite for online support so that this
option may be kept under review over the medium-term. However, there are
small changes that could be made to simplify the tax filing process and which
would better reflect the Welsh Government’s Digital Wales ambitions™.

4.13 This could include changing the format of the tax return to enable electronic
returns to be submitted (that is, by email rather than the current postage
requirements), and encouraging more electronic payment. This would release
efficiency savings for landfill site operators and the Welsh Revenue Authority as
time and money would not be spent on printing and postage every quarter. The
use of electronic returns may also help to prevent errors and improve
compliance.

Question 23: How might the Welsh Government simplify and modernise the filing of
tax returns including improving electronic and online support?

Bad Debt Relief

4.14 Whilst landfill site operators pay Landfill Tax, they ‘pass on’ these costs to the
waste carriers disposing of waste at their sites via the gate fee, and the carriers
in turn pass on the cost to the waste producers. There is currently a bad debt
relief process in place which allows (subject to certain conditions®') landfill site
operators to claim back the portion of tax they have paid to HMRC if their
customer becomes insolvent or has not paid their invoice within 12 months. The
process to claim back the tax can take several months; in the meantime landfill
site operators are carrying this as a business risk.

4.15 For businesses to remain viable it is important that good business practice is
adopted with proper contract and insurance arrangements in place. The
availability of bad debt relief can be seen as a dis-incentive to putting these
arrangements in place and further puts at risk the tax revenue which is used to
fund public services. There is also a question of fairness and consistency as
other business sectors do not have access to bad debt relief and have to
absorb bad debt.

4.16 Scotland has decided to narrow the circumstances in which landfill site
operators can claim bad debt relief to only those cases where the waste carrier
has become insolvent in ways set out in their legislation®.

4 .17 Your views are welcome on whether bad debt relief should be offered and if so,
in what circumstances it is appropriate.

% http://wales.gov.uk/topics/businessandeconomy/digitalwales/?lang=en

% Part VI of the Landfill Tax Regulations 1996 (S 1996/1527) and Excise Note LfT1: A general guide
to Landfill Tax

%2 Scottish Landfill (Administration) Regulations 2015 — paragraph 25.

34
Pack Page 58


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/businessandeconomy/digitalwales/?lang=en

Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 24: Should bad debt relief be offered and if so, in what circumstances is it
appropriate?

Resolving Tax Disputes

4.18 The White Paper on the Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes™ sets
out proposals for managing and resolving any disputes that may arise between
the taxpayer and the Welsh Revenue Authority during the administration of
taxes. Disputes might arise as a result of different opinions on matters such as
the amount of tax due or the timing of when tax should be paid. In these
circumstances it is important that there are arrangements in place that can help
resolve matters fairly and swiftly.

4.19 The Welsh Government’s tax principles will shape the approach to appeals
arrangements in Wales. In particular, these will be established to be fair,
simple, transparent, efficient and affordable.

4.20 One of the Welsh Government’s key policy objectives will be to try and avoid
disputes arising in the first place. The Welsh Revenue Authority will be
expected to work on the basis of ‘getting it right first time’ and fostering a
culture of collaboration with taxpayers, communicating clearly and effectively
and providing appropriate explanations of decisions. Where disputes do arise,
every effort will be made to resolve matters informally, cost-effectively and
swiftly.

4.21 As part of this, the Welsh Revenue Authority will be expected to engage in
informal discussions and, similarly to HMRC, to use alternative dispute
resolution mechanisms, such as mediation, when appropriate. In relation to
many decisions of the Welsh Revenue Authority there will be a right to request
an internal review of that decision and if a dispute is not resolved, there will be
a right of appeal to the existing Ministry of Justice’s First Tier and Upper
Tribunal system.

Question 25: Have you any comments on the operation of the current internal
reviews and appeals provisions in a Landfill Tax context, including in particular the
people eligible to seek a review or appeal?

% The consultation and analysis of responses on the Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes
White Paper can be accessed from the Welsh Government’s website at:
www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

35
Pack Page 59


http://www.wales.gov.uk/consultations

Landfill Disposals Tax

The timing of the payment when a dispute arises

4.22 Currently HMRC will not seek payment of the tax due from a taxpayer whilst the
dispute is in the early stage process of dispute resolution. If, however, the
dispute remains unresolved then payment of the tax due is required before an
appeal can be made to the tribunal.

4.23 Under current UK arrangements taxpayers appealing a decision that requires
an upfront payment can in certain circumstances apply to postpone the
payment of the tax until the conclusion of the appeal. In the case of Landfill
Tax, an application would need to be made (to HMRC or failing that to the
appeal tribunal) demonstrating that the requirement to pay the amount
determined would cause the appellant to suffer hardship. Where an appeal has
been heard without an upfront payment and the amount is found to be due on
appeal, it will need to be paid with interest.

4.24 The Scottish Government has introduced a more stringent approach to
payment. The Revenue Scotland and Tax Powers Act 2014 contains a general
pay-first principle to the effect that, pending a review or appeal, tax remains due
and payable.** The Scottish Government has the power to provide (by way of
secondary legislation) for circumstances in which payment could be postponed
pending a review or appeal but is not currently proposing to exercise this power
in relation to Scottish Landfill Tax The Scottish Government is of the view that
in general a landfill site operator who is due to pay Scottish Landfill Tax will
already have collected tax due from persons depositing waste at the site in
question.

4.25 The Welsh Government’s White Paper on devolved tax collection and
management explored the conditions under which payment could or should be
postponed pending an appeal. There were sixteen responses to this question.
Of these, fourteen emphasised the need to ensure that provisions should be
made for particular challenging circumstances. Only two respondents
considered that the rules should be more stringent than those that HMRC
currently operate.

4.26 On the basis of these responses, the Welsh Government is clear that the pay-
first principle should remain as a key pillar of its approach to tax collection and
management. However, we are interested to explore opportunities to
streamline and clarify the existing process and to consider the circumstances in
which we might allow postponement of payment, in particular to ensure
fairness, access to justice, and in cases of hardship. The nature and scope of
the pay-first principle will be determined in light of responses to this
consultation.

3 . 245 Revenue Scotland and Tax Powers Act 2014.

36
Pack Page 60



Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 26: In your view, are there any exceptional circumstances in which
taxpayers might be able to postpone payment of Landfill Disposals Tax until the
conclusion of their appeal?

37
Pack Page 61



Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 5: Community Wellbeing

INTRODUCTION

5.1

In developing Landfill Disposals Tax, it is important to consider how landfill
sites and Landfill Tax evasion affects communities. This Chapter explores:

. whether to allocate a proportion of Landfill Disposals Tax revenue to
enhance community wellbeing

. the proposed activities that could receive funding

o the administrative options to ensure the maximum amount of funding
reaches initiatives

BACKGROUND

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The EU Waste Framework Directive establishes the principle that waste is
handled in a way that does not have a negative impact on the environment or
human health. It also seeks to ensure that waste is handled in accordance
with the waste hierarchy which seeks to divert waste from landfill towards
more environmentally sustainable methods of waste management.
Communities living close to landfill sites can experience dis-amenity due to
their proximity to the landfill site, this can include the impact of increased
traffic and noise.

The Landfill Communities Fund (LCF) is a tax credit scheme which 'offsets'
some of the dis-amenity of living near a landfill site. The purpose of this fund
is to incentivise landfill site operators to support local projects benefiting the
general public, biodiversity or the environment. In doing so the LCF provides
an opportunity for landfill site operators to demonstrate their Corporate Social
Responsibility.

Landfill site operators may make a voluntary contribution of a proportion of
their tax liability (up to 5.1%%) to approved projects, and claim a 90% credit of
their contribution. The landfill site operator can choose to absorb the
remaining 10% or, so that contributions are cost neutral to them, can ask an
independent party to make up the remaining amount.

It is important to note that the contributions made to the LCF by landfill site
operators results in a corresponding reduction in Landfill Tax receipts; so less
tax revenue is available to support public services.

Administration

5.6

HMRC govern the LCF and it is regulated on their behalf by Entrust®. As a
private fund, approved projects are eligible to apply for match funding from a
variety of public and European sources.

*This figure is set by Treasury and may be liable to change each year.
% http://www.entrust.org.uk

38
Pack Page 62


http://www.entrust.org.uk/

Landfill Disposals Tax

5.7  Projects looking for support through the LCF must be within 10 miles of a
landfill site and comply with one of the following six objectives:

e Object A: The remediation or restoration of land which cannot now be
used because of a ceased activity that used to take place there.

e Object B: The reduction, prevention or mitigation of effects of pollution
that has resulted, or may result, from an activity which has now ceased.

e Object D: The provision, maintenance or improvement of a public park
or another public amenity.

e Object DA: The conservation of a specific species or a specific habitat
where it naturally occurs.

e Object E: The repair, maintenance or restoration of a place of worship
or a place of architectural importance.

e Object F: The provision of financial, administrative or other similar
services by one organisation enrolled with Entrust to another.

5.8  Projects receive funding in two ways:

a. directly from a landfill site operator - by doing this the project must
register itself as an Environmental Body through the fund’s regulator
Entrust; or

b. through a Distributive Environmental Body - an organisation that
distributes funds to projects on behalf of a landfill site operator.

In total there are around 191 Environmental and Distributive Environmental
Bodies registered in Wales with approximately 50 currently active.

39
Pack Page 63



Landfill Disposals Tax

Figure 1: Current LCF Distribution Process

HMRC

!

Entrust
(Regulator)

Distributive
Environmental
Body

Landfill Site
Operator

Project

N

Environmental
Body

5.9  Entrust does not hold any of the funding as this is directly distributed to
projects via Environmental and Distributive Environmental Bodies. However
they do receive a fee plus a proportion of the fund to cover administration
costs:

a. an application fee of £100 made by Environmental Bodies when they
register; and

b. a2.17% levy*” applied to each contribution an Environmental and
Distributive Environmental Body receives from a landfill site operator.

Administrative challenges

5.10 The LCF is currently bein% reviewed by HMRC with the aim of improving the
flow of funding to projects*®. This is in light of figures showing that
Environmental and Distributive Environmental Bodies have accumulated large

¥ This levy is set by HMRC each year, and has been set at 2.17% for 2014/2015
% hitps://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-considers-options-to-improve-the-landfill-
communities-fund

40
Pack Page 64


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-considers-options-to-improve-the-landfill-communities-fund
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-considers-options-to-improve-the-landfill-communities-fund

Landfill Disposals Tax

amounts of unspent funds (£140 million) raising concerns that money is not
reaching communities as quickly as it should.

5.11 There are also concerns regarding the costs of administering the LCF.
Entrust®® advises that Environmental and Distributive Environmental Bodies’
administration costs should not be higher than 10%. However, recent figures
show that in reality these costs are closer to 11.4%. As stated above, Entrust
are also funded through a 2.17% levy taken from the fund.

5.12 In effect, over 13% of the fund is used for its administration so for every £100
contributed to the LCF, a project will receive around £86.

The LCF in Wales

5.13 At UK level, over 52,000 projects have been approved since the LCF was
established in 1996. Of these, almost 33,000 have completed and nearly
5,500 are ongoing.

5.14 In Wales, 1,532 projects have been approved since the LCF was established,
3% of the UK total. 206 projects are currently underway. In both England and
Wales, the majority of projects that are approved fall into Object D, DA and E.
(see paragraph 5.7 for definitions)

5.15 Wales is well supported through the LCF and received close to £4m in 2013-
14. Some of the projects that have received funding in Wales since the LCF
was established are set out in Table 3.

Table 3: Examples of Projects that have received LCF funding in Wales

Project Project Description *° Location Obj |LCF

Name Funding
(£)

Community Reclamation of contaminated Rhondda A 43,522

Regeneration | land adjacent to community Cynon Taf

through building. Following reclamation,

waste the land was used to extend an

existing building to provide a
community owned asset that
delivered re-use and recycling
services, anti-poverty services,
volunteering and work based
learning, as well as paid
employment and community
regeneration.

% http://www.entrust.org.uk/
0 A full list of Projects and their descriptions can be found on the Entrust website:
http://www.entrust.org.uk/projects

41
Pack Page 65


http://www.entrust.org.uk/
http://www.entrust.org.uk/projects

Landfill Disposals Tax

Hailey Park Refurbished Hailey Park Outdoor | Llandaff D 40,867
Outdoor Activity Centre to include North
Activity new playground and fitness
Centre equipment which is
environmentally friendly and
improves the social and
built environment. The
improved amenity is aimed to
help discourage antisocial
behavior
Aberman Complete refurbishment both Rhondda D 90,099
Boxing Club | internally and externally to an old | Cynon Taf
building, adding new porch entry,
electricity supply, showers,
heating system, windows, toilets
and boxing ring to restore back to
use for the community.
Alun & The project will create, restore Denbighshire | DA | 277,807
Chwiler and improve Priority Habitats
Living associated with the upper
Landscapes | Ajun/Alyn and ChwilerWheeler
river corridors, engaging with
local communities.
Dolforwyn To purchase Dolforwyn Woods Powys DA | 150,000
Woods and continue to enhance the
Appeal biodiversity on site whilst keeping
(ongoing) it open and accessible for local
people.
Boderwyn Enable the continued running of | Isle of E 10,000
Parish the Church by repairing its roof. Anglesey
Church The roof timbers were renewed
(ongoing) and the slates refitted.
Goleulong Refitted the galley area of the Cardiff Bay E 27,093
Lightship Lightship in order to provide an
enhanced visitor experience.
PROPOSALS

5.16 As explained in Chapter 1, the progress of the Welsh Government’s waste
policy will significantly reduce the amount of waste going to landfill in the

coming years, resulting in a reduction in the number of landfill sites. Essentially,

42
Pack Page 66




Landfill Disposals Tax

this is expected to reduce the revenue generated through Landfill Disposals
Tax and as such, the amount of funding available to support initiatives.

5.17 Considering the above, your views are welcome on whether a proportion of
Landfill Disposals Tax receipts should be allocated to enhance the wellbeing of
communities or whether the full Landfill Disposals Tax revenue should be taken
into the Welsh Government budget to be allocated across Welsh Government
priorities and public services.

Question 27: Should Welsh Government allocate a proportion of Landfill Disposals
Tax revenue to enhance the wellbeing of communities?

Activities that could receive funding

5.18 There are a number of potential areas that would benefit from this type of
funding if it is agreed that a proportion of the tax should be used to enhance
community wellbeing. Your views are welcome on the following options:

Supporting compliance and enforcement and minimising the impact of waste crime

5.19 Since the LCF was established alongside the tax in 1996, it has played a key
role in funding projects in Wales to offset some of the dis-amenity of living near
a landfill site. However, the reducing amount of waste going to landfill and the
reducing number of landfill sites (less than 10 by 2020) is likely to minimise the
dis-amenity impact on communities near landfill sites.

5.20 This option recognises that there are wider dis-amenity impacts on
communities as a result of Landfill Tax. There are a small minority who will
seek to evade paying Landfill Tax and will engage in illegal waste activities.
lllegal deposits of waste present a range of environmental, public health and
social concerns for communities. Research also shows that it is deprived areas
that are most affected by this issue®’.

5.21 Chapter 3 sets out the Welsh Government’s approach to putting in place an
effective compliance and enforcement framework for Landfill Disposals Tax. As
noted in Chapter 3, £5m was re-directed from the LCF to the Environment
Agency last year to ensure effective compliance and enforcement of waste law
in England.

5.22 Additional investment in this area in Wales could provide the opportunity to
further protect communities from deposits of illegal waste. This would help to
improve quality of place and bring land back into community use. It also has the
potential to increase tax revenue and enable additional money to be re-directed

1 Fly-tipping: causes, incentives and solutions. (2006) - http://www.ucl.ac.uk/jdi

43
Pack Page 67



http://www.ucl.ac.uk/jdi

Landfill Disposals Tax

to other areas that would benefit from funding. Industry research*? states that
for every £1 spent on enforcement a return of between £3.60 and £5.50 will be
generated.

Biodiversity initiatives and wider environmental improvements

5.23 The current LCF provides for the conservation of a specific species or a specific
habitat where it naturally occurs. These projects may bring wider community
benefit through improving quality of place and bringing land back into
community use.

5.24 1t has been suggested that the LCF is currently the main source of funding for
projects focusing on these objectives and that without it these projects would
find it difficult to receive the level of funding needed through other sources.

5.25 Funding therefore could be given specifically to projects that focus on
biodiversity initiatives and environmental improvement which could allow these
projects that may otherwise go unfunded to continue benefitting the
environment and communities.

Waste minimisation and the diversion of waste from landfill

5.26 The Welsh Government has a number of plans and interventions in place to
deliver waste minimisation and greater levels of recycling in order to achieve a
Zero Waste Wales, for example additional financial support has been provided
to local authorities to help them increase recycling rates.

5.27 To date the greatest focus has been on reducing and recycling local authority
waste. Areas that do not receive as much support for waste minimisation and
recycling are the industrial, commercial and construction sectors. Funding could
be used to support greater waste minimisation and recycling rates within these
sectors and release further environmental benefits of diverting waste from
landfill.

5.28 There is scope to encourage and educate industry and the public sector to see
waste as a resource and promote the re-use sector. There are additional
benefits to deprived communities through the ability to make use of some
products that would otherwise have been landfilled, and valuable local jobs and
training opportunities in re-use would also be created.

5.29 To stimulate jobs growth, small re-use and recycling businesses could be
encouraged to carry out this role and provide these services generating a
greater drive for re-use and recycling.

2 Waste Crime: Tackling Britain’s Dirty Secret (2014)- Eunomia Research and Consulting
commissioned on behalf of Environmental Services Association Education Trust.

44
Pack Page 68



Landfill Disposals Tax

Tackling Poverty and Deprivation in communities

5.30 Poverty imposes enormous costs on society from lower economic productivity,
reduced social cohesion and increased demands on public services. The lower
level of skills, poor health and poverty of ambition that deprivation brings with it
are a brake on the potential of the Welsh economy.

5.31 The Welsh Government has a number of existing initiatives that support
tackling poverty and promoting community resilience through helping people
train in new skills to gain employment, providing families with young children
the support they need and access to good education, providing housing and
welfare support and ensuring that the communities in which they live are safe
and prosper. These goals reflect many of the objectives of the LCF.

5.32 Landfill sites are often situated in deprived areas and likewise, it is deprived
areas that are affected most by illegal deposits of waste. The dis-amenity this
results in for deprived areas could be partly offset by targeting funding to these
areas. This might allow these communities to build up social and working skills
through volunteering as well improving their community.

Question 28: If the Welsh Government allocates a proportion of Landfill Disposals
Tax revenue to enhance community wellbeing, which of the following activities
should benefit from funding, and why?

- Supporting compliance and enforcement and minimising the impact of waste
crime

- Supporting waste minimisation and the diversion of waste from landfill

- Biodiversity initiatives and wider environmental improvements

- Tackling poverty and deprivation in communities

- Other (please specify)

Administration

5.33 The current administrative arrangements are explained in paragraphs 5.6 to
5.12. As stated, if this tax combined with other initiatives continues to be
successful in diverting waste from landfill, essentially this will affect the revenue
generated through Landfill Disposals Tax and as such, the amount of funding
available to support initiatives.

5.34 If it is agreed that a proportion of Landfill Disposals Tax revenue should be
allocated to enhance community wellbeing the Welsh Government will seek to
establish a simple, cost-effective administrative model and maximise the
amount of money that reaches initiatives.

45
Pack Page 69




Landfill Disposals Tax

5.35 Possible administrative models that stakeholders have so far suggested for
further exploration include: retaining some form of LCF, distributing funding
through an existing body or distributing funding directly through the Welsh
Government. In exploring these, careful consideration will need to be given to
the options of retaining existing features of the LCF including a tax credit
element, opportunities for landfill site operators to demonstrate their social
corporate responsibility and match funding.

Question 29: Do you have any thoughts on the possible administrative model?

Further Development of the Administrative Model

5.36 This Chapter focuses on the principles of whether and how a proportion of
Landfill Disposals Tax revenue should be used to enhance community
wellbeing. Your thoughts will enable the Welsh Government to form a view on
the approach to be taken.

5.37 There will be future engagement with stakeholders to develop the favoured
approach and its practical implementation. This may include consideration of
factors such as the geographical focus of the funding (currently within 10 miles
of a landfill site) and the percentage of funding contributed (currently 5.1% of
landfill site operators’ tax liability).

5.38 In addition, it may be useful to consider the Scottish Government’s approach as
they have made some administrative changes in developing their Scottish LCF.

5.39 In the meantime, the Welsh Government will continue to monitor developments,
particularly HMRC'’s review of the existing LCF.

46
Pack Page 70




Landfill Disposals Tax

APPENDIX 1: SUMMARY OF THE LANDFILL TAX (QUALIFYING
MATERIAL) ORDER 2011

Group Description Conditions Notes
of material
1 Rocks and Naturally Group 1 comprises only
soils occurring i. rock
ii. Clay
iii. Sand
iv. Gravel

V. sandstone

vi. Limestone

vii. crushed stone
viii. china clay

iX. construction stone
X. stone from the demolition of buildings or
structures

Xi. Slate

Xii. sub-soil

xiii. Silt

Xiv. Dredgings.

2 Ceramic or Group 2 comprises only
concrete i. glass, including fritted enamel
materials ii. ceramics, including bricks, bricks and mortar, tiles,

clay ware, pottery, china and refractories
iii. concrete, including reinforced concrete, concrete
blocks, breeze blocks and aircrete blocks

Group 2 does not include
i. glass fibre and glass-reinforced plastic, and
ii. concrete plant washings.

3 Minerals Processed or Group comprises only
prepared i. moulding sands, including used foundry sand.
ii. clays, including moulding clays and clay
absorbents (including Fuller's earth and bentonite)
iii. mineral absorbents iv. man-made mineral fibres,
including glass fibres
v. silica
vi. Mica
vii. mineral abrasives.

Group 3 does not include

i. moulding sands containing organic binders
ii. man-made mineral fibres made from glass-
reinforced plastic and asbestos.

47
Pack Page 71



Furnace slags

Ash

Low activity
inorganic
compounds

Calcium
sulphate

Calcium
hydroxide and
brine

Landfill Disposals Tax

Disposed of in
landfills for
non-
hazardous
waste in a cell
where no
biodegradable
waste is
accepted

Deposited in
brine cavity.

Group 4 comprises only

i. vitrified wastes and residues from thermal
processing of minerals where, in either case, the
residue is both fused and insoluble, and

ii. slag from waste incineration.

Group 5 comprises only

i. bottom ash and fly ash produced only from the
combustion of wood, of waste or of both

ii. bottom ash and fly ash from the combustion of
coal, of petroleum coke or of both, deposited in a
cell containing the product of that combustion
alone, and

iii. bottom ash and fly ash from the combustion of
coal, of petroleum coke or of both, burnt together
with biomass and deposited in a cell containing the
product of that combustion and burning alone.

Group 5 does not include fly ash from sewage
sludge, municipal, clinical and hazardous waste
incinerators.

Group 6 comprises only

i. calcium based reaction wastes from titanium
dioxide production

ii. calcium carbonate

iii. magnesium carbonate

iv. magnesium oxide

V. magnesium hydroxide

Vi. iron oxide

vii. ferric hydroxide

viii. aluminium oxide

iX. aluminium hydroxide x. zirconium dioxide.

Group 7 includes

i. calcium sulphate

ii. Gypsum

iii. calcium sulphate based plasters.

Group 7 does not include plasterboard.

48
Pack Page 72



Landfill Disposals Tax

APPENDIX 2: CONSULTATION RESPONSE FORM, INCLUDING
SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION QUESTIONS

Welsh Government
Consultation on: Landfill Disposals Tax (Number: WG24170)

Consultation Response Form

Name:

E-mail:

Telephone number:

Address:

Town:

Postcode:

Organisation (if responding
on behalf of that organisation):

49
Pack Page 73



Landfill Disposals Tax

Chapter 2: Tax Rates and Taxable Disposals

Question 1: How important is it that the Welsh Government maintains consistency
with the UK Government and Scottish Government on Landfill Tax rates and why?

Question 2: Are the current standard and lower tax rates (explained in paragraph
2.2) set at an appropriate level for Wales? Please explain your response.

Question 3: Is there value in the Welsh Government having the ability to set
different lower rates of tax (explained in paragraph 2.10 - 2.11) and why?

50
Pack Page 74




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 4: Are there any changes to the list of materials qualifying for the lower tax
rate (Appendix 1) that should be considered, and on what basis?

Question 5: What would be the practical implications of introducing a threshold to
define ‘a small quantity’ of non-qualifying waste in a load of qualifying material ?

Question 6: Would you support the introduction of a Welsh Loss on Ignition (Lol)
test when Landfill Tax is devolved? Please explain your reasons.

51
Pack Page 75




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 7: Are there any problems with the existing arrangements for defining the
area in which a taxable disposal takes place, and if so, how might these be
resolved?

Question 8: In your view, are there any issues with the current arrangements for
credit for landfill material permanently removed from a landfill site and if so, how
might these be addressed?

Question 9: What would be the practical implications of legislating on the basis that
all material entering a landfill site (other than that which is specifically exempt) is
subject to tax?

52
Pack Page 76




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 10: What activities would you expect to be exempt (not subject to tax) and
why?

Question 11: Do you have any other suggestions for how we might clarify the
taxable and non-taxable activities on a landfill site and what would be the practical
implications of these?

Question 12: Do you think that any of the current exemptions should be removed or
modified? Please explain your response.

53
Pack Page 77




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 13: Is there a case for removing or modifying the water discount relief?
Please explain your response.

Question 14: Do you think there is a case for introducing any new exemptions or
reliefs, and if so, what should they be and why?

Chapter 3: Compliance and Enforcement

Question 15: What would be the practical implications of placing an obligation on
landfill site operators to use a weighbridge where one is functional and available on
the landfill site or within close proximity of the site, with a corresponding penalty for
failure to do so?

54
Pack Page 78



Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 16: What would be the practical implications of extending the definition of
landfill sites to include illegal deposits of waste within the scope of the tax?

Question 17: Are there any issues with the current penalty regime and if so, how
might they be addressed?

Question 18: Is there a need for increased compliance activity on the ground, rather
than desk-based? If yes, please explain your view and provide evidence/explain the
benefits where possible.

55
Pack Page 79



Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 19: Are there any further actions the Welsh Government might take to use
its new tax powers to improve compliance and enforcement and minimise the impact

of Landfill Disposals Tax evasion? If yes, please describe what those actions could
be?

Question 20: In your view, is there evidence of tax avoidance within the existing
Landfill Tax, and what is the nature of this?

Chapter 4: Administration

Question 21: Would you support aligning the tax return period with the financial
year? Please explain your reasons.

56
Pack Page 80




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 22: What would be the practical implications of making it a requirement
that European Waste Catalogue codes are used in completion of the tax return?

Question 23: How might the Welsh Government simplify and modernise the filing of
tax returns including improving electronic and online support?

Question 24: Should bad debt relief be offered and if so, in what circumstances is it
appropriate?

57
Pack Page 81




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 25: Have you any comments on the operation of the current internal
reviews and appeals provisions in a Landfill Tax context, including in particular the
people eligible to seek a review or appeal?

Question 26: In your view, are there any exceptional circumstances in which
taxpayers might be able to postpone payment of Landfill Disposals Tax until the
conclusion of their appeal?

Chapter 5: Community Wellbeing

Question 27: Should Welsh Government allocate a proportion of Landfill Disposals
Tax revenue to enhance the wellbeing of communities?

58
Pack Page 82




Landfill Disposals Tax

Question 28: If the Welsh Government allocates a proportion of Landfill Disposals
Tax revenue to enhance community wellbeing, which of the following activities
should benefit from funding, and why?

- Supporting compliance and enforcement and minimising the impact of waste
crime

- Supporting waste minimisation and the diversion of waste from landfill

- Biodiversity initiatives and wider environmental improvements

- Tackling poverty and deprivation in communities

- Other (please specify)

Question 29: Do you have any thoughts on the possible administrative model?

59
Pack Page 83




Landfill Disposals Tax

Additional Questions

Question 30: Do you have any related issues which we have not specifically
addressed or other comments that you would like to make?

Question 31: Do you have any comments on the initial Regulatory Impact
Assessment?

Publication of responses
Responses to consultations may be made public - on the internet or in a report.

Normally the name and address (or part of the address) of its author are published
along with the response, as this helps to show the consultation exercise was carried

out properly.

If you would prefer your name and address not to be published, please tick here:

Returning this form D

The closing date for replies is 19 May 2015.

60
Pack Page 84



Landfill Disposals Tax

Please send this completed form to us by post to:

Tax Policy and Legislation Division
2" Floor East

Welsh Government

Cathays Park

Cardiff, CF10 3NQ

or e-mail to: FinancialReformMailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If you are sending your response by e-mail, please mark the subject matter:
Consultation on Landfill Disposals Tax

61
Pack Page 85


mailto:FinancialReformMailbox@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Landfill Disposals Tax

APPENDIX 3: GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Defra

ECHR

e-doc

EU

EWC

GAAR

GOWA

HMRC

Lol

LCF

NRW

OBR

RIA

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
European Convention on Human Rights

Electronic Duty of Care

European Union

European Waste Codes

General Anti-Avoidance Rule/General Anti-Abuse Rule
Government Act Wales

Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs

Loss on Ignition

Landfill Communities Fund

Natural Resources Wales

Office of Budget Responsibility

Regulatory Impact Assessment

62
Pack Page 86



Landfill Disposals Tax

APPENDIX 4: INITIAL REGULATORY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

BACKGROUND

1.

The Wales Act 2014 provided for the disapplication of the UK Government’s
Landfill Tax in Wales and conferred powers on the National Assembly for Wales
to introduce a replacement tax on disposals to landfill.

The Welsh Government has decided to introduce Landfill Disposals Tax to
replace Landfill Tax in Wales from April 2018. Its development will allow Wales to
design and deliver arrangements that are better suited to Welsh circumstances
and priorities. The Minister for Finance and Government Business has already
set out the principles which will underlie Landfill Disposals Tax, these will ensure
that it:

¢ s fair to the businesses and individuals who pay them;

e is simple, with clear rules, aiming to minimise compliance and
administration costs;

e supports growth and jobs, and in turn will help tackle poverty; and

e provides stability and certainty for taxpayers.

The Welsh Government is in the very early stages of developing Landfill
Disposals Tax. This consultation is open and wide-reaching, and considers the
fullest range of options. It seeks views on a number of aspects of the tax
including:

o Tax Rates and Taxable Disposals, particularly addressing aspects of the
existing tax which may be confusing or cause uncertainties
Compliance and Enforcement, tackling tax evasion and avoidance
Simplifying and modernising the administration of the tax, enabling it to
operate more efficiently, minimising the burdens on business

e Whether and how a proportion of the Landfill Disposals Tax revenue may
be used to enhance community wellbeing

. The existing Landfill Tax is complex and the Welsh Government is aware of the

interdependencies between the different aspects of the tax. There are a number
of variables that will affect costs, benefits (and dis-benefits) and these will
emerge more clearly as a result of this consultation.

The Welsh Government recognises that there may well be trade-offs between the
objectives of securing tax revenue for public funding, supporting jobs and growth,
enhancing community wellbeing and protecting the environment. The Welsh
Government is seeking to maximise the benefits delivered and to avoid any
disproportionately adverse impacts.

Landfill Disposals Tax will affect a broad range of interests; key stakeholders

include: businesses, regulators, communities and the Third Sector. The Welsh
Government has already undertaken preliminary discussions with a wide range
of interested organisations and individuals in order to help shape its proposals.

63
Pack Page 87



Landfill Disposals Tax

This approach will continue throughout the consultation period with a variety of
stakeholder engagement events planned.

CONTEXT

7. The purpose of a Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) is to show the costs and
benefits of each proposal, and to use it as an evidence base to demonstrate why
the chosen policy option was selected.

8. The Wales Act 2014 confers competence on the National Assembly in relation to
taxation on disposals to landfill made in Wales. This means that the Welsh
Government may decide whether to introduce a replacement tax, one option
could be to do nothing.

9. Chapter 1 of this consultation sets out the case for introducing a replacement tax.
The Welsh Government intends to introduce Landfill Disposals Tax to replace
Landfill Tax in Wales because the negative financial and policy implications of not
doing so would be significant.

10. At this early stage in the development of Landfill Disposals Tax, the Welsh
Government is seeking views on a number of different proposals that will be used
to inform its policy decisions at a later date.

11.The scale of costs and/or benefits that may be generated by implementing
Landfill Disposals Tax depends on the policy option taken. As such for the
purposes of this consultation the Welsh Government has set out an initial
summary of the implications they may have on stakeholders at Table 4.

12.Your thoughts are welcome on whether all the costs, benefits and dis-benefits
have been captured. The Welsh Government would welcome any supporting
evidence you are able to provide to support or challenge the proposals in this
consultation and their implications on stakeholders.

13. A full Regulatory Impact Assessment for Landfill Disposals Tax will be completed
prior to the introduction of legislation expected to be after the Assembly elections
in May 2016. The responses received from this consultation will be used to inform
this. It will consider the likely impact of the tax on the Welsh public, key
stakeholders and the Welsh economy.

64
Pack Page 88



Landfill Disposls Tax

Table 4: Summary Initial RIA

Tax Rates and Taxable Disposals

Key » Waste producers

stakeholders » Waste and resource management companies

(bearers of » Local authorities

costs and » Landfill site operators

benefits) » UK Government/HMRC

Options with » Increase or reduce tax rates

(major) costs » Changes to the list of Qualifying Materials
» Changes to definition of what is taxable (area and activity)
» Introduction of Loss on Ignition test
» Changes to exemptions and reliefs

Options with
(major) benefits

YVVYYYV

Increase or reduce tax rates

Changes to the list of Qualifying Materials

Changes to definition of what is taxable (area and activity)
Introduction of Loss on Ignition test

Changes to exemptions and reliefs

Sources of
information on
costs and
benefits

\ A7

Landfill site operators

Representative bodies for:
o The waste and resources industry
o Business
o Major landowners

Natural Resources Wales
National and Local Governments

Compliance and Enforcement

Key » Landfill site operators

stakeholders » Local authorities

(bearers of » Natural Resources Wales

costs and » Fire and Rescue services

benefits) » Landowners and communities
» Waste and resource management companies
» Public Health Wales

Options with Changes to criminal and civil penalties

(major) costs

Y V VY

Increased compliance activity (boots on the ground)
Extension of the definition of landfill sites to include illegal

65
Pack Page 89




Landfill Disposls Tax

deposits of waste within the scope of the tax

Options with » Changes to criminal and civil penalties
(major) benefits » Increased compliance activity (boots on the ground)
» Extension of the definition of landfill sites to include illegal
deposits of waste within the scope of the tax
Sources of » Landfill site operators
information on » Representative bodies for:
costs and o The waste and resources industry
benefits o Business
o Major landowners
» Natural Resources Wales
» National and Local Governments
Administration
Key » Landfill site operators
stakeholders » Welsh Revenue Authority
(bearers of » Natural Resources Wales
costs and
benefits)
Options with » Aligning the invoice period
(major) costs » Adopting the use of the European Waste Catalogue codes
» Online filing
» Maintaining, ceasing or reducing bad debt relief
» Resolution of tax disputes
Options with » Aligning the invoice period
(major) benefits » Adopting the use of the European Waste Catalogue codes
» Electronic filing
» Resolution of tax disputes
Sources of » Landfill site operators
information on » Environmental and commercial consultants
costs and » Natural Resources Wales
benefits » National and Local Governments
Community Wellbeing
Key » Key beneficiaries such as Environmental and Distributive
stakeholders Environmental Bodies, Third Sector, and community
(bearers of organisations
costs and » Entrust
benefits) » Landfill site operators
» Local authorities

66
Pack Page 90




Landfill Disposls Tax

Options with » Stopping or changing the focus and/or administration of the
(major) costs fund

Note: Costs unlikely to be major in cash terms given the likely size
of a scheme. However, the removal of a tax credit scheme could
remove funding entirely from some types of projects.

Options with » Stopping or changing the focus and/or the administration of
(major) benefits the fund

Note: Benefits unlikely to be major in cash terms given the likely
size of a scheme. However, the continuation of a scheme may have
relatively large benefits to organisations with little other funding.

Sources of » Entrust
information on » Key beneficiaries/ Environmental and Distributive
costs and Environmental Bodies
benefits » Natural Resources Wales
» National and Local Governments
» Landfill site operators

OTHER IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

14.

A series of specific impact tests on the policy proposals to develop Landfill
Disposals Tax will be considered as part of the full Regulatory Impact Assessment.
In your responses, the Welsh Government would particularly welcome your views
on the potential beneficial and negative impacts (including costs) of the proposals
set out in this consultation on the following:

Small Business

15.

16.

17.

The current Landfill Tax is a tax that is levied on businesses; it has positively
influenced businesses to review their waste management and move towards
greater prevention, re-use, recycling and recovery of waste.

Whilst landfill site operators pay Landfill Tax, they ‘pass on’ these costs to the waste
carriers disposing of waste at their sites, and the carriers in turn pass on the cost to
the waste producers.

Therefore a range of businesses may be affected by the introduction of Landfill
Disposals Tax. Wherever possible the Welsh Government will be seeking to
minimise burdens on businesses and minimise compliance and administration
costs. The Welsh Government also appreciates that businesses require long-term
stability and certainty on which to base their business plans and investments.

Voluntary sector

18.

A fund to support local community and environment projects within the vicinity of a
landfill site is also provided for through the current UK Government’s Landfill Tax.
The Landfill Communities Fund (LCF) is a tax credit scheme that enables landfill
site operators to contribute a proportion of their tax liability to eligible projects.

67
Pack Page 91




Landfill Disposls Tax

Projects in Wales, the majority of which were managed by the voluntary sector,
received close to £4m from the UK LCF fund in 2013-14.

19. Chapter Five of this consultation refers to the options being considered on whether
and how Landfill Disposals Tax should be used to enhance community wellbeing.
The continuation of a scheme may have relatively large benefits to organisations
with little other funding, likewise, the removal of a scheme could remove funding
entirely from some types of projects.

Equality

20. The Government of Wales Act (section 108(6) (c) GOWA 2006) states that a Bill will
not be within legislative competence of the National Assembly for Wales if it is
incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR).

21. The areas in the ECHR relevant to tax consist of a number of Articles setting out
basic principles of human rights. The principal Articles which are being considered
as part of the Tax Collection and Management (Wales) Bill for devolved taxes are:

¢ Article 1 of the First Protocol which protects the right to property.

¢ Article 6 which guarantees the right to a fair trial in the determination of civil
obligations and affords further rights where a person is charged with a
criminal offence.

¢ Article 8 which requires respect for private and family life.

e Article 14 which prohibits discrimination.

22. The Welsh Government will consider ECHR with regard to its specific policy
proposals for Landfill Disposals Tax; this may have particular relevance for the
proposed arrangements for exemptions and reliefs, penalties and appeals.

23. In considering if there is any differential impact for Gender and Gender
Reassignment, Religion and Belief and Non-Belief, Sexual Orientation, Pregnancy
and Maternity, Civil Partnerships and Race, the Welsh Government has determined
that there is no evidence to indicate a differential impact to any of these protected
groups.

Privacy

24. The Welsh Government has considered a Privacy Impact Assessment and the
Information Rights Unit has confirmed that a full Privacy Impact Assessment is not
required at this stage.

Rights of the child

25.Having explored the Articles, the Welsh Government considers that, at this stage in
the policy development, there are no identified issues in this legislation but further
consideration will be given as the policy develops.

68
Pack Page 92



Landfill Disposls Tax

Rural

26.The Welsh Government has considered an early Rural Proofing Checklist and been
informed that an assessment is not required at this stage. Further assessment,
taking into account consultation responses and policy development will be carried
out at a later date

Welsh language

27.There is no evidence to suggest that the existing Landfill Tax has a negative impact
on the Welsh language and therefore introducing a comparable replacement Welsh
tax should not have a negative impact either. The Welsh Government would expect
the Welsh Revenue Authority, as a non-Ministerial Government Department, to fully
meet the Welsh Language Standards®.

28. Chapter Five of this consultation refers to the options being considered on whether
and how Landfill Disposals Tax could be used for community wellbeing. In
developing proposals, consideration will be given to the impact on the Welsh
language and Welsh speaking communities.

Competition assessment

29.There are two stages to the Competition Assessment. The first is a short filter that
assesses whether there is a risk of a significant detrimental effect on competition.
The table below summarises the competition filter results at this stage. This will be
revisited as the policy develops.

30. At this stage the second stage of the competition assessment is not required.

The competition filter test

Question Answer
yes or no
Q1: In the market(s) affected by the new No

regulation, does any firm have more than
10% market share?

Q2: In the market(s) affected by the new No
regulation, does any firm have more than
20% market share?

Q3: In the market(s) affected by the new No
regulation, do the largest three firms
together have at least 50% market share?

Q4: Would the costs of the regulation affect No
some firms substantially more than others?
Q5: Is the regulation likely to affect the No

market structure, changing the number or
size of businesses/organisation?

Bhttp://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.org/English/Law/welshlanguagemeasure2011/standards/Pages/homestandards.a
Spx

69
Pack Page 93



Landfill Disposls Tax

The competition filter test

Question Answer
yes or no
Q6: Would the regulation lead to higher set- No

up costs for new or potential suppliers that
existing suppliers do not have to meet?

Q7: Would the regulation lead to higher No
ongoing costs for new or potential suppliers
that existing suppliers do not have to meet?

Q8: Is the sector characterised by rapid No
technological change?
Q9: Would the regulation restrict the ability No

of suppliers to choose the price, quality,
range or location of their products?

POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW

31. Itis anticipated that the legislation will be reviewed two years after it comes into
force or sooner, if the need arises.

Question 31: Do you have any comments on the initial Regulatory Impact
Assessment?

70
Pack Page 94




Pack Page 95



Ag en d a Ite m 3 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 100



Y Pwyligor CylidAgr@iadianttes 4
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

Finance Committee Inquiry into the Collection and Management
of Devolved Taxes in Wales

Introduction

1. The WLGA welcomes the opportunity to give evidence to the Finance Committee.
We will respond to the detailed questions below but, as we did when we
responded to the recent White Paper, it is important that we set out our general
position in respect to the new tax environment, and the importance of controlling
resources close to communities, where this is best to do so. Much of our
response to the Finance Committee’s questions underline the expertise which
Local Government brings as a local tax administrator.

WLGA'’s general position in the new tax environment

2. An essential part of our vision is that local government should have maximum
freedom and flexibility to control the resources needed to deliver services locally
to communities. The tax raising powers which local government already
possesses are a key feature of the resource landscape at the local level and are a
key element in our vision for greater local control of resources.

3. The WLGA would argue that in the new tax management environment, local
democratic responsibility for taxation remains a key feature. Just as there is
recognition in the Welsh Government’s (WG) consultation proposals that the new
devolved taxes should be brought together, there must equally be recognition of
the link between nationally devolved taxes and their administration with the
management and control of local taxation. Gerry Holtham’s paper to the
Institute of Welsh Affairs! recognised the strategic links between locally collected
property taxes, newly devolved taxes and taxes that have the potential to be
devolved.

4. The WLGA has welcomed invitations already made to participate in the Tax
Advisory Group and our officers are contributing constructively in other fora.
We believe that there is a need for Local Government to have a close
relationship with the WRA and a means for high level and meaningful interaction
with the new body. We will address each of the Committee’s questions in turn.

1|WA Senedd Paper 2: Taxation in Wales, Spring 2014 (http://www.iwa.org.uk/en/publications/view/233)

Pack Page 113


http://www.iwa.org.uk/en/publications/view/233

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

Who do you think should be responsible for the collection
of Welsh taxes?

5. In our response to the White Paper we set out a series of principles for any tax
system:

Minimise leakage and avoidance

Maximise collection

Minimise burdens on businesses / taxpayers
Minimise complexity

Minimise administration costs

®Q0TO

6. One of the main features of a new system for these taxes is that the
administrative costs should be kept as low as possible so that as much of the tax
receipts as possible are used to fund services. This is also linked to an ability to
keep collection rates high (and improving) over time. A track record in both
these areas should be a precondition of any organisation that takes up this role
in the future. Processes should be automated wherever possible and there
should be a single registration process for taxpayers or their agents.

7. In the initial years there should be no significant differences in cost to taxpayer
between England and Wales given the porous nature of a relatively long border
(this is particularly relevant to Landfill Tax). There should be minimal change
from existing practice from taxpayers’ experience (except where improvements
can be made) to ensure smooth transition.

8. Our default position is simple: Local authorities in Wales are best placed to
collect and manage devolved taxes. They already have systems in place to
undertake the management and collection of taxes and/or sundry debtor
accounts

9. There is no up-to-date contemporaneous cost benchmarking data. However the
last time that an exercise was carried out by CIPFA in 2011, the costs of
collecting CT and NNDR were significantly lower in Wales than England.

10.The track record of local authorities in Wales in collecting taxes and income due
is good. Collection rates for council tax are at historic highs. Compared to
unitary authorities in England and Scotland collection rates here are higher.
Outstanding debt is falling and revenues practitioners are constantly striving to
improve their service.

Pack Page 114



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

11.Unfortunately, there are a number of factors that mitigate against local
authorities putting forward a proposal to undertake the management and
collection of Welsh devolved taxes at the current time:

e The future shape of local government is not yet determined, but the
transition process will encompass April 2018 when the Welsh devolved
taxes become operational. The degree of uncertainty means that it is
extremely difficult for individual authorities to commit to new
responsibilities from 2018;

e Timescales have not allowed for the development of a sufficiently robust
proposal with all of the consultation that this would require. Councils are
focused on achieving balanced budgets for 2015-16 and implementing
savings plans. The level and scale of cuts that need to be addressed
means that there is not the capacity at the senior level required to give
this proposition the serious consideration needed within the timescales
available;

e A detailed process map would need to be developed which sets out all the
steps involved, what can be provided within current systems and what
needs to be developed separately;

¢ Discussions would need to take place at an all-Wales level at both political
and officer fora to agree whether one or more authorities should seek to
provide these services, and which authority(ies) this should be;

e Further work would be required with the authority(ies) to discuss the
details of how this might work and to provide robust estimates of the
potential costs involved.

Should Welsh taxes be collected by one organisation or different
taxes collected by different organisations?

12.There is a case for taxes being collected by different organisations so long as
they are the most effective at doing so. We mentioned above that Welsh local
authorities perform well in a UK context but there is inevitably a degree of
variation across the 22 authorities, it may shape the type of model that is
adopted, for example given the low level of transactions it could be done by one
authority nationally, or by one authority in each region. What is clear is that one
or more local authorities could play a significant role in the management and
collection of newly devolved taxes given that they already collect £1,300m in
Council Tax, £895m in NNDR and similar levels in sundry debtors.

Pack Page 115



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

13. Further work would be required with local authorities to discuss the details of
how this might work.

How can the experience and expertise of organisations which
already collect some taxes in Wales, such as Local Authorities and

HMRC, be utilised?

14. Local authorities have experienced staff with relevant qualifications from the
Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation (IRRV) who have practical experience
in all aspects of collection, minimisation of tax avoidance, revenue leakage and
managing outstanding debt. Experienced staff would ensure a smooth transition
and utilising existing systems would keep costs to a minimum. Obviously HMRC
similarly have a vast amount of experience in these areas also.

15.There are a number of ways of harnessing this expertise as the new systems for
the collection and management of devolved taxes are developed including
involving these organisations and their staff in early discussions or inviting them
to join project groups through to arranging secondments for key roles.

How can the collection of Welsh taxes be future-proofed — should
solutions be such that they can be adapted to accommodate

future taxation changes?

16.1t is difficult to envisage in detail what future changes there may be to the tax
system beyond the current proposals. The organisations, systems and processes
put in place to manage and collect the taxes that are to be devolved currently
need to be flexible enough to allow them to be adapted to encompass any

further devolution of taxes.

17.Radical changes to the system of local property taxation have been well
managed by local authorities and authorities are willing to work with Welsh

Government in order to share this expertise.

18.The Council Tax revaluation in Wales in 2005 was managed extremely well by
Welsh Local Authorities and the billing systems were flexible enough to cope with

the significant number of dwellings that changed band.
19.Over recent years there have been numerous initiatives affecting Business Rates

that have been introduced by Central Government that have required software
changes as a wider variety of reliefs have become available. Recent examples in

Pack Page 116



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

the Retail Relief Scheme, the Open for Business Scheme, the New Development
Scheme and the Small Business Rate Relief Scheme.

20.1In the instances above Welsh Government and Welsh Local Authorities have
worked together to ensure that these Policy decisions have been successfully
implemented in a timely and cost effectiveness manner.

How do you think Welsh taxes can be collected in such a way that
service standards remain at a consistent level?

21.As mentioned above, the minimisation of complexity, utilisation of existing
expertise and automated processes will all contribute towards maintaining
service standards in terms of tax collection.

22.From the taxpayer perspective, the system should be simple as possible in terms
of registration, calculation and payment of tax to encourage compliance. All
taxpayers should have a consistent, high quality experience that is transparent
and predictable.

23.A phased approach to significant change will minimise any reduction in collection
rates, as will working closely with existing providers and avoiding significant
differences from the English regime, given the porous nature of the border,
particularly in relation to Landfill Tax.

Do you have any other comments relating to this inquiry which
are not specifically addressed above?

24.We agree that a Welsh Revenue Authority (WRA) will need to be established as
these taxes are devolved. Our view is that the WRA will become a key player in
our financial landscape and will have substantial powers available to it. We
believe that the new body should be independent of the Welsh Government and
that there is strong accountability to National Assembly. In our response to the
consultation on the White Paper, we pointed out that a decision to go with the
preferred approach should be fully tested against the benefit of alternative
models. We note, for example, that in some responses to a similar consultation
by the Scottish Government that a Revenues Commissioner was proposed by
some.

Pack Page 117



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P1

25.The devolution of these taxes does provide an opportunity for a more coherent
approach to all taxation in Wales, as put forward by Gerry Holtham'’s paper cited
above. There may be a role for the WRA, perhaps advisory in nature, to keep
overview of all property taxes in Wales and in examining and developing
different approaches to National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and Council Tax,
while recognising and retaining the local decision-making in terms of Council Tax
rates is the cornerstone of local democratic accountability.

26.1t is important that the size of the authority and its costs are proportionate to the
scale of the taxes that are devolved to Wales, although we recognise that there
is @ minimum size and cost to establishing the authority. We also recognise that
whatever is established needs to be suitable for the potential for devolution of
further taxes.

Author: Mari Thomas (029 2046 8632)
Email: mari.thomas@wlga.gov.uk
Cleared by: Councillor Aaron Shotton, Spokesperson for Finance & Resources

Pack Page 118


mailto:mari.thomas@wlga.gov.uk

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 119



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P2

Agenda ltem 5

FSB Wales

Collection and
management of
devolved taxes
in Wales

14 April 2015

Pack Page 126



Finance Committee Inquiry into Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales
FSB Wales

FSB Wales welcomes the opportunity to present its views to the Finance Committee on the
Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales. FSB Wales is the authoritative
voice of businesses in Wales. With 10,000 members, a Welsh Policy Unit, two regional
committees and twelve branch committees; FSB Wales is in constant contact with business
at a grassroots level. It undertakes regular online surveys of its members as well as a
biennial membership survey on a wide range of issues and concerns facing small business.

The Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales

1.0 Introduction

1.1 In developing our response to this consultation we have drawn upon evidence from our
regular surveys of members, the workshops we undertook to inform our response to
Part One of the Silk Commission, and a survey we undertook specifically on tax
collection and management in September 2013.

1.2 Our September 2013 survey of FSB members in Wales showed that on average our
members spend between £1,001 and £3,000 per year on professional fees, software
costs and staff time managing the payment of taxes. This is a significant cost to small
businesses. It is crucial that the Finance Committee fully consider the implications of
arrangements for the collection and management of devolved taxation for small
businesses as part of its review.

1.3 We believe that the mechanisms adopted in Wales, as a result of the devolution of
taxation set out in the Wales Act 2014, should not place additional reporting burdens on
small businesses in Wales.

1.4 It should be recognised that many small business owners might, as an objection,
highlight the need to pay taxes to two (HMRC and Welsh Revenue Authority) bodies. In
shaping this response FSB Wales has been mindful of the benefits of localised taxation
on the one hand and the need to address these concerns over increased administration
on the other. We are also keen to ensure that the wider principles of better regulation
and good governance are observed in this and in all policy areas.

2
Pack Page 127



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

Who do you think should be responsible for the collection of Welsh taxes?

FSB Wales supports the establishment of a Welsh Revenue Authority as a Non-
Ministerial Department, as proposed by Welsh Government in its White Paper in
2014. This follows the Scottish Government’s decision to set up Revenue Scotland in
response to the devolution of taxes, which our colleagues in FSB Scotland have also
supported. As we have previously indicated however, a Welsh Revenue Authority
should only be created following a full evaluation of the likely cost and of any
alternative mechanisms.

FSB Wales believes that the Welsh Revenue Authority should be directly accountable
to the National Assembly for Wales, and that the Finance Committee is the
appropriate committee to scrutinise the Authority. The Finance Committee should,
if necessary, be given additional expert advice to undertake this function.

The Board of the Welsh Revenue Authority should include someone who has an SME
perspective, as a large number of SMEs would likely come into contact with it. This
appointment would help ensure that the new Authority takes strategic decisions in
such a way that considers their impact on this sector.

Should Welsh taxes be collected by one organisation or different taxes collected by
different organisations?

FSB Wales argues that the collection and payment of taxes in Wales should be as
streamlined as possible. Our September 2013 survey of members indicated that the
process of the payment of taxes by small businesses, which typically do not have
dedicated finance teams, is a significant time commitment.

NoRimelztzll 12%
AroundELhourEach@nonth 18%
2Fo@BEhours 26%

4toBEhours 13%

6FoBthours 11%

2@lays 6%

3@oB@ays 3%

6@aysBriAnore 2%

Unsure 9%

Source: September 2013 FSB Member Survey (Base 2,190)

The establishment of a single Welsh Revenue Authority would have noticeable
benefits in limiting the administrative burden on small businesses. This relates to

3
Pack Page 128



3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

both of the Welsh taxes that will replace Stamp Duty Land Tax and Landfill Tax, as
well as any taxes that may subsequently be devolved.

Our 2013 survey of members on the collection and management of taxation also
showed that after cash flow problems, the most significant reasons for the late
payment of taxes arise from communication difficulties, such as understanding what
is required and confusion of payment dates.

The collection and management of taxes in Wales, beginning with the two new
Welsh taxes, by a single authority is an opportunity to limit confusion. The new
Authority however, must ensure it effectively communicates with taxpayers.

How can the experience and expertise of organisations which already collect some
taxes in Wales, such as Local Authorities and HMRC, be utilised?

It is important that Welsh Local Authorities and HMRC are fully engaged in managing
the transition period for transferring responsibility for the collection of Stamp Duty
Land Tax and Landfill Tax to a Welsh Revenue Authority. There is an identifiable
administrative risk in the transfer from one responsible authority to another, and the
impact of this can be best mitigated if existing authorities fully engage with the
transition arrangements.

The FSB believes that the Welsh Revenue Authority should exist as a ‘shadow
authority’ for a period of time prior to its taking responsibility for the two new Welsh
taxes from April 2018, to enable its management and staff to work closely with
existing authorities in handling the transition, to ensure any ICT problems are
eliminated, and to avoid any issues that might lead to a short term confusion
amongst small businesses in Wales around the payment of taxes.

How can the collection of Welsh taxes be future-proofed — should solutions be such
that they can be adapted to accommodate future taxation changes?

The Welsh Revenue Authority should be established in full recognition that further
taxes are likely to be devolved to Wales over the next five to ten years. The
Authority should also be prepared to take responsibility for other Welsh taxes that
Welsh Government may subsequently bestow upon it, such as business rates, as this
could lead to a more streamlined process for the collection and management of
taxes in Wales.

FSB Wales believes that the Welsh Revenue Authority should have enshrined in it at

its outset a duty to conduct Tax Impact Assessments ahead of any future taxation
changes. These Tax Impact Assessments can be used to inform the debate around

4
Pack Page 129



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

any future tax decisions taken by Welsh Government, particularly around the impact
on the SME sector.

How do you think Welsh taxes can be collected in such a way that service standards
remain at a consistent level?

Our most recent survey of members specifically relating to the collection and
management of taxes undertaken in September 2013 highlighted a series of
concerns relating to small business taxation, and related specifically to HMRC. Our
survey also asked FSB Wales members to rank their priorities for new services or
service improvements. The following table highlights the findings.

Reduce@he@Emount@®f@imedtEakes@oRontactEinEHMRCRdvisornEheielephonel 37%
AllowRjueriesEoe@skedEnd@esolved@ia@Emailkl 33%
Provide@®neRax@eferenceBhumberFor@I BB usiness's@axes? 22%
Improve@he@ppearancendRase@®fEhavigation®Df@he@EHMRCAvebsitel 21%
Improve@heltlarity®finformation@vailable®nEheBHMRCAvebsitel 19%
AllowB\LLFormsEobeRompleted@ndBubmitted@nlinel 17%
Allow®@jueries@oeskedznd@esolved@ia®nline@hat 16%
Provide@@iedicated@HMRCEusiness@honeline@®ossistAn@ax@alculations 13%
ProvideEnEHMRC@peratediayrollbureauBervicedordmall@businessesk 13%
ProvideBEn@nline®ool@®hatzllowsRaxHiability®oBEeRalculated@inder@ifferent@cenariosl 12%
IncreaseEwarenessDfEhe@rovision@olpay@axesibyEnonthlyEtanding@rder 12%
Provide&eal®@imehotification@vhen@aymentdsEeceivedibyEHMRCE 10%
ProvideEBtandardpayment@ateFor@lIEnnual®axes? 9%

Otherf 7%

Unsurel@ 12%

Source: September 2013 FSB Member Survey (Base 2,164)

FSB Wales believes that the Welsh Revenue Authority needs to improve on the
record of HMRC in providing information, guidance and support, and in responding
to individual concerns and complains. A duty to provide high levels of
responsiveness should be required of the Welsh Revenue Authority from the outset.

In its 2014 White Paper the Welsh Government stated that the Welsh Revenue
Authority might choose to delegate responsibilities for the collection of tax. We
believe that the Welsh Revenue Authority should maintain control of the collection
of taxes that it has responsibility for, as any delegation may complicate the process
of payment for small businesses in Wales.

Should delegation of tax collection take place, the Authority must ensure a
consistency of approach across Wales. Our research on regulatory issues has

5
Pack Page 130



highlighted consistence in approach from regulatory agencies as a key factor that
impacts on the day-to-day operation of small businesses in Wales®.

7.0 Do you have any other comments relating to this inquiry which are not specifically
addressed above?

7.1 The majority of our members have sought external help from an accountant, tax
advisor or book keeper in the payment of their taxes. Our September 2013 survey of
members showed that 77% (of 2,185 respondents) had used external professional
support in the payment of their taxes.

7.2 In developing its proposals for a Welsh Revenue Authority, we believe the Welsh
Government should seek to work with the external professional advice industry to
gather expert opinion on the establishment of the Authority.

' FSB Wales. 2014. Better Regulation for Wales [Online]. Available at:
http://www.fsb.org.uk/policy/rpu/wales/images/better%20regulation%20wales.pdf

6
Pack Page 131


http://www.fsb.org.uk/policy/rpu/wales/images/better%20regulation%20wales.pdf

Federation of Small Businesses Wales
1 Cleeve House

Lambourne Crescent

Llanishen

CARDIFF CF14 5GP

Telephone: 029 2074 7406
Email: policy.wales@fsb.org.uk
Web: www.fsb.org.uk/wales

The Federation of Small Businesses Wales

The FSB Wales is non-profit making and non-party political. The Federation of Small Businesses is the
UK's largest campaigning pressure group promoting and protecting the interests of the self-
employed and owners of small firms. Formed in 1974, it now has 200,000 members across 33
regions and 194 branches. FSB Wales currently has around 10,000 members, a Welsh Policy Unit,
two regional committees and twelve branch committees meaning FSB Wales is in constant contact
with small businesses at a grassroots level in Wales.

Lobbying

From the Press and Parliamentary Affairs Office in Cardiff, FSB Wales campaigns with AMs, MPs and
MEPs in Cardiff Bay, Westminster and Brussels in order to promote our members’ interests. FSB
Wales also works closely with local, regional and national media outlets to highlight our members’
concerns. Development Managers work alongside members in our regions to further FSB Wales
influence at a regional level. More widely, the FSB has Press and Parliamentary Offices in
Westminster, Glasgow, Belfast and Brussels to lobby the respective Governments.

Member Benefits

In addition, Member Services is committed to delivering a wide range of high quality, good value
business services to members of the FSB. These services will be subject to continuing review and will
represent a positive enhancement to the benefit of membership of the Leading Business
organisation in the UK.

Vision
A community that recognises, values and adequately rewards the endeavours of those who are self
employed and small business owners within the UK.

The Federation of Small Businesses is the trading name of the National Federation of Self Employed
and Small Businesses Limited. Our registered office is Sir Frank Whittle Way, Blackpool Business
Park, Blackpool, Lancashire, FY4 2FE. Our company number is 1263540 and our Data Protection Act
registration number is Z7356876. We are a non-profit making organisation and we have registered
with the Information Commissioner on a voluntary basis.

Associate Companies

We have three active subsidiary companies, FSB (Member Services) Limited (company number
02875304 and Data Protection Act registration number Z7356601), FSB Publications Limited
(company number 01222258 and Data Protection Act registration number 27315310) and FSB
Recruitment Limited. (company number 07836252 and Data Protection Act registration number
Z3131666).

7
Pack Page 132


mailto:policy.wales@fsb.org.uk
http://www.fsb.org.uk/wales

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 133



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 7

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 139



Y Pwyligor Cyllid / Finance Committee
FIN(4)-07-15 P4

Leighton Andrews AC / AM ( f?
Y Gweinidog Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus ;\/

Minister for Public Services .ﬁ)

Ein cyf/Our ref: LF/LA/0387/15
Llywodraeth Cymru

Jocelyn Davies AM Welsh Government

Chair, Finance Committee
National Assembly for Wales

M 2@ %y\{ (L April 2015

During my attendance at Committee on 25 March to give evidence on the Local
Government (Wales) Bill, | agreed to write to you with further information.

The Committee asked whether the Expressions of Interest in voluntary merger submitted by
Local Authorities contained information on the cost of preparing the submissions
themselves and the actual costs (and by implication savings) of voluntary merger.

The Expressions of Interest describe matters which the Authorities believe would have cost
implications in working up a merger proposal, but these are not costed. Only the
submission by Conwy and Denbighshire sets out specific costs and savings of voluntary
merger. | enclose a copy of my Written Ministerial Statement on 27 January, which includes
links to the Expressions of Interest published on the Local Authorities’ own websites.

The Committee also asked whether the Welsh Ministers have powers to merge Local
Government Pension Funds and for confirmation of the rules governing these funds.
Section 7 of the Superannuation Act 1972 provides for the superannuation of persons
employed in Local Government service. It confers on the Secretary of State a regulation-
making power in respect of pensions, allowances or gratuities. The Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, which apply in relation to England and Wales, have
been made in exercise of these powers. Functions under the Act have not been transferred
to the Welsh Ministers and, therefore, remain functions of the Secretary of State.

Finally, | enclose a copy of the ‘Staff Commission for Wales - Report to the Secretary of
State for Wales: September 1996, which | believe will be of interest to the Committee. In
particular, the Report records the concerns relayed to the Staff Commission (and the
predecessor Advisory Committee) about the appointment and re-grading of staff by the
existing local authorities during 1993 and 1994, prior to reorganisation (for example, see
paragraph 24 on page 8 of the Report).

Leighton Andre C/AM
Y Gweinidog Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus
Minister for Public Services

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
Caerdydd - Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Leighton.Andrews@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Pack Page 153




NI
s

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

WRITTEN STATEMENT
BY
THE WELSH GOVERNMENT

TITLE Voluntary Mergers: Update on Expressions of Interest Received
DATE 27 January 2015
BY Leighton Andrews AM, Minister for Public Services

My written statement on 11 December 2014 explained that | would delay announcing my
decision on each of the Expressions of Interest submitted by Local Authorities wishing to

develop a proposal for Voluntary Merger. | am announcing those decisions today.

| welcome the leadership shown by the political Leaders of each of the authorities
concerned and their willingness to help shape their futures. | understand that securing
agreement from their prospective partner councils took a good deal of work and personal

commitment.

| received three formal Expressions of Interest submitted in accordance with the timetable

set out in a Prospectus which | issued in September 2014*. These were from the following

authorities:
o Torfaen County Borough Council & Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council;
o Bridgend County Borough Council & Vale of Glamorgan Council; and

o Conwy County Borough Council & Denbighshire County Council.

1 Invitation to Principal Local Authorities in Wales to submit proposals for voluntary merger, Welsh

Government, 18 September 2014
Pack Page 1514



| have considered each Expression of Interest carefully against the criteria set out in the
Prospectus. | am disappointed to report that on the basis of this assessment | am not
persuaded that any one of these Expressions of Interest sufficiently meets the criteria for

moving ahead to prepare a full Voluntary Merger Proposal.

While there were some positive aspects to each Expression of Interest, the Prospectus was
clear on what would be required. This included the need for both applicant authorities to set
out a compelling vision for the new authority and to provide assurance that post merger
arrangements would reduce complexity and increase coherence and coterminosity of public
services. Where proposals diverged from our full preferred map (Williams Option 1),
authorities were expected to provide evidence of exceptional circumstances as to why they
should be approved. We also needed to have confidence that authorities would be able to

develop comprehensive merger proposals by 30 June 2015.

Earlier, | spoke with the Leaders of all the authorities involved to advise them of my decision
and will be writing to each one of them shortly setting out my reasons for each decision in

more detail.

As Members will be aware the Local Government (Wales) Bill was published yesterday. It
includes provisions to enable Voluntary Mergers to take place which would need to be
agreed by 30 November 2015. | will give further consideration to these provisions as the Bill

proceeds.

Note

The Expressions of Interest have been published by the councils involved and can be found
at:

Bridgend County Borough Council and the Vale of Glamorgan :
http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/a
genda_moderngov/115948.pdf&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=En|GVJLRLNCv7Ab400
HABQ&ved=0CBQOFjAA&uUsg=AFQ]CNHg6MXAIHZ8DITshyG92L4dKUBkbw

Pack Izage 155


http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/agenda_moderngov/115948.pdf&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=EnjGVJLRLNCv7Ab40oHABQ&ved=0CBQQFjAA&usg=AFQjCNHq6MXAlHZ8DITshyG92L4dKUBkbw
http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/agenda_moderngov/115948.pdf&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=EnjGVJLRLNCv7Ab40oHABQ&ved=0CBQQFjAA&usg=AFQjCNHq6MXAlHZ8DITshyG92L4dKUBkbw
http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/agenda_moderngov/115948.pdf&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=EnjGVJLRLNCv7Ab40oHABQ&ved=0CBQQFjAA&usg=AFQjCNHq6MXAlHZ8DITshyG92L4dKUBkbw

Conwy County Borough Council and Denbighshire County Council:

https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=134&MId=5052&LLL=0

Torfaen County Borough Council and Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council (draft
version):

http://moderngov.torfaen.qgov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=137&MId=1165&Ver=4&LLL=0

Pack Page 1536


https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5052&LLL=0
http://moderngov.torfaen.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=1165&Ver=4&LLL=0

ongToYOID,




A1rod annf SIN
HOH 12q0Y 1IN 1RLIR}RI008

(S661 & wo4f) xous] SLBN S
(s661 &y 01) uoiguijjoq 130y N K1B10109g

SIOMOJ, [ORYDIN I
UBSION UAMIF I

SOUOf LIA[F ST
Aa[moID) HIASS] I
nouudg 19394 IN SI9QUIDIA

g0 souof pAoy preyony 1S UBULITET)

SHTVM d0d NOISSTININOD AAVILS




()

oF - 65 SIZ[MOIID UOISSTIHIO)) -
Q¢ - 9¢ soalpuasaidal Jeis pue suorun opeiy, -
SE - ¢ syuowaSurlIe UOHRINSUOD -
JUISSY [eA0Y 101V *
€€ UOIIRIOUNWAI JO SSO[ 10} uonesuaduio) w
7€ - 0¢ Kouepunpal 103 uonesuadwo)) "
62 - LT UOTESIUBSI03I UO
S[I0M [EUOHIPPE JOJ JBIS 03 Siusuiie "
9C-¥C WLISIuT 9y Ut
Jurpeider pue sjuounjurodde gyeig %
€T-61 SIOpIO JOJSURI} JJBIS 2U) pue Jdn.lL .
Q1 -1 oRIIWIO)) AIOSIAPY 92U} JO 9101 oY ], "
sydeiSereg G 98eyg

NOISSTNINOD MOAVHS HH.L ANV
HILLININOD AOSIAQY HHL 40 MAOM HHL - OML HHIAVHD

€1-01 SIAQIALDY *

6-9 sy e

S-¢ 1X31u0)) "

4 drysioquiajy "

I UOHONPoONu] "
sydesZereg I o3¢

NOISSTIAWNOD A4VLS HHL 40 H'T0¥ HHL - ANO ¥HLJIVHD

LAOdHT HH.L

9181 JO AI€)0I00S Y} O] UOISSIWQRS S, UBULITRYD) A 98eqg

SINHINOD

Pack Page 159



(a1)

SYVINIULD NOISSTNINOD JO IST'T - T XUNNV T - 6€ s98eg

0Z1 - It

sydexSereg

ell
(41!
T1Y
011 - 801
LOT

sydeidereg

AUVSSOTO - T XHANNY LE 98eq

¢¢ 93eyg
SNOISITONOD - NHAFS JHLIJAVHD

sjuouweFueLIe 21NN "

9661 111dy 1 1oy sjuswoFuere sjeaddy N
Surjasunoo pue Suruiery,

9661 111dy 1 J9)JB UOYBIOPISUOD 10N
Iojsuern; oy} SULIOIUON

1€ 93eyq

9661 TMALV T YALAV SHLLIALLDV - XIS YHLdVHD

901
S01
P01 - 101

sydeiSeie

AouoBy JuswUOHAU Y3 0 SULLISISURT] JJRIS
SOULIOYINE 211} PAUIGUIO))
sanjrioe yied [euoneN

SHIFOY ¥HH.LO OL

62 98eg

ONTTYHISNVAL JAVILS INTANITAOD TVIOT - FAL YALIVHD

001 - 98
sydei3eieg

SHILIMOHLAV MAN THL NI A4VIS 40

NOILVIANNIRL ¥ INFWADVNVIA ‘NOLLVSINVOUO
(D () 0¥ NOLLDES - 4N10d YALIVHD

$8-¢€8
¢8-18
08-¢L
cL- 1L

0L
69 -99
$9-99

€9
79 - 6S
86 - LS
9¢ - €¢

(4%
Is-08
6% - 9%
SY-¥v
-1y

sydeiSeieg

SHOII03]3 AJLIOYINE MODEYS Y1 1YY
Buijosunod pue Juruiei],

sjeaddy

STUUIOSTIISADPE JOPIM ~

peis pooerdun,, pue  paoeyd,, Jo uoneIapIsuos -
SJuoWeTURLIE [BOO] -

[9A9] 1301130 Joryo mojaq sisod -

sysod 1901730 yOIUDO -

SANINOSXS JAIYD oy Jo jusunuiodde -
UOIIRIIPISHOD IOK

sjure[dwoo - sa1npaoord UoNO9[Is PUB JUSUNININA] -
o8enFuey ysiom -

sonruniioddo jenbs -

ssaoo1d spusunuiodde oy,

uonegaIgIesi(y

13pIO0 I9JSUBI] JIe1s oy,

STVAdIY ¥ NOLLVYIAISNOD dOTdd ‘NOLLLLAJINOD
‘NOILVOTIDOVSIA *ATASNVIL HOA ONNIVITU - ATIHL HJILAVHD

ST 93eq

€1 98eq




(a)

9661 1quNdag ¢

URULIIEY)
souof pAoy} paeyory

-juyod Jey e nok 03 310das
Areyuowojddns e juasord 03 Kressaoou 9q ABWI )] "L66T A[Nf [IIUN 9OUSISIXS UT UTRWAI [[Im
UOISSILULLOY) 9} UOLR[SITA] 913 Iopun Jey} IS{UT00I 0M JOAIMOH ‘podos [eury mo Jusserdar
A[3u1p1000E AR STUY, “991APE I0] SIOUOISSIWILIOD) Y} UO [fed ‘AUR JT S[HI 5q [{IM 21043 jey)
100dx9 | ‘9661 [dY | UO SONjHIOYINE AIRJIUN M3U 34} JO JUSWYSI[GRISI SY} 1243 SYIUOUW XIS
a9e1s SIQ1 1V €661 19quuaidog WOy sreak 99113 9y} UT 99IWO) AI0SIApY 10Ss009paxd
$I1 pUE UOISSIWIIOY) JJeIS 92Ul JO 1om oy uo jrodar siyy Judsaid 01 1nouoy oy} daey |

SO[EAA 0] 9IS JO AI1L10I03G
JdJA dnSeR WEI[IAL UOTY 1Y Y, 0],

Pack Page 161




upyiom jyeis pojeweSiRLIR 9q 03 919Mm YOIM sjuatiredop Suruueid jorsip pue Kjunoo
ur SUD{IOM JJe)S SE [[oM SE ‘SI0IAI0S [e1jud0 aptaoid 03 sistrenbpeay Kjuoyne [eooy ur
pofojduro jyejs oANeNSIUIWPE pUB [ROLIS[O 3SOYI 9q PNOM ZZ 0] Gf WOIJ S3pjLIoyjne
Jo requunu dy} ur woyonpar ayj 4q pejoegge Afjediound yes oy, rokojduws jo oFueyo e
AJuo 23 pinom (S104oea) pue SJURISISSE 2180 a[dwrexa 10J) uoneoso] refnonted e o ogoads
219m yorym sqol ur pakojduro Jye1g "SOI[IUIR] I10Y] PUE WIOY] I0] AJSIXUR DUE SSans JroIs
asned 01 pue saokojduwe JuowuIoaos [eoo] Auew jo oy yo wioned pue syadsord 193180
941 J09]Je O] PUTNIOQ SEM JUMJEU Ul [RIUSWEpUNY OS [earaydn ue pue ‘Ge6T [1idy | woiy
pouodisod useq Suiaey ‘9661 [1HdY [ UO 9010} OJUI SWOO O} SBM WAISAS MOU Jy),

‘sanuoyne
Arejiun mou 7z £q paSieyosip pue pagiow 9q 0} 9I9M SUOHOUNY 119y} [[B PUT [B}0} uI
P3YSIOGE 9q 0 9I9M ‘S[IDUNOD JOLISIP /€ Pue S[rounod Llunod g Sursudwos quowuionod
[B20] JO SI91) 0M} ZUIISIXD Y} Jel) SEM YIOM S UOISSIWWO)) IYI JO IXAIUOD Yy °¢

IXHALNOD

'Sannp s31 0
yoroidde s, uoissrrmo)) 2y 03 punoidoeq [0 e op1aoxd 03 19pIO Ul 93IUWO]) K1081ADY
9} JO SIoM oY) 07 S19§01 sow) je podar sty “ueSIOW uAmIg pue ‘Sauof afT ‘Kojmo1))
UTAQ] 910M UOISSIIIWIOY) 9Y) JO SIAqUISUI 391U} I9YI0 Y, "UITesy [[I 03 anp jusunuiodde
ST (}IM SNURUOD 0} J[qeun A[SIRUNLIOJUN SeM ‘SITAR( H (I “991IUIWIOD) OY} JO JOqUIdW
yunoy oyJ, uoIssiuwo) ay) o} pajurodde s1om ‘SIomOJ, [ORYOIN PUR JouUdg 13)9g
‘sauof pAo[T preyory NS voniwwo)) AIOSIAPY 9y} JO SIQUIOW INOJ oYY JO daIyf, ‘7

JdIHSHIININ

Tt (S97eAL) JUSWIUISA0D) [ROOT A1) JO Fuipeay jsig
YA €661 I9QUIDAON Q¢ U0 uedaq yorym ‘ssedord aane[sISa oyl 1noydnory; Junosoe
Ojul uoNe) orom siopewr Fuiyels eyl oInsuo 0} ¢66T Joquaidog ur dn jos uoaq pey
20NIWWOY) AIOSIAPY U, "SIONEW FulJelS U0 9oRIWwo) AIOSIAPY 8} JO YI0Mm oY) JO
uona[dwos oyy SuImorjo p66 1 THAY Z1 20UIS UOISSIUWOD) MOPEYS & St uonerado ur uo9q
Apeorfe pey 3] "s1eok 9011} Jo porrad B 10} JUASSY [BAOY SH POAISDRAI $66T 1OV (sorem)
TUSUWIUIA0D) [BD07] AU} 338 ‘b6 T AL G UO PIYSI[QRISI SeM UOISSIIIOD) JJBIS oy, |

NOILJONAOUINI

SHTVM d0A NOISSININOD
JIVLS HHL 40 dT10d HHL

HANO ddLdVHD




MU 3] JO SI90LJJO IOIUAS JO UOHRIOUNUISI PUE UONESIUBSIO oYl JO UOHRISPISUOD -

‘sanuoyine

aou oy yia sysod 1oy suonadwos ur uorreIapISoo 101id WOy HOISNIXS J19y) Aq

10 ‘SONIOYINE MBU SY) JO SUO 0} “SIIPIO IDJSUEI) U0 ‘JuauuTIsse 11ay) Aq passuigge
spenpiatput Aq speaddeynm Surpesp 10y Arsuryoews Jo Supojiuowt pue dn Sumges oy -

SuatusAog [eoo] ut pakojdwa Apuormo oydoad o1 Jo s1sas3Ur 94 UL ‘sonLIOYINE
MU Y} pPuE PIo 3] YIoq Aq JJRIS JO JUSUIINIONI IOAO S[OIJUOD JO OSIDIOXD oY) -

‘posuduwrod JusWIOA0S [BO0] JO SINJONNS MOU 9Y] O] P[O dY} WIOX UOHISURN
oY1 0] UOUNQHIIUOD S UOISSIWWIOD) Y} ‘A[prOIg "Sn 210Jaq YSB) Y} Jo pue senjuoud ino
JO MIIA T892 © S 9ARS ‘Q0URpPING §,9781G JO 18101095 oY) Yiim 10y1980) ‘omy, 101deyn ut
POSSNOSIP “UOISSIUWOD) MOPBYS S} PUB S9HIWIWO)) AIOSIAPY U} JO SI0M A[IRa 9y (]

SHLLIALLDOY

"PIEOY PRY 9M YOIM SUIOUOD 9} 9JEDIUNWWOD 0} saptuniioddo ojqenfea papraoid osay)
PU® SUOISEO00 SNOLIEA UO S[RIDLJO 3OO YS[IA PUB ‘AI18I0100S AIRJUSWIRI[IE] OU) ‘SI[ep
10} 91e1S JO AIejo1oag oY) JoWl SA 900 US[OAN 9Y) OF SIUSUIOD 119Y3 o ssed pinom
oM 1B} SAIPOQ 19YJO PUE SUCIUN SPEY) ‘SINLIOYINE O} IB[O 11 9PBUI OS[R M ISAIMOY
'sowroyds  uopesuodwod oyl 10 ‘uopesiuesIoal Jo JUIpUNg oyl ‘SOANLIOYINE JO 9ZIS puw
1oquInu oY) Se (ons sonss [ed11[od 0} UOLE[SX U 9[0T JOSIIP OU PRY UOISSIUIWIO)) Y] jey)
Buruuraq oy woy 1830 J1 eur 03 J4Fnos om pue uopesiueSiosryo spadse Surgyers-uou oy
UO FUISTADE UI 901 OU PBY OA\ "PIEAIOJ ABA% 1S3Q 9} UO SNSUISUOO YOEDI 0] SO1LIOYINe
1820} Yiim AJ2s0po3j10Mm 0} 0[qissod 1oa019yM JyBnos oM seIAOR MO0 InoySnoryy, g

“(z9 ydeigered ur
P2qLI0$ap) UOISLI00 9UO A[UO UO parinbal sem wONOE YoNg ‘UOISSIWWO)) 91) Aq ‘uan1g
do1Ape  Aug Jo wonejuswsjdut oy pue ‘pojsonber uonewroyur yo £jddns oy 03 joodsal
M Luoyine Aue o) SUONDANIP 2AIT 0] WY PI[QRUD 1OV 341 Jo (£)p UONIIS 9d1Ape
0 6o Juroe A[uo Jnqg ‘0s Op PINod ABIS JO AILISINAS S "UONOE JO 98IN0D Jenoned
©1dope 01 SAULIOYINE [EO0] JOSIIP JOU PIROD 9M ‘aINjRU UI KIOSIAPE SEM ofoX Ing g

"9AL 103dey)) Uf PISSIOSIP ST SAIPOQ MU 1310
pUE SINLIOYINE OSOY) YILM JUOLIOAJOAU] INQ “JIWSI JNO UIYiM senuoyine yied [euoneu
42U 91} FuIFULIq JOPIO UE OPEUI AJBIS JO AIBI9I0SS SYI G6GT I9QUIGAON U] “Inog sajdeyr)
UT TOYLINY PIsSnosIp St ‘SanLIoyIne [20] O} JWOD[OMUN PUR [RISISAOIIUCD “MOU Sem
gorym “yuowaiinbor sopel siyj, -spounod redrourid Mou oY) JO JJBIS Y3 JO UOLIBIOUNWDI
pue juouradeuer ‘UonesIuBSIO oyl ma1Ad1 1opun dosy pue IOpISUOd O} Juswonmbar
oy 10 1deoX2 JUOUIUIAA0S [DO] JO UOKBSIUBSIONI {7/ 6T 91 YIIM UONOAUU0d Ul pajutodde
SI[eAN 10J UOISSIUILIOD) JJeIS 94} 0} 7L6T 1OV JUSWUIIA0D) [0 91} JO §G7 UOTDAG Jopun
UJAIS 2UO U} SB OWES 9y} SeM JIWAI INo 2oue)sqns uj “yse} 1o yoeordde o1 sn pajoadxo
94 MOU 10 198 pGET ISNnY ul 9jelS JO A1eI01098 9y Aq Sn 0) panssI eouepiIng oy

Ry sup
Topun 10 £q spew vorstaoxd Lur o no Suisire se 21e1S JO AIRI0ID9S 91 £q I 03

pa11ajax 5q Aew se s1opew Suiyyess 19430 pue swojqoxd Suryess yons Iopisuod (p
pue 0V s1y) opun
10 £q apew voysiaoxd Lue Jo aouonbasuoo ul saxrIoyne pio sy yo Aue uroxy
JJBIS JO Iojsuen) ay; 10} sjuswoBueLIR 9Y) Mmaradl 1opun dasy pue Iopisuod (o
‘sprounoo yedound
MIU 3T JO JJBIS 913 JO UONBISUMWAI pue JuswaFeuew ‘uonesuesio oy (n
pue
*S3Ip0q 950U} JO AUE JO JyEIS O} JO JUSUININIONI Y} 10§ SjusweSueLe (
mataar ropun dooy pue repisuos  (q
‘Apog Arenpisay oy (i
10 ‘sprounod [edound mau o) (n
‘sonjIoyIne pio aiy) (

Aq pakordus gyers yo sjsorojur
oy prengoyes 03 Aressaoou sdojs oy Uo 91eIS JO A1e121008 9y3 ostape (e

*0] SO[eA| 10] UOISSIWIWIO)) JJe}S 9yl Pasnbor Yorym p66T 10V
90} JO O UOHOSS UT INO JAS SIOM FVUIISJAI JO SWIA} INQ  °g

JINTYH

(S3[BAL) JUQWIWIIAOD) [BO0]

"Surdueyo oq pinom sqof asoym Jye1s asoy;
10§ Jusurdofduwo a1nyng 115Y] JO SINJRU PUER UOIEOO] oY} 1NOQe WIadU0d Yiim Iot3a8o] yyers
103 A101XUR 1BOIT JO 92INOS B SBM SSSO] qof yo Aniqrssod ay3 Jery) snorsuod Ap2ynoe 1om
M SJI0M Ino jnoysnonyy, 197018 Ajejeuoniodord aq pnom joeduir oY) a1oYM ‘S901AIAS
[enjuad Jurpraoid geis jo pueq moireu Apoarjereduwos oy urgim Apirewnid qrey o3 Koy
34 P[ROA S1oqunu Ul uononpar Aue ey ‘Toasmoy ‘purw ur 3doy oq o] pey iy “(.ommng
UL o4 1uey) v, Ieded oiym oy o 1°¢ ydeiSered) ssakojdo 000°0ST Quwos Jo
9DIOP{IOM JUSUILIIAOS [E30] B Y31 Saredwrod Iy Y, "(0s 1n0qe Jo Sjoad] Surgess Ul GOTonpai B
POJBLULISS [[1e] 2U1 0} WNPURIOWDA] [RIOUBUI pue Aroteue[dXg oY) pue ‘Jeis Jo roquinu o
ur uoyonpol ofe] B 03 PES] 0} pajoadxe JOU SeM UOHESIURSION] JUoWIUIeA0S [800] 1Y)
UONP[SIZO] 91} JO UOHRIOPISUOD FuLnp JUSUIRIIE] UT IBa[D SpeW JUSWIUIOADD) Y], °C

"UOTIBOO] MUl B UT 310 03 poxinbar aq ‘sooueisur
Auewr ur ‘pnom pue SONLIOYINE 10SSI00NS oy} Suowe dn poprAlp sjuounedsp xoy)
995 pom ‘rede s£MO{ ‘S301AI9S [RIOOS PUE UOHEONDS SB YONS SIOIAIIS [IoUNOD AJUnoo uj




pUE SI3DIJJO JOJ Swiyj J[ROLJIP sow e jnoy3nory] uowuiaAcd [eoo] Jo uorerado-o0o oy
10§ nyotei8 A[[eioadss 219m o DMV Pue ‘(dMD) SIOIISIT YS[OM JO [IPUNo)) oy
‘NOSINQ 82 $a1poq dapiRIuasardar 19130 AUBW PUB S[IOUN0D 10LISIP pue Ajunod Sunsixo
€ 10U pey 31 ‘dn punom Sem 99)ILIWIOY) AIOSIADY 3U) UaUM 66T UDIRIA JO PUs oy
Ag st ynm Ajny pojerado-o0d pue S[ROT UCWILIOD PAIRYS 9M JBI) POSPI]MOUNOL $3IpOq
953y aw] uf -aInjeu jeaNIod ® JO SUOISSNOSIP Ul POA[OAUIT }33 10U PNOM PUE JOU p[nod
1 JJeIS JO S1SRI9IUT 211 309101d 01 SBM 9[0T A[UO SH 1BY} SUOIUN 9PRI] PUE SAILIOYINE 0]
posiseydws UOISSTULIOCY) 94} 10]B] PUB SONIWIWOY) 9], “JUSUILIIAOD) S]] JO JUSMINIISUT Ue S8
SIIIWILIOY) S} POMIIA OIYM PUE UOBSIUEBI00T 0] pasoddo A13uoils arom yorym saipog
WOIJ WISIONLID 1w 99Nwo)) 9y} sBunesw A[res 9sey} Fuunp SadUBISUI OWOS Uy "9}

"€661 12qUISO3(] ¢ UO P[3Y SBA S[IDUN0D AJunod 143is o) Yiim sTUTou Jo punos
§,29)1WWOY) 31} U ISIY 91} ‘Ueq DMV Sumunuod 33 apdsa(]  'S[RIOIIO PUE SIO[[IUN0D
Aq paste1 950yl yim A[proIq PapIOUIOd PILIIUSPL PRY 11 Yorgm sonsst Fuiggels Ko ay) jeyy
IDA0DSIP 03 PAINSSLOI SBM 20)ILUIIOD) 9] USYA IOQUIRAON] [T U0 P[oY Sem m:uzsow sIp
YIM STUNeaW JO SOLIAS B UI JSIJ AU, 990D 9Y) 199w 0] JUI[Im OIoM SeIju0d
Uy “SpIounoo JOLISIP AU L, "eauwuIo) oyl M ‘uonesiydur Aq ‘pue s19)jewl voresIueg091
uo &EO USjoA Ol yim 30eu00 Suruueq suomnnjosar passed pey (DNLM) [1ouno)
uoIU[] OpeRLL SoeM 9yl pue (DMV) SOHUNo) US[OM JO A[quisssy oyl -siolenb Auew
woyj uonesiuedioar o1 uonisoddo Suons oq 01 panunuod a1ay) pouad 1oy Suung “apqep
033ds §,u99nY 2y} JuLINp IDGUISAON ZZ [[JUR PIOUNOUUER JOU Sem ek ouo £q ajep jep
J0 Juowouodisod juenbasqns oyl ‘G661 JUdY 1 sem uonestueSioor 1oy 9jep pasodod
o) 98e)s A11ed 1BYNY €661 19quaidag pT U0 Sl 1SITy 91f) IO JOW 99NIUIUO)) Y], S

"21RIS JO AIRIoI0eS oyl AQ II 0] poIiojol SonssI I9Ylo Aue Iopisuod -
pue ‘senred pajsarojur ynsuoy -

CUHOISSIWIUIOY) Jjv1g
9} JO JUSWIYSI[GLIST BYJ JO SOUBADE Ul PInSSI 3¢ O] Papasu IDIAPE Jeym IdPISU0D -

‘UOISSIWIWIOY) JyeIS 9Y) J0J 90ueping 1JeIp o) U0 91BIS JO AIBJOIOIS o) SIADE -
10} st 901 §}| "uonesIueSIoal 10§ Sunredord UT PISSIIPPE 9q O} PISU PINOM YOIYA SINSSI
Suygess oy ‘senred pojsasojul Yim Surssnosip pue ‘FuiAJruspl Aq UOTSSTIIWIOY) Jjeis o)
Jo .vtoa 9y} 103 SUOHEPUNOJ OU} PIe] 3o1IWWO)) AIOSIAPY SY) ‘PojedIpul APRaIE Sy p

HALLININOD AYOSIAAY HHL 40 TTOA AH.L

NOISSININOD MOUVHS JH.L
ANV HLLLININOD AYOSIAQV dHL A0 AOM HHL

"papue[dde aq 03 a1e sproye 10y, ojqIssod useq 3ARY JOU pjnom
UONESIULTION! JUSUIIWNOD PUE IO PIBY JID1] JNOYIAL "SI19213J0 JOTUS pue sjuowiiedop
[ouuosrod ‘stoquiowr AJuoyine [oo] uo omssaxd snowrous peoerd wonesiueSiooy  ¢r

‘fouadin js01e018 03 Jo WAL 03 2roM yorym satranb yjm yess op
Apdwoid puodseroy ynorgp SuIpuyy $3580 IWIOS UI 9X0M “YI0M JO ooed pue JWNOA 3
01 anp 1qnop ou ‘syusurredsp [uuosiad aroym uonesiuESI00] Jo so8ess 1o3e] oyl uI ony
Apremonied sem styy, “ao1ape pue uonewoyul Jo 9oInos [ensedwy pue juepuadapur ue se
funoe £q Ajdws sonuoyine pue S[ENPIAIPUT 0} ([10G 9OIAIAS [NJISN & POISTJO UOISSIUIMIO,)
U3 jey) Iespo A[Suisesrour owredaq )1 ‘passaidord UOTeSTUESIOAT U0 IOM Sy "7

ordound yo siepew uo
(oroxdde jusysisuoo e noqe Suriq o) padjey 9JIApPE INO ‘SUOHINIOS [EIO] GIM SIOUBISWNOILD
[200] 03 puodsar 03 AJIGIXO[y 243 9ABY 0 SomLIOYINE 107 peou oYy JurstuFooar sy

‘uonesiueSIoar 10§ suoneredard sonuoyne foysromoweiy e papraoxd srefnoso mg  yy-

IRME 9q PINOYS A2} YOTYM JO sansst Koy Kue Jo pue ‘souepm3 15918] S UOISSIUINO))
243 Jo “vonesruegioar yim ssaxSoxd jo jyers Surmroyur SULO[[Ng JJvIS JO HonnqLisIp -

pue qnop
10 TIJUOD JO SIONRW UO SOLIOYINE [BD0] PUE ‘Suorun 9pe1) “S[ENpIAIPUT O] 831ApE -

‘SonIIOYINe [RPIAIPUI 03 O1103ds sIojtewr uo “sonbar
10 ‘pUB JUSUILISAOT [EDO] 0] JURAS[RI SIO}EW JO £yo1rea © U0 9duRpINg J0 9nsst oy -

0V p661 941 30 (1) (@) (2) 0% vondag xepun sayLOyINE Areymun

OM.L JHLdVHD

Pack Page 164




“JJRIS [[8 SULLISJSURI] O} JUITUIUIWOD Y] JO YHIOM 3} posold
SIUQAT 'JOSIN0 A10A 0y} woyy dFejueapesip B 18 peoe[d aq jou pjnom sanpoyine Jumids
WOIj Jyels 1Y) Sem Jaudq SUIpU-IoA0 oy} Ing  -o[qissod aroym Jeis urenpl o) pue
SOINIONIS I13Y] JOPISU0IIL 01 oW} sanUoyIne Suimol[e 109530 Furuorysnd e aAwry pJuom
TUSLINIUIWIOD JSJSURN} SHJIING Jyels 1of porrad Snoixue ue aq SARMIE PINOM SOULIOYINE Mau
sy ur sysod o3 sjenpiaipur unuiodde jo ssaooxd oy jey) pastu§ooar ap [ I® 19)suRn)
pInoys Aayj Joy1oy M UBY) IOYIRI 19JSURI] O] 910M JJEISIAT/M U0 PISNOOJ SUOISSIOSID IoJSuer)
Jey) juedw 3} "sse00xd 19JSURI JOOWS pUR IfeJ B JO JUSWIDARIYIE OY) O} [Ejuswepuny
9q 0] PaLIBJSURI} 2q O} PIYSIM OYM JIeIS [[B I9JSURI] O} JUILLJIUILIOD ST PIASIRG IM ‘€7

"POLISYSURI} 3G O] PAYSIM OYM JJEIS [[B JOJSURI] O} JUSUHIULIOD
© opew quawraaide (DIN) [10UN0D JUIOf [EUCTIEN B IOPUN ‘SO[EAN UI SOILIOYINE [00] [[B
Apuanbosqng “gyess Jo 19JSuBL) 9y} UO SUOISIOP ,SANIOYINE [RIO] 0] 199139 2AIS 03 FurooiSe
Aq 1sanbar o o} Apaanisod papuodses 19)sturpy 9y 18y pesead a19m oM puBR ‘ooues
SIy} JoJ senroyne [eoo] woyy poddns Jo S10119] AUBLI POAISOSI 9\ 'SISBG SUIRS 21 UO
pajeoq; 9q 03 Jyeis || Joj SuInBIe 66| J9qUISD(] § UO SI[BAL I0] 97RIS JO AIeIaI09g 19pup
Arejuswelred 9y) o1 Suniim Aq 901Ape ISI[IBY S, UOTSSIUIO)) MOPEYS 3yl dn pasmofjog
210J2I9Y} 9\ "S[ENPIAIPUY 9SDY} JO UOHRBULISIP 1NN ) ISAO SAIJLIOYINE FUOWR SUOISSAOSIP
Ioy pue s$0001d I0JSURI] 9Y} 10 1X9IU0D AIOJORISTIBSUN UB IAJJO O pue senroyine Junjids
a3 JO Jjels 03 Iejun 9q 0} ‘gd(1 Jo ssa[predar ‘sn 0} pareadde vonemys siyy jds
3Q P[nOM SEIROSOYM SIILIOYINE €] 93 JO JFBIS 10 ONBUIOINE 3q JOU P[NOM UOISTOUT JRY)
INq TOpIO IOJSUBI} JJRIS Y} Ul PIPR[OUT 0q A[[EonewOoNe pnom uoresiuedioar Aq jyds
10U SJoM Seare 9SOYM SANLIOYINE JO jyels 1eyl pejedonue 90O US[OM OUI “HdN.L JO
1unoooe Sumje) ‘Jey) PIBISWD )1 UIYM p6G T JOQUIAD(T Ul PIDIOJUIDI SeM MOIA S, 7T

"$661 AR 6 UO A[SUIPIODOR 9OIJ() US[OM SYJ PULIOJUI pue
‘SUONBAIISOI IO1[1ed MO Jo onds Ul ‘Jyess j[e SULLISSURH) JO INOAEJ UI MOIA Areurwijard
€[00 UOISSIWILOD) MOpeYs oyj ‘soako[dwa fenpiarpuy o sjySu 1ojsuer; ayj 10§ suoijengor
o) Jo suoneoydwl oYy 19A0 AJuUrEMEOUD SIY) JO MOIA U] Sunoo oy £q ouop oq
Ajuo pnoo sty ‘gdn.L Jo suoneaidrojut opraod Jou pirom om Jey} 1om o jnoygnory;
TEO[D JT OPRUWE OA\ "SUIUOW 9Y) JOAO SN O} PAISHJO 210 SO[BA\ Ui $S9001d uonesiuegionl
JUQWUISA0T [e00] oY) 0} uone[er ul suonengar o) Jo suornejerdiojur aansigns jo
Korrea e pue ‘paywy sem 10109s orqnd o3 ur gL Jo voneordde oy uo me 9sE)  “[7

"$s2001d uonesIuRSI001 9y JO 9Fe1S A10A3 Je soned poysoioruy
Auewr £q Appejeadar poster o1om pue 9dIIQ US[M 23 Aq Surgeriq [eniur s,99n1wmio))
A30STAPY 911 38 pouoruatl o19M H I, woyy Suisure suonesidwon [enusio ‘uonesiuesoor
10y gdN.L Jo suonedridwr 9y} U0 S[QRJIBAR OWO0D2q PBY UOIBLULIOIUI 210U SW) SIY)
Aq -sunoows A1ed s} e 19y3my uorsonb STY) POISPISUOD UOISSIUIIOY) MOPRYS 94, (7

"JjeIs 10} Ajorxue
pue Aurepsoun jo porrad syy Suojord Ajerowr prnom 9sod B oYM 10 YIIM RIS [e
Juniojsuen jey; pondie 9q PnOd II SIDUBISUMDIID JSOY U] “FULISJSUEN Jeis oY) o]
posjuereng oq 21030104} jou pnom juswofduwo wire)-Suoy -permbai gyels vonensmumpe

[eIIU9D JO IoquEnu 2yl ul UOHONP3I B O] PR P[NOM SIIILIOYINER [BDO] JO ISqUINY
oY) Ut uononpal ¢ jey; pestuBoosr aonrwwo) 9y, Jdoduod SIY} INOQR SUOTIBAIISAY JO
Ioqumu v pey 2sprwwioy) 9yl A[[BHIU] SONLIOYINE Mou oY) 0] JULIIojsues [els [je Jo
odrounid oy} 10§ 11oddns (snowrurun J0UING) APIM SEM 2I9Y) JBY) PIISACOSIP SPILITIO,) N}
€661 IUIM-UWMNY Ul SaLIoYIne [eo0] [)im s8urjoow Jo punol Aped sp fuung ‘gl

SYTAAHO YHASNVIL JAVILS HHL ANV 3dL

“UOISSIUILIO)) 3Y] 0}
SOUBPING 5,918} JO A1810109S Y] UI PILJIIUSPIDIOM [OIYM SINSSI 9SOT] IIM 10139503 ‘a1 ],
11deyD ui possnosip ore puUE UOISSIWWO)) 9Y) JO JUSIYSI[RISI [BULIO] SUIMO[]0] SY29m
UL gmIeap a1om ‘sonond yBiy se pamata osfe ‘uonelapisuos Iond pue wsryeyoow
speadde oy, mo[eq pasSNOSIP ST SUOIIRISGIIP MO JO SWOOIMNO Y} PUB UOCISSIUIWO)) Y}
JO JUSWIYSI[qRISY [BILIO] 9] 210J9( SIANELU 9SOY) 0} UDAIT SeM UONRISPISUOD AJSUIpIoddy
Togsuen yyegs yo sepdouud syi pue ‘sjuvwied feuonppe ‘sjustmutodde wiiaul 03 U9AIF
9Q pInoys uonuaye A[1es 1By 1[9) UOISSIWIWIOD) MOPRYS/SaNIuWo)) AI0SIAPY S, %

‘Apdwoxd
SIqeMieAR opRUI 9q PINOYS SOWOYOS UOIeSUAdIOD 3y WO UCHIBUIONUT JBY} WISOUOD

PUE {po19)unodud
drysprey 10§ sjesuodwios o) pue (Jyeis Jo AJIofew 1) PIULIO OYM ‘(G IOpUN ISOY)
Suipnjour) sjerrdoidde aroym AIeIun[oA JUSWIUISAOS [D0] 9ABI] O) JEIS 9[GRUSO)
sn0ruag Apusoigyns oq piroys Asuepunpos 10 uorjesuadurod ay] Jer) wIoduod

Pack Page 1

‘poxinbai 9q pinom wstreyoow speodde ue 1oy JuoWoITe

‘poxmbaz oq prnom (/¢
ydexgered uy pourjep) uoneiopisuoo Joud pue uonnadwos uo 9duepnG jey) Juswsorde

‘worrestuedioar 10§ uoneredoxd ur
[HoM feuopippe Jog sjuowifed pue ‘Suipei§or pue sjwounjurodde WLIAIUY I9A0 UISDUOD -

‘sanuoyne mou 9yl 0} JOJSuEI] O] PaMOI]e 9 PINOYS JJuls [[B IaYIolm 0] Se ajeqap -
‘suonjerngo asaty) Jo uonelaidiayuisiur Jo saousenbosuoospqgissod oy
moqe Lpixue pue (sanoon sIySry paiinboy s, uorssiuwio)) ueadorny oy wopFursy
panup oy ur pojuswarduwsy yorym) suonendoy (A1) juswioduy Jo uonoatolg
sgup{enepun jo JoJsueIy Y} JO UonesiurIoal 103 suoneordr oy} JOAO Ajurepiooun -

:arom sZur3oow A{Ieo S, 99]1IWUI0Y) O} WO POSIOWO YOTYM SOWIAY) UlRW Y], L]

‘0 - p¢ syderered up [IpIOp OJOW UI PISSNOSIP
9Ie JJEIS pue JUSWUINAOS [BOO][ YIIAM SUOIIRIUSUOCD JOJR[ INO PUR 3SIYJ, SIO[IOUNCD




JWOS 3 [[IM 11 ‘BONEsIuRTIOal IR SYIUOW Q| [HUN PUY JOU SA0P SWLBYIS Y] Sy “Z¢

‘SN 0} SWOO[9M SBM UOISIOP SIL, /661
1oquadag ¢ uo Surpus ‘syjuow 17 03  pouad paquosaid,, 9yl PapualXe 0O YSIoM
a1} ‘sesuodsol 19710 pue S, UOISSIWUWIOY) oY) JO 14TI{ oyl U] AIBSS209U J1 POPUSIXD IO
aq oy porrod oY) Jog AN[Iqixo[y oq pynoys aroy; jey) pasodoid pue syjuow g 15[ 18 0)
SYIUOLU G WO PoseaIoul 9q prnoys poued poquosard oyl 1Byl Mo1A 31]) OO] J10J0I0Y)
UOISSIWWO) JyL -siusweSuriie mau oy} o 1depe 03 oW SI0W 2ABY 0] $9]01 Furdueyo
d10m Oy Jyels 10y pue sendordde se uroy) isnlpe o) pue saInjons SUIFe)S MU 1Y) 159
0} OUI} JIOUI 9ABY O} SINLIOYINE IO SNOCOTRIUBAPE 9 D[ROM J1IBY] 1[0 O\ '9[qR[IEAR
2q pinom uonesuadwod Kouepunpar yougm  Suump poured poquosaid,, ogi jo ySuoy
9Y) WO JUDWWOD O} SO POyAUL DIPO YSIIM U} ‘a6 1sh8ny ur ‘Apuonbosqng  “1¢

"AI01ePUBLI QUIDYDS 9Y) 93eW pIp Inq
uonesuadwod Jo 19A9] oY) oaorduwil 0} PoUIDIP JUSWUIIAOD ], "SI0 ury) Ajqeinoaey
§s9] pajean} aq 0] A[qrssod So[eAy UI JJBIS QWIOS 10} ITBJUN 3q P[nom 1t 9ouls ‘pasodoid
JUSUILISAOL) 0Yj St AIBUOIRIOSIP UBY) Joyjel A10jepuewiaq PInoys Ay ‘SULId) oY) 10ASTRYM
“ety pandie os[e opp sonLIoyIne urifodoLIoA PUB UOPUOT Y] JO UOKesIUe3I09I 984T oYl
urse owes oy A[fRIjueIsSqns aq pnoys surre} uonesuaduiod sy 18Y) PIASI[AQ AN "SO[BAN UL
womisues] yjoows v opaduwil pinosm Ay} 1ey] JSU [T B 9I0J2I21} SEM 9131 ], "SUOTIRSTURTIOr
snoraoid ur parojyo suuol oyl yiim Kjqernoaeyun poredwod spesodoxd osoyy jey)
sanuoyine [oo[ Aq uaye) morAayl pojroddns pue A[fnyored sjuSWNSIe 9] PIISPISUOD I
JuowuIaA0n) 9} Aq dn umelrp s[esodoxd oy} UO SOIPOQ JUBAS[II PAJ[NSUOD JUSIUOIIAUF 9]
30 uswredad oyl 661 2unf uf "sse00d I9ySuRN 89U} JO JUAWS[Q Jueliodull UBR 9 pinom
Swoyos B Jeyl selLoyine [eo0] M  sTuroswr §,091wo)) AIOSIADY 9y} WIOI) IR
SEA ]I JOASMOH "UONESIUESIO] 0] 9Np JUSWIAINAI A[Ied AIejunjoa Sumye) Io juepunpol
OpRW 9S0Y} I0) SWYDS uorjesuadwod B PUSTIIONA O} JIWIAL Ino Jo jred Jousem 31 "¢

AINVANATHT Y04 NOLLVSNHAINOD

“[1oMm 10 03 pareodde 1t
sonoeid U] "SUOISIDOP ,SSTLIOWINE 10 SHomawrel] [eorjoed v papiaold pey Ji 1Byl JUSJH0D SEM
pue yoroidde s1yi yjim uoroeySIessIp Aue JO 9I2ME SPBUX JOU SBM UOISSTWUIO)) oY, ‘6T

-sjuawrAed 250y} JO [9A9] 9y pue ‘sonijIqIsuodsal
feuonippe 10§ sjuawAed 10] 9]GISI[0 9WI0D9q PINOM SIIDIIJO YOIYM UO SISE] ] INOQR MILA
poaife ue (OEII0] BOIER YOBD UI SIILILIOD UONISUET] poYse om ‘Yorordde uowrwod v jnoqe
FuiSuniq ur ofejurApe 0q P[NOM 210U} JBY) SUOD pRY 9m se Suisorjeg ‘1dope o) oproop
WS A[[enpIAIpul SonjLIOYINE UYoIym puR Bare AJunod ouo ur dn umeip useq pey yoym
DWIYOS [PPOW B 6 | Joquuoydog Ut ‘SoTiIoyine 03 Pale[ndId pea)sur pue aouepmng eruad
Suies 1sureSe poproop oM SonLOYINE JUOUIR STISUISUOD JO JOR[ SIY} JO MIIA U] Q7

*soAJesuIal) syustuArd JO SJOAS] OUIULIDNOP OF ATIQIXA]J 29U} UIEIDI 0] POySIM YOTHM 9SOY[) pue
JOYIRU SIY) U0 20URPING [RIUSD JO INOAB] Ul 9SOY} US2MJA] PIPIAID U29q PRY SanjrIoyine

‘UoISSILIWOTy 94 0) ooueping yeip s.9wIS JO AIe10100S 9y} U0 JURUOTIWIOD Ui 4Bt
SN POWIOJuL 90110 YS[IM 243 osuodsdr up ooy YS[OM 24l 01 mala sigy ind urede o,
P661 dunf up -asuepns 10y post oyi Fuioddns sjuownSIe pijeA 9194 910U} JRY) PapN[oUC
A[enIU2AY UOISSIWWIOD) MOpRYS Oy} pUBR JUOP SBA SIYJ, 'SUOISH[OUOD [RIIUL ST MAIAL
03 99RIWIWOY) oY) payse pue joafqus oyj uo oouepingd Lue 2AIF 01 93NUWIO]) SY) 0] Pas
9Y} INOQE SUOITRAIISOI ST PIIRDIPUI O "H661 AIBnuUe[ UL ST} UO SMITA SI[BAA JOT J1RIS J
A18191298 Uay; oY) TYSNOS 9p “JUSWILIDAGT [BOO] O3 JIFOUAQ JO 9G PINOM SIY} UO 9DURPIN
18y} POpNOUOD 99IHUHLIO]) AIOSIAPY 9U] ‘SUOISSNOSIP 959y} JO }NSa1 & Sy "poul
WML oy} ul ssnnp [euonippe 10§ sjuswded jo uonsenb oyl pasiel Os[e 99NIILIO;
A1081ApYy o) sjuounuiodde  wWISIUI UO SOILIOYINR (IIM SUOISSROSIP S} Juumg  f

NOLLVSINVOYOII NO 3J0M TVNOLLIGAY YOX AAVLS OL SINANAY.

-Kyp181r 001 sjusunurodde Arerodura; uo 921ApE o1
Suikrdde ‘opdwnxs 105 ‘sem LI0Ine UB RY) SUOIUN OPEI} WOIY JUrR[dIOD [BUOISBI00 UL B!
21013 YTnoy3|e S|E119jo1 MaJ AI9A POAISDOI UOISSIUITIO)) 9U ], 'ABM I[QISUIS PUR 9]qIXaf}
U PIIOE SINLIOYINE [BO0] PUB [[om YIOM O} POUIIQs juowoSuelie sy} [erousd uf -9

‘SuipeaSar 10 jusunuiodde ur 10y poou 9y} U0 JUWISOITE OU Sem 259y} JI AU
UOISSIUIWO,) 943 0] WD 0] pue syusuurodde yons Supjeww 210J9q SeaxR Aloyine Liejun ot
I0J poysHqeIso Sureq 019M YOI SI9HILILIOD UOLISURI} oY) Ui sonded[oo 1y} :%o
0} SANUOYINE FUNSIXa PAYSE 9Mm SINULIOYINE MOPRYS Y] JO UONI9[ 2y} o1 ro1id peist
"Ke[9P 9]qRIOPISU0D 0) pa] aary A[o¥1] K1oa pinom siyi se spesodoxd jusunurodde [re jo4 30
pInoM om eyl peside om UoWINISA0S [RO0] WOy suonejuasaidar 03 osuodsar uf M;m

‘KI9AI[9P 9OTAISS UIRIUTRW O] IOPIO Ul PI[fIf 3q 0} popadu vommc@uﬂ

M YOIy sysod outp-1uoi o) Kjdde 1ou pip soroueora Suij[iy uo SouRPINg Y], SOULIGERN
mou o) yymsisod semoned 10y Surredwoo 03 owred 31 usym afejueapesip e je jnd W
JJBIS SWOS PIoAk 0] pur AOUBPUNPII 9ININJ UL JJOSIL PINOD YOTYA SIOQUINY JJBIS UY soseHot
proae o seam osodind s)) -sSuipeider proAe 03 [eIouoS Ul pur ‘UCKESIURSIOSI JO NS
se 93ueyd 03 1o0lqns 9q 0} A[o1] ISOW 219M (OIYM STIAUILIRAID 9S0Y) UT SITOURDRA FUT]]
uaym Justguiodde juouruLad 0) SSANBUISIR JOJ J0O] O} SOLLIOYINE DISIAPE 3]  “$66
Ioquioidag ¢ uo poysijqnd sem ooueping Jeul InQ peEL UL UL ‘SopLIOyINE UL
UOIIR}[ASUOD IS1{IBD §,90N1I0)) AIOSIAPY 93 UO PIseq “IR[NOIId JJeIP B PINSSI 91053131
UOISSIWIUIO)) MOPRYS U], "JJeIS 107 A19IXUR JO 90INO0S B 3I0M Koy ‘swire)o 9sayy 3roddns ¢
3JUAPIAS [ 9q o0 paseadde aioy ySnoyyyy -uonestuedioal /61 9yl ur pouadde
pey pies seam 1 se ‘ssaoosd sojsuen oy} Ul SINOQYSIOU HAY] I9A0 a8ejurApe U JyU
19y3 oA13 pinom yoryam uonoe oye) 03 Sursodord 01om SSIILIOYINE SWOS JeY} SWRD PIed
M "OUWI0D[aM 9 P[NOM INSSI STY} HO 201APE A[180 1B} SOIILIOYINE YIIM D[y O3 TUIIO;
K10S1APY 2y} yorym sFuneaw Jo $o11os 9y} woiy juaredde awesaq ] "UONESIURSIOS1 0} JOLI
sonuoyine Suysixs £q jyeis jo sSurpesfor pue sjuounurodde jo wonsanb oy soprwwo;
KIOSIADY 943 yiim PasIel 921JJO US[aM Ul ‘€66 [ Tequiaidog T o Sunosuw sy suiy -y

ARIALNI JHL NI ONIAVIDTY ANV SINTAILNIOddY J4V.L




11

"90IY L,
1aydery) ul posSnISIP 218 ‘SIANELI I9YI0 PUE ‘959Y) U0 SUOIBI[NSUOD INO JO SWI0MN0 34, ‘Of

‘wstueydouws sjeadde o1

pue ‘sjsod 103 A1dde 01 21q1319 29 pinoyYs oym pue
parmbor sem uonnaduros 1M1y M U0 SUOISIOOP Furpniout ‘ss2001d syusunjurodde oy

‘SonIIoYyIne 1085900nS 0) yyels Suneooqpe jo ssavoxd oy -

:910m pounbar sem 20uepIng J19] 9M 2I9YM SRAIE
Aoy oy, "juoungeon fenboun 1o Ireyun jo jeoIy) oY} WOI JyeIs 199301d pmoMm YoIyM pue
ss2001d 1oysury) Juoredsuer) pue yloows e oddr: ppnoo yorym aoed ur ind 9q 0} swoisks
0] [e11A SBA J1 JBY] SN O] IBOYD SeM }] 9ouepind oonpoid 0] PIIAUL U90q PBY M (OIm
noqe suoysenb oy WO ‘SEIPOG I9YI0 PUE SUOTUIN OPEI] “SOILIOYINE [2OO] [[IIM SUOTIR)[RSUOD
[BIIIOY JO SALIAS B JOOLIPUN M UOISSIUIWIOD) 94} JO JUSIYSI{qRIS? oyl SuImolog ¢

SIB[NOIL) HOISSIUIO,)

~901A13s JO 9d4£)3 oy 01 BUIPIODIE ¢/ 66T 12900100 T puk £66T [HdY T 01 syjuour
X18 1syny e 10 patuodisod oq pyrom Suropus) aanneduios Arosindwos jo wononponurex
9} 1Y) G661 SUN{ UL PIDUNOUUE 211§ JO A1810109g 21 uaym pasesfd 219m 9p “S[RIONIO
20130 YS[opp O1 1utod 9U3 9RW O] PINUIUOD PUR 6] JOQUISAON Ul Py AIR}o1dog
Kreyusurerpieg o) s Surjoour v J8 OS PIP OpA "OIRIS JO AIRISI00S 9] 0JUO SUIIOU0D
119y ssed 03 pa213e 9m “HWIOT INO JPISINO SEM ST} IIYA, “AJorxue 1913 JO 90IN0S B SeM
ssa00xd uonesed1oo1 2y uo Fuirapuo) aanneduwod Arosnduwiod JOo UORONPONUISI SN
Jo 1ordun oy Jey) poures] om saanejuosordar Jyess yim sgurjootu Apies osay) Suning  g¢

"JJBIS 1M UOTJBDTUNUITIOD 0} PayorvHe
om soueltodwr 9y ‘A 919I0U0D PUE JBI]O B UT “PIJRIISUOUISD SUOIUN 9PEI) PUB JJRIS M
s8un9saw 1no pue - sopuoyne uodn passaid ApjueIsuod om UOTYA. 9FeSSOW B Sem SIY)
- $oAnRIUASAIdal 1ol pue JyeIS Yl SUOTIEDIUNIIIIOD POOST UIRJUIBW PINOYS SANLIOHING
oYl JRIJUSSSS SB I PIMOIA Op\ °UOSROI ISUJOUE I0] [NJOSN 0Iom STuUnesW 9Soyy, /¢

"S3SED Yj0q Ul
S1I0S31 9AIISOd YA SIOIRIPOUI [RIDIJJOUR SB “IO0JJo Ul ‘PIJOR 9M [9AS] SOLIOS O] UASL pey
suotsua) ookofdina/rofodwa areym saseo omj uy Ajpenzedun Junor skempe ‘pajsonbar orogm
}orqpas) apiacid pue ‘wal} usamlaq SSuIpuRISIApUNSIW SNOTAGO Aue dit 189D 0 ‘Aep owes
oYy uo ooeyd owres oy} ur sonsst reynonred 1040 suondeored sofordws yim suondesiad
1Kordurs aredwoo 03 sn pojqeus saanejussardor Jyeis ynm sSunsow oy yed Ino 104
"PIROq SUIPUNOS [RIOFOUN 1USIUOAUOD R PUE ‘DAJEA A]10JES [NJOSN B ‘9DIAPE PUR UOT}RULIONUT

0t

30 20mos [nydjay v se 1red jsow oy} I0J SIOqUIAW SiI pIeSaI O} Jwed $OARIUSSaIdal
JeIS QWOo0I0A0 U29Q  PRY UOISSIWIWOD) 3] JO SaALD[qo i) jnoge suopidsns [enyur
UQ Tagesn Aprernoped sUOISSNOSIP 0S0Y) PUNOY 9A, 'SUOIUN APBL} PUR SSAHRIUsaIdal
JJeIS 199w 0) pauene ospe am - (mo1aq ¢g yderdered) sontoyine Mopeys YiLm Ioje] pue -
SIVINWILLOD UONISURY PUT SOIILIOWINE YHm SSUI}99W JO SpUno: 1no Jo yoes Suung  ‘g¢

saAnEIuIsaxdoy Jjels pue suom() apuLy,

-uonyestuegdioa: 10§ oredard o3 19139801 Surpiom
319 SaLIOYINE MOY OJUT JYSISUI B ST 9ABS OS[R A9 ], 19JSURH Jjeis-[[e ue jo 1doouoo o
paytoddas AjFuons soopIuwon uOHISURI) JRy} PUR UIODUOD JO SaNSST A3 941 PILJTIUSPI pey
am 1ey) Suruwguod ur [nydjoy 919 SUOISSNOSIP 959y ], "SuNoSW € JO 19O INO PIUIOIP
UESIOWR[D) YINOS Ul 9SOY] ‘SO0PIWO0D UOHISURL} ZZ 9Y} JO (7 19W PUB p66T I9qUIDAON
UT SHSIA JO punol 1oyuny & ue3aq om A[SUIPIODDY G661 AR U1 SONLIOYINE MOpRYS
ZC 911 Jo uondaps ay3 Njunuonesiuegioar 10 suoneredord Suneuipioos oq pinom yorgm
SOONIWIWOD UOHISURI] OY} J99W 0} UOISSIWWO)) 9Y) 0] jueprodwil Sem 11 J[0] oM ‘Seale
1uaxagpIp Burovy swiajqoad oty ojul JySrsur [nyosn € Sn UIAIS Peyf SONLIOYINE i Y1 01 SISIA INO
ySnoyry seare Kjoyine AIejun oy3Jo yoes 10§ S9oIWWIOn uonisuen dn 19s 0] parnbal
SIom saLIoyIne [BI0] $6GT A[N( UI JUSSSY [BACY DOAISDRI 10V oY) Ioyye AJMoyS °g¢

‘pIIng 03 AJ[NJSSO0ONS [GE SEM UCISSIUIUIO)Y
oyl yorym vo uoturdo pue uoreturoyut Jo urroield prjos e papioge mara mo us sSuroow
9S9], SI[BAA UI SOIIOYINE [LO0[ FUnSIX9 Y] JO Gp [[B 10WI pey ‘¥0sseo9paid Ino 1o
M P61 Isndny Apres g -0$1030X3 SIY] UM PINUNIUOD oM 66T [HdY Ul 9a)iwwio)) sy
paoejdar uoIssIwory MOpeyS oyl uoym pue ‘dn Jos Sem I JajJe AJIOYS JUSWUIIACS [BOO]
M Sunpnsuos jo sseooid oy ueSoq 991IWIWIO)) KIOSIADY 2} ‘0A0QE PIIOU Sy “pE

SINHFIWHONVIAV NOLIVITIASNOD - INASSV TVAOY YALAV

JUBLIDIIIUS ABPI[OY JO SSO] 19400 OSE PInoys uonesuadiuoo
243 1eY) UONsaZEns oy 1deoor Jou pip JuowuIdA0L) 9y, ‘uswied Aouepunpsi [enusijod
Yl 01 odouarojar Aq syuowded uo deo posodord 9y} sem SB ‘PONIIO SBM 9OIAIDS
JUBUINIdAOF Jeoolsieak 7 Jo juswarmbor wnwrurw pesodord ayj pue seskojdws o[qidie
10y Axojepurwl opewr St owoyds [euly oy jeyl Aes o3 paseald ore opy spuswosoidwg
JO mqunu v posof3ns pue A10jepull 9q PINOYS SWAYDS Y] Jeyl podin om ureSe
nq ofdounid ur sesodoid asoy) powoojom AJwiresm op\  UOHESIUBSIONI JO JNSII 102IIP
e se (Juowirnop) sSurures Jo ssoj e parajyns oym seakojdws asoy) sjesuadwioo o3 spesodord
S JUSWWISA0N) 97} U0 POINSU0D 91am om ‘Aouepunpal 10y uoresusdwioo yum sy “¢¢

NOILLVYINNIAHY 40 SSOT 404 NOILVSNAdJWOD

‘PAIVII0 219M 1OIYM SI9) uonesuadiiod Y} JO S[ERPIAIPUT I0] pue
TUSWUISA0F [B00] J0J $00uonbosucO oy} JO USYE] 9q UED MOTA PIIOPISUOD B 2I0Jaq oW

Pack Page 167



€l

01 j3e1s pue s1s0d Buuongodde 10] BLIOID JUBASIOI QY] 9PIDAP O] SAMILIONINE 10] A1BSSI0U
SeM T “SSLLIOYINE MOU 210U 10 om] SuoLue J1ids 2q 0] 19m sanLIoyIne SUlISIX3 AIDYM b

NOLLVDHEODVSIA

*SOULIOYINE J0SS900NS oY) Fuowe
pa0ide waoq pey sjuowafuene ojeurdordde jey) powiIIyuod UOY] SONLOYING QYL JIRIS
Jo dnoi3 1ey) 10] mej Jo sasodind ayj 10y 104opdurs pojeuSISop se 108 PIOoM WAL JO oUO
UOlyM 0] SB SOULIOYINE IO0SSOOONS I} UIIMIaq JUoWIside ue 19301q 0] rohojdurs juormd
S[ENPIAIPUI O} PITIM IM 9ISED §ORD U] “JJelS 10] AJuTRelIsoun o} pesy pinoo juswiojdus
utof eyl pauioduod S19M 9m nq - AjlAnoe Jenonred e 99SI9A0 0] 2PTWWIOD jurof
® dn 195 01 Buruueld srem ssnuoYINE oY1 9JdWIEXS 10T - UOISIOAP SIY} J0] uosear Jepnonied
B SBM DI0U] 9SBO UOBa UI JBU} pasiufosal opy  AjIoyine ouo uey) aiowl jo juswioduwe
jurof oyl 0} S[RNPIAIPUL PALIDJSURI] IOPIO IOJSURI] JJelS 9Y] SOOUBISUI M B U] ‘¢f

‘AKIessaoou
10U SeAM 9DIADE [RWIIO] ING IOPIO € OU IJJSURI} JJBIS oy) FUIUIOdU0D 90U YS[OA oY)
M SJORIUOD 9SO[D POUIRJUTELU HOISSTIIKIOY) Y[, “ISPIO 7 OU IAJSURY) JJelS 9} Ul Yirm Jjeop
21om A9} puB A[UO SOOURISUL JNOJ Ul PIXINDII0 STYY, "$99£0]dwa [ENPIAIPUT JO UOTIRULISIP
11 U0 JUDWIOITE YOBDI O} PO[TE] SONLIOYINE USYM AJUO IOPIO I9JSUBI] JJEIS 91 HO 211§ JO
A12101098 9Y} SSIAPR O] A[JO0IIP UOISSIWWIO) 9U) IO} ATBSS309U SeM JI JUdAS oY) U] Th

‘sjuowoBuelre 959y pouurdispun ‘sofed Suimorroy
9] Ul possnOSIP ‘saInpoooid UOIIDS[OS puR JUSWIINIDOI pue ‘uoniedwod “HonEBIapISuUcO
Joud uo I01APE INO PUE RIS 10) Jou AjoJes Koy oy papraoid Apreopo wsrueyosw sjeadde
jeuoneU 9YJ, Jyels 10J spiendoyes opiaoid 0) pue 1apio 9y jo uvoneredord sonuoyne
urdrapun 0 9oevjd ur orom swiaisAs ojerrdordde jey; Suunsuo wo 91BIUAOUOD O] JYqR
219m 3M ‘uoneredoxd 31 Ut 9[01 1021Ip B 9¥E} O} FUIPISU JO PESISU] "IOPIO IDJSULI] RIS o1}
0} uoHEJal Ul 9[O1 INO PaIA}[B AJ[ROIPEI JUSIIWULOD SIY], 'POLIOJSURI} 9q O) PaySIm OyMm
JyRIs 1B I9Jsuen O} ‘CREL W A[IBd SOnLIOUINE AQ PayORaI SBM YOIyM ‘Juswaaide oyl Jo
11oddns ur Ajng oxom pue Jregun AJUSIOUUI 99 01 TOIIOUNSIP AUR PIISPISUOD M IAOGER PIIOU
Sy “J3els Jo souodared juarayyip o} A[dde pnom F4], MOY JO UOHEBIOPISUOD PIAJOAUT
9ARY PINOD SI], I9PIO I9JSURI) JJBIS Y Ul uoIsnjour 10§ Jyeis SurFruept ur ojo1 Suipesy &
93e) PINOM BOISSIUILIO]) 9Y] 1Byl 9010 YS[OM 911 Aq podesiauo usaq pey 11 Afjemiu [+

HITHO YTASNVIL JAVLS AHL

STVAdLY ANV NOLLVIAUISNOD JOiud
‘NOLLLLAJINOD ‘NOLLVOTIOOVSIA
- YHASNVIL 404 SONIIVITId

HIIHL JALdVHD

cl

Pack Page 168



Gl

uonuaye SoNLIOYINE FUIMBIP 9661 Alenuel [¢ U0 I0NS] JOYLINY € PINSSI OM SOL[IQRSI(]
s 0dodg jo juowholdurg] ayp J0j SIONIUWOY) YS[oA, SY) JO USWLIRYD) Y} WL pue
9661 Arenue[ utuorssiwno)) sontuniioddQ [enby oy woyy suonejussaider Furmoro ‘1

"S661 [udy ur sanogine 03 souepm3 s, uoissiwwoy) senuniioddo renbyg oy
POIRINOIID oM UOUM 9/6] 10V SUOCLIR[Y 0BY 21 1opun sanijiqisuodsal noyj 0} uonuaye
(SOULIOYINE  MaID OM }NSaI B SB pue AJijenby [BioRY O] UOISSIHIWO)) 94} Pajnsucd
OSJe A\  "UOIESIUBZIOA! JO JXIUOD 9Y) UL OSUE 0] A[ONI] SIoM UDIYM SOussi oy
o sanuoyng [eoo] 10j sautjoping ojeridoidde aredoid 01 paaide oym safeAy UOISSIHILIOD)
somungroddQ renby oy yyim suorssnosip pey ap “sseooid uonisuer; oy SuLInp sonuogne
01 11J2Uaq JO 2q P[NOM 35URPING [BUOTNPPE JOYIoUMm IOPISUd o} 348U sem 1 pasaieq
9M UOHBUIULIOSIP [RIORI PUE Xas Juipioae uo me] oy ynm Ajdwoo o) Ajnp ¢ sopun
Apealfe ‘0s1n02 Jo ‘otom sonuoyNy "soniIqisuodsar sentunyioddo fenbe uo souepms
Junssr JOpISUOd O} UOISSIWIWO]) oY} PajiAul 9oueping s 0)e1g Jo A1ejorosg oy Qg

sopunjroddo yenby

‘[eodde
UB JO JUDAD DI} Ul P[oY 0 0} 018qap 9A130[q0 ur mofje 01 y3nous jusiedsues pue Iva[D s1e
paxmbar st uonnadwod e Joyioym 10 sISIxe yorew-qof e 1oyioym Sururuiieldp u pasn oq
0} BLIDILIO 9t} Jeyf}) ‘Ajpuodas ‘pue suoIswap Juiyorew-qof surede feadde 03 sjenpratpur soj
Aj[eooy 1sixe sjuowroBueLre jely ISy ‘Teiia S 31 1By} POWLIFUOD JJe)s JO SIOUISW WOl
3}oBqPoO,] POy og 0} PEY YOIy SMIIAIIUI 2ARNAdWI0D JO Taqunu oy3 ABUesifugIs 9onpai o)
posn usaq jou pey Suryoew-qof j13se) ojqissodiul ue U99q SARY P[NOM SINLIOYINE MU )
u1 sysod Jurfiy jo ssoooxd oy 1ey) porsaB8ns senLIOYINE WO }oegpPad) jusnbasqns 6

"$661 YDIBIA €] POIRD 201APE 1RO UT $21npa001d uo1jo9ss uo
20uepIng pofielop AUE 9pR[OUT JOU PIP M UOSB3I SIY) J0J PUE JUSUIUIOAOT [BD0] UL PAISIXD
soonoeld JuLURININOT POOT JO 20UDLI0AXD PuE 9BPIMOW] JUSIOYINS Jy) 1[9) 3A\ "PIMO[[0]
udaq pey vonoerd pounosiod pood j1 Ajuo uoisosap zsy) proydn o3 30adxs pmom pue
POUIBOU00 AJLIOYINE A1) JOBIUOD P[TIOM OM JJBIS WL SILIOND SATO03 PIP M IOYM JEL} J8S[0 11
opew osje opy sjeadde jo Ayijiqissod ayj 01 uonuLNE SONLIOYINE MAIP PUB ‘sampoooid
pooie pue jusiedsues) IEo[d 10j posu dy) pasiseyduio op Jels 100 aFeiuvApesIp
pInoo ( ui-3urojs,, se 0} pairdyor os(e) Suiyojew-qof s1oym Ajeweu :panmbar aq
8w uonpadwod B 010¢M SOOURISUL SWIOS PALJIIUBPI OM “010§0I0Y)} ‘@duepmS mouy gy

‘uonarosip sadoxd
pue sanijiqisuodsor SONLIOYINE UO YoBOIOUS 0) 10U 1yInos om pue JySiom onp UoAIS
9q PINOYS pjaY SIY} Ul SIRLIOYINE [800] JO 2ousLadxa ayy Jeyl J[aj o ‘os Suiop ur ‘mq
JO1BUI STY) UO SMOTA INO JOJJO P[NOYS OM JBY} PSPRIOUOD 9y "SUOISIONP YIS 1040 ajndsip
Aue ur oueAIjUI 0 PaYse 9q PINOD UOISSILIWOY) 93 Jey) pue ‘asnqe 0} uado aq pInod
yoeoxdde Zuryorewr-qof ay) jeys 1eay WSy sfenprarput ey ‘spadsoxd juswkorduws aimng
S, [eNpIAIPUL UE 10§ [OHLID 9 P[NOD SUOISIOSP YINS JBY) SNOIOSUOD 0SB 2I9M dM IDAIMOL]
"AJ[E90] 9)E} 0) SORLIOYINE I0) 8q ANSSIAU JO ‘PInom Suryolew-qof Jo wioy swos £q
10 uonneduwios £qpajjy 9q 03 papaau 1sod e 10GIOYm U0 SUOISIONp Jey) PIsiuGo0aIop /i

14!

‘qof mau 21} Yim yojewr pood e papiaoid saniqisuodsar
Junsixe asoym [enpialpur ue Aq pojy oq pmod 1sod B 19Y10ym 10 poxinbal seam
uonnadwiod ¥ 191)atm aSED 4OBS UL APIOSP O] SATY PINOA SOTJLIOYINE “TOAIMOY ‘SBaIR 1aYJ0 U]
"sqof Junsixa 1oy ur KIoyINe AMou O} 0] PALISJSURI] 9 PINOM IS AITALOR JUOWILIDA0S
[800] Joseare Auew u] ‘uonodwod v Jo sueow £q 150d A10A3 []1J 03 AIeSS909U 10 d[qissod
94 10U P[NOM j "polIWI] 9¢ P[NOM $2INJONNS amou Joyy ul sjsod {1 o1 senuoyne 0¥
d[qeIeAR W oY) 1Y} PIsIuT000s oM J10AIMOY] “pexinbai sem uonnedwod g axeym sisod
o1 paydde g/ 0 76 sydeiSered ur passnosip ‘uorieIapisuoo 1o1d uo souepms g -9y

. SSHOOUd SINHNINIOddY HHL

‘sonnoyine Joyjo ut sqol 10y Ajdde o3 pue A1oyine Arejun
1Ua131JIp ® 0} tajsuex) o) [eodde ue oyew o3 Ayuniroddo 9y aaey pnom uonedordFesip
oyl yia Addetum orom ogm ppeis ey Sunmsus uo Ajond 1oySiy e pooerd orozeray
9M\  "92I0YD 1S1y 110y) Jo AJLIOyIne 91Y) 01 PAIROO[[R 9q O} JuIs [je 10} 9jqIssod ag 12A0u
PINOM 31 JeY} postudoool os[e 9pp  "Ssoooid 1ojsuen ojoym oyl 03 ysu Surlles se [[om
Se - POUBISSe 9( PINOM [RNPIAIPU UB 9I0UM SUIPIOOP UI J0JOB] [BIONID 9Y) 9q 958D AUk uI
j0u p[nom souarajasd jruostod soourisur Auur ux - sjqesnoeidu sem Aefap 1y} 1[9) om
SONAIXUR 953Y) yiIm pasiyiedwiAs om s[IyAy  "SeInionns Juigels 1oy) pado[oaap pey saLrejun
3y3 [un dyloue 10 Ajuoyine ouo 03 9ousIejod e ssoidxs 03 pagijqo 2q jou pinoys Loty
1By pondre swos pue sqpuys temonaed Jroyy 2xmbor of jou saoxd S yorym Aioyime
ue 103 20uaI9jo1d e Smissordxo proae o) snorxue a1om Jels -spadsord juswrdordurs oxmng
1oy “Afrenuajod ‘osge nqQ yJom jo oor[d moau 110y} AJUO JOU J09JJ8 p[nom uoredoiddesip
U0 SUOISTOa(] "osnpaooid siyp) £q patoaoo Jyeis 10J pouad snorxue ue sem ST, "S9ULIOHINE
Aq poxmbor x1ur s[Ipys sy} pue 921A19s JO YISUS] ‘SIOUBISWINOID OUSIWOP ‘s30us1ayald
[euosiad popnpour Ajjeiousd vu)L0 oy, "AILIOYINE YOIYM O} IOJSUBI} P[NOM S[ENPIAIPUI
UOIYM SURWIDIP O] posn aq 0] BLIOIID 9y} ‘JyeIS Yim 9013 pue ‘dofoaap o} pey uay)
SoULIOWINE ‘I19JSueI} 0} JJUIS JO IoQUINU 9Y) UO PIYORII USSQ pPeY JUIAIZe DUQ G

"SONNOIJJIP AUB JO JUIAD 91} UL 9D1APR PUER UOISSHOSIP
ysnony djoy o O[QR{IRAL 2Q P[NOM 9M JBI] IBRO[O JT 9PBW OAN "SOOURISWUNOND [BD0]
30 W3 oyy ur posie pue padojoaap 3q 03 soInpoooid 10J IJBIS JO SISAUSIUI Y} UI SBM 1
183 3[3Y 94 015U Mm pase UE Sem $s0001d uoneSei38esip JeIs 9y ], "UONIAILD 198pnq Jo oreys
oy 3dope o} paurjoul aq pinom om AJnOYJIP JO JUSAD U3 UL 1By} Ing ‘Soaneiussaxdar
zeis yim paydope aq o) yoroidde oy Ajjeoor 9o18e pnoys sanuoyIne Jeyl paseddns
oM "woneindod o3 uonsodoxd i 10 ‘vore Ajxoyne mau oy} ur juads je8png s [ouno)
3unsixa oYy jo areys oy o1 uortodoid ur 9q pnoo juswuoniodde ‘Kinuapt teorydeiSosd
Apear ou ()m Jyels Jo Jopuiewal oY) 10, "Balv JO uoneoo| Xenoned € 0} 9[qRINgLIIE SBM
12y} yIom 1oy jo uonodold oy 01 90ua10)0I £q O[QRIIIIUOPI AJIPEaI 9 p[nom Ajoyne
MU JY] SIAYI0 10 “IoJSuell pInOYs Aoyl AJIOIne Mou UdIgm 03 ‘uoneoo[ qof oyl
joomua Aq quoredde Appeoroq pinom it Jyess yo Ajuolewr 18913 043 10J 18Y) POPN]OUOD
M el yim sduaf o7 Suiped Apeolle oIom YOTYM SOONIUILIOD UOHISURI] 9SOY) M
SOMSSI 959U} PASSNOSIP 9\ "9OIAPE I54JO 0] PIYSE 2I0M OM PUE AJLIOYINE IOSSIDONS (OB

Pack Page 169



LT

SYIUOW UQ) OUWIOS) 0IOJRIdN) $66T IoquiaaoN U] Siusunurodde jusnbasqns 1oy suoy
2y} 19s pijrom 921A19s pred jo pesy oy; jo juounurodde oyj 18y} SNOIOSUOD AI9M 9 "09

‘[eonoeld 9q 0] SIYJ JOPISUOD 10U
PIP oM "s$000id oy asiazodns 313511 PINOYS PUB ‘SMITAIOIUT SIT IDNPUOD p[nom AjLioyjne
Axeirun yoeo Yorysm uo 23ep oy} Ino Junios o[qeIowi) B YSI[qe]so PInoys UOISSIUWO)) 3Y]
ey pondie sonrroyIng swos jurod ouo jB padpu] ‘sarnjonss uonesiuedio fejusuniedap
Jo uorjeredoxd oyj snyj pue SIOJJO JOIYO JO JudWIININAI 9y} dn Surpjoy ‘sjuswiurodde
19110 U0 3093J0 UO-jO0UY B 9ARY pinod juounuiodde siyy Supjewrur SAB[Op AUy "901AIAS
pred jo peoy sy jurodde 03 oq pjnosm 93e] 03 posu pinom Luioyine yoes dois 1s1y oy 10Y)
PasIE30001 oM SONIIOLINE [BDO] O} ONSSI 0] POPIAU 2M 9DIADR JByA SULIOPISUOD Uy,  “6S

ANMIAXY JOyD) 9Y3 Jo jusunmoddy

‘MO[2q 7/, 0} S sydeidered ur JRIOP QIOW U PISSNOSIP Ik 3DUBPING INO JO SJUSTUOD
ay], 1sndny pue Aep ul sopuoyne o) pue [Udy Ul 9iel§ JO AI1RISI09S 9] 03 9dIApE
Ioyuny AQ pue YDIB]N Ul GG/E IR[NOIIO AQ POMO[[O] Sea SIYY, ‘uopeIdapisuod rond wo
G6/1 IR[NOID PONSSI OM “OSIDIOXS UOIRINSUOD oyl 0] sosuodsar 9y paIopisuod Suisey
‘G661 Atenuef U] "GEGT OIUT [[9M PINUIIUCD ISJIRWI SIY} UO 31BQIP PUE ‘SMIIA JO aFuel e
PIoYy sopLoyIne Yorm uo 100[gns e sem uoneroprsuod Jord 1By POIDAOISIP SM MIIASIY)
ponoddns uorssturuo) 943 pue vonnadwod uado iny 03 2fqusoq pnoys syusunuiodde
JALNDAXI JOIYD JEY] POTRIIPUL Py 90LJO) YS[IAA 1L, “MO[2q PUB [2A9] JIDIJJO Jo1yo I8 pasnbox
sem uonnodwod oroym sysod 1oy Apdde o3 9[qi8ie oq pinoys jyels jo sdnor§ gorgm
U0 PUB SIAIMOIXO JOIUD I0J uonoduwod uo SMIIA S, UOISSIUIWIO) 94} N0 198 SIUY, H661
Ioqueydog 91 UO UOIRIOPISUOD Joid UO IB[NOID UONEJNISUOD ISIJ JNO  PINSSI a4
‘uonsanb suyy Suneqop uo uels Apreaue opeuw am ‘sioadsold juswiAo[duro  S[enpIAIpUL HO
edwn juedyruSise oaey pnod sjuswogueire uorjeraprsuod roud jey) SuisiuSoosy Q¢

“K1dde pinoo dnoi8 uoreropisuod Jo1xd o1} OPISINO WOI] SIJRPIPURD 2I0JAq POISPISUOD
suoneoyjdde 1oy oaey 01 S oYl wWOY] 0ABT 11 ING (MOIAIQIUI “JB [NISSIOONS IO 0T
PIISIIIOYSOq PNOM S[EIPIAIpUL JBy) 99jueIend Jou pIp 3] “sssoold juswuioddepue 1opsuen;
oyl Suump pgeis o} uopoojoid 9o 01 poudisep sem juowofuUeRIIE SIYJ, ‘SOIOUBORA
Bur(y pue Susnioape uaym Jeis Jo dnoid repnonied e 0] ‘sourisut siy oy) ul ‘Aytoud
DART SOILIOYINE 9I0YM JHOWIDFURIIE O} O} UDALS OWRU JY) SBM UOIBISPISUOD IOLJ /G

NOLLVAHJISNOD ¥01Id

"AJ{IOYINE MOU B O} JULIIOJSuRI}
peis Guowe oferow Jurureursw o3 [BIA A[oInjosqe arem soinpeooid jusunurodde
jucredsuen pue ygJ “Afewoy sn yoeordde 03 ssoocoxd jusunurodde oyy Aq passuSSe
Apuoorns 18] pey S[enpialpul awos ‘oonoeid peq [enjoe Jo 10 ‘samnpacord uoros[es
oy} ur Aouaredsurn Jo yov] B 10 ‘RIS UM UonedIunWWod J00d JO 3[NSOI ® SB IOWI0
“ey) pajutoddesip SSO[OUIIOAOU 2I10M M “SOTILIOUINE MAU 91} 0} PIIIIJSUERT) JIOM OfM
Jeis oy Jo uonoexy Aun e Afuo posuduiod Yl J[BAD oM [OTYM SISBD U9} 9} S[IYM  9¢

91

"ME[ JO 1INOD B Ul 9[qRUIRISHS
39 10U WYSIW UO1DAIP JY FSTMIAYIO 10Ul parojud peare justukordurs yo joenuod Aue
pue AJLIOYINE 0y S[NIISAO O} WY JOf S[(RUOSEDI PUR JBJ 5q PINOM I JBY) 9OUOPLAD YIIm
9Je1S JO AIe101008 oy opiaoid 01 pey oAvy pInosm om ‘os op 0, ‘usunuiodde ue uni
-31 01 Ay1o13ne ue a1 03 (3o 211 JO (€)1 MOKO0S 19pUn) 91BIS JO A1RISI09S 9] ISIAPE 03
SPUNOIZ pulj Jou pip oM N3l B 8y '$$9001d TOIDO}as Y3 JO QWODINO [RUI 9Y} PAJOSYSE
AJTeLISTRWI DRY SIY) JBYI 9OUOPIAD SARY JOU PIP o ‘pajdope useq pey yorym sornposord
9Y31IN0QR SUOIIRAIISAI PRY OM O[IYA "91BIS JO AIB}0IO9S 94l JO UONUA)E 2Y] O) SUIIDUO0D
INO MBIP 0] I0yjoym PRIOPISUOD OM DDURISUI YOS Ul PUE SISBD 983N JO 0m] Ut yoroidde
s Ajroyine oy proydn 01 o[qRUN 0IOM OM ISAIMOY IOYNNJ ISNIBW OY) OYe) 03 SPunoId
puy jou pip om pue suonrur[dxo A10I0BISIIES 919M 9I9Y] Sased jsow uy “jurejduiod oyl
U0 SJURWILIOD $)1 J0] Ajioyne A1eirun oY) yse o1 sea yoeorddenQ -prejop 1eord Aue w
YI1A 3[BOP 9 UOIYA SOSED 9] SSNOSIP JOUURD JI0JOI0N] 11odar I} {BNPIAIpUI 9JqRLIIUudpI
ue 0] S9JB[0l yoIym oo1ApE Jo vouapuodsarod ystqnd o3 1Sur oq jou pmom If S

SN 0] 20UIP1AL USNILIM porjddns sjueurejdmod J1 108 AJUO PIROD oM
JOASMO] "SOTILIOYINE IOY}O UI IO UOTIRSIURSIO oY) UT 9194 MaS[o JuswAo[dws Jo saoueyo 1oy}
Burstpredoo] jo 1eay 107 uredwos 03 o[ [99F JOU PIP OYM QIOW AURLI U] 2ARY ABWI QI0Y)
Juownean moyl ynm Addequn o1om Oym S[ENPIAIPUL JO [BIO] WINS 9Y} 2)NJHISUOD JOU PIp
sjure[dwon [eurio) 9oy} jey) ‘SuoniRIuasardol [BULIOIUT JO IAQUINUE AQ ‘OIBME 9PRL 210M O
"SojepIpuRs Funsijoys jo ssoooud a1y Surmp sanLoyIne Aq Use) SUOISIOaP Inoqe sjurejdwod
UM [RUWLIO) ()] POTRBIISOAUL PUR POAIDODI 9M Q66T UDIBIA PUR G661 1SnBny uasmiag ¢S

-oonjoead
poo8 woyy sornyedop noqe paaroosr om sjurejdmoo Aue dn mof[o] pnom om jeyp
IRIP I opew pue sarnpaoold jputosiod pood Jo souriroduur oY1 0] UOHUE SeTILIOYNE
MIIP IB[NOIID SIYJ, "$2InPaoold UO01I00[9S PUE JUIUNINIOAL UO G6/9 IB[NOIIO PINSSI 9M
$661 oquadog ur pue suoneiuasoidaioyoy)l POIOPISHOD 9py  "DUBPING S, UOISSILIMIO))
samunpoddoy jeabg oyp 10 sonoeid puuosiod 329q SULMO[[O] SIOUBISUMOID [[RUI JOU 9I19M
SONLIOYINE Jey) WI9du0o Surssardxa S[RNPIAIPUI PUB SUOTUN WIOY] SUONRINISaIdor paarasal
am ‘[oAd] 1001330 Jaryo 18 syuounutodde Supjewr Jo pouad oy Sulmp ‘uaym pajuroddesip
o10m om ‘oousuadxo [ouuosiod  sonuoyine [Ed0] 0} YSIOM onp UIAIS SuiaRH €S

spurejdio)y - S2IMPad0IJ UOHIIIPS PUB JUSUIFINLIDIY

yspam yeads o3 yuouranmbaor e Jo L11pijea oy ‘vone[sigoy

JUBAQIOL Oy} uiyyim ‘Qdueisul yoes Ul JUILIDIRP O] SIULIOYINe [ed0] IOy sem I
1B} MOIA IO JROJD JPBWI DN “UOIRIDPISUOD WOIJ PApN{oxa AIBIUN 9G PINOO SSIBPIPURD

reniuoiod jey; ussouod passerdxs uorun oy ‘sysod ureyreds 10y ywowoanmbor e se Anqqe
aden3ue] ysyop jo uoneindys oy SuipreSor NOSIN{ WOIJ SUORRIU0SaIdo POAIIdAIOM TS

Igengdue] yspaas Y1,

“UOnRUIULIDSIP SuIptoar 10] somiqisuodsar £10in1els 1oyl 01 urede souo

Pack Page 170



toud jmuny o3 og ppnom yoeoxdde jsoirey oyi jeyl popnpouood Asyy, -uondo pig v
Buinsind uy paJSIOIU] QIOUI OUIERIOG SBOIR OUIOS U SONLIOYINE ‘POLIOISURI] 9 O} POYSIM
£oy 31 1ojsueyy 01 Jyels [[e 10} o[qissod 9q P[nom J1 JBY) POWLILIUOD U39q PRY J ISy 99

sjuWRUELIY (B0

“Ajfeonayjeduds
suoneuasoIdor 1oy} 03 poudlst] o Seale Il ul uoreioprsuod 1o1id Suipuey Joy sjesodoxd
JAIRUID)E Yl sonuoyine Aq poyovordde orom om usym pue ‘aussISIy] UO JUSUINIIACS
[eoop unyiim uotuido jo Ajunueun JO OB} 9Y] JO SHOMOSUOD AI0A JIOM 9M UOISIOOp
sty Buiyorar uj pieyy uonempisuod oud rpim e £q pejosjold 19)2q 9q pinom yjeis
JO SISaI9Ul Sy} “IOJSURI] JO 99)JUBIENST B INOYILM “IBY) POAJI[Oq 9M PUR [BWLIO] IPLW Uuodq
104 Jou pey J9jsuel) jyeis-[ie Jo ojdound oy} 03 Juowwwod 93 93e1s A1 1BY1IV S661
Alenuef Ul UOIST{OUOD INO JO SONLIOYINE PIULIOJUl 9M PUE BAIB ‘OPIM-AJUNOD ‘ropeoiq
O} 105 O} JJelS QIOW O} IOIIB} 9Q D[NOM I [[RISAO Jey} pepensiod 2IoM M I0AIMOH
‘poouejeq A[ouly 91om sjuowngie oY) SOSED QUIOS Ul PUE ‘SOTBRIUBAPESID pue sageiuvape
sy pey yoeoidde yowy ‘premio} nd osfe axom soyoeoxdde royjo Jo roquinu e pue
JUDUUIDAOSF [BO0] FUOLUE SISUOSUOD OU SEA 0IOU) JBY] POMOYS UOIIBINSUOD INO 0} Sosuodsal
oyl "eare Ajuoyine (1ossooopord) rofjews oy} ©} PO oG PINOYS UOIRIIPISUOD
toud 1BY) MIIA O] UOYE) PRY OM $EGT 19qUIDIdog JO IR[NOIID UOIRI[ASUOD IO U]  °G9

*0$ BurOp UI ISLIE P[NOD YOIYM
sanmoyyIp feonorrd oY) pue soouedea 10y Aldde o1 Ayunpoddo ue siqrssod se yyers
Aueur Se 0AIS 0] USIM 91} GOOMIOQq SBOIR OUIOS UT POISIXO (OIYM UOISUI] ol A[IRS[D SMOUS
opdwexo snyf, oqISie oq pInom (IMpUA[D) pue Ue[ppuyYY JO[ORJA WRYXIIA ‘OPISId(]
¥ UATY ‘UAjo] ‘PPAUUOCLIION 10JAm(] ‘UOJIY ‘UQIN SAUX) S[IOUNOD JOLUSIP SUIU
[RUOL)IPPR U U JJBIS JBY] UROUI P{ROM BOJE AJUNOD JOULIOY 9} Ul JJelS [[B O} UOHBIDPISUOD
Jouxd Suipuaixo ofiym ‘uoneropisuoo Joud 10y 9[qISie oq pnom (Og UAMIO) put Dg
AMU0219qY DD PAMID D PPOULMD)) SONLIOYINE INOY UY JJEIS 1o} UedUI P[ROM SajIIoyIne
Jlossosapaxd o3 uonjeiopisuod youd Sunomsar o9ses sy up  sepunod Suunoqydisu
OM] Ul PAIBOO] SBAIR [IOUNO0D IDLISIP 0Mm] JO dn opews sem LJLIOUINE oY) 9SNLIQ SBM SI [,
Ayuroging jeyl ur sysod 10] wORIAPISUOD 10f 9[QISI[O JJeIs JO JOQUINU Oy} 0} 30U
jueoiTugs e opewr oAy pinom j1o[durexa 103 (AmuoD) uAM[o)) pue AMU0DIOqY UL I9AMO]
Ajroyineg Arejiun mau 9y} jo jted wiIOf pinom Bole AJUNOD ISWIIOY QU Ul Senjuoyine
I1e se ‘suopdo om] 9S9I} U2OMIDIQ ODUDIOIJIP OW Sem 910U} SAMOJ U] ‘Bale Ajunod
IDULIO] 3Y) U SAIJLIOYINE UI JjeIs O] I0 SAULIOYInE I0sseoapard oy} ul Jeis o) uoaif oq
DY p[nod uoneIopisuod Jotd Jey) 19} 9m [9AJ] IOOIJO JOIyd mojeq sisod 104 9

[PAYY JOOYJO JOIYD MOPRY SIS0 - UOIBIIPISUG)) IOLIY
‘ainje)s Aq paznbar -

10 {(pordope Bureq sem
2IMJONIS B Y0NS 2ieym) ures] justaeuew ojerodiod oy w papnpur -

10 ‘o01AI0s pred s, Ajuoyine oy} Jo peay a1} o} o[qisuodsal Apoonp -

81

:3s0d 1013 1511J © ST 31 pOULOp 9 pue 3sod J9013J0 J2IUD B PIImIISUoD
jeym O} se 9)eqop awos sem oroy], ‘ssanord vonesiueSloor oyl jnoyZnoxy) uomrsod
Ino pautewar siyl pue mola syt poyoddns wonejnsuod oy) 01 sosuodsar yo Ajofew
SUL SO\ UI SIOOLJJO JUDIUIIAOT [800] Fuialos 0} uoal8 2q PInoys uoneIopisuod roid
‘ToAd] 100130 Jomyo Ja1 811y Je sisod 103 Jeyy a8eis A1ee AIoA B 8 MOIA B YOO 9p\ €9

§3S0 YO JOIY) - UOHRIIPISUO]) JOLIJ

7661 1V (sorem)
JUSWHIIAOL) [220T 93 JO ()0 Wo100s Jopun A[SUIPIOIOR UONDAIIP B PINSST pue poside
SH "uopeIrapisucdiord U0 SIB[NOID INO UL POSIAPE Se ‘A1ojepuew uonnaduod wado ayew
016661 [Hdy ul “o)mig Jo A1ejo100g oy pajsonbar om ‘0oueping Ino Mo[{0} 03 10U UOIID3]9
9] 193JB 201I0U 110YS KIOA Ju 9PIOOP OSIMIOYIO PINOD AMNIOYINE MOU B JRY) USALD) ‘IqQNOP
I1e puokaq nd sem ssoooxd oty J1 sisod oy Joj sojepipueo [enusiod Jo pue sonuoYINE
MOUTR JO SISOISIUT QI UT 2¢ P[NOM I 1B} PIPA[OU0D 9Ay  “Sjuswiaduerie uonnaduwoo uado
Auny A1dde prnom Kjuoyine mou K104 19y194M 01 st Kjuremooun jo Surfosy v sem 1oy}
jer) voissaxdwy ue poured om SONLIOYINE [ROO] PUR SOOI UOKHISURI] Yiim sTunsow
INO JO 9SINOD SY) uj -QOURISUI ISIIJ 9YJ UI ‘SO[BAA UI SIANMOOXS Joryd Junsixa o] 1o
‘91BN ©1 PatoLnsal oq pinoys uonneduwos Jydnoys ssipoq swog ‘uoniredwos uado ng yo
SuBoWI £ 9ATINDOX3 JOIYD 041 JO JUAITINIDN1 I0) 1roddns ‘snownueun JOU Jnq ‘opim sem
919Y) Jey) pajedipul uoeIOPISUOD 1oud Uo IR[NOID UOIIR)NSU0D IO 0} sasuodssy] 79

‘parjddns a1om 9sou; pue ‘poredord s1om [oTyM
suoneoyoads uosiod pue suonduosap qof yerp oyl jo serdos pue poysijand srom Loy
910J2q SIUIWSIIITAPE 94} JO $21d0D 39S 01 PISE IA\ "ODUBADR UI SJUOWISSILIOADPE paystiqnd
SIONIUIUIOD uonisuel) jo Ajuofews oYy, -woyl juassld 03 309s Jou pnom am ‘AjLioyine
AU JO WOISIOP Sjru)n a1 0) a01pnfard Jnoyim “dols SIY} 938] 0] POYSIM SOOIIIUIIOD
UOMISIRI} JT J2Y) Pa2ISE Op 'SPIRMIONJE SONIIOYINE mou o) Aq uonewrywod o) joofqns
pue siseq [euoisiaold B uo £[Uo JI UOAD ‘SUOIO]D 9} 910J0q pade]d arom SJUQWIISTIIoApE
JT POABS 9q PInod dwi 9[qenjRA 1Byl PondIe SO91)IWIIOD UOTIISURI} JWUOS ISADMOL]
'ssoxd oY) ur sjuowasnyiaape aoefd 03 pue 9014108 pred Jo speoay I19y) 10 suondiosap
qol oyl surwIalap 0} SOILIOYINE MIU DY} I0J SBAM 31 JBY) JUSWUIDA0T [BOO] PISIAPE
Aqreniur opy sysod 107 suoneoyjdde Jo sayuroyIne mau 9yj Aq UONBIAPISHOD o1 201pnfaxd
03 senuoyine Sunsixo ay) Aq ouop sea Furylou Jey} AINSUI 0 POUIIDUOD AIOM Sp 19

10A105qO uspuadapur ue pojurodde pue adouepind
Ino Yy parpdwon senuoyine [{e ng ot} 9y 18 [RISIOAONUOD SeM SIY], "saInpaoold uo
2o1ape feredw A18 0) realssqo juswguiodde Juopusdopur ue aaky PIOYS AJLIOYINE MIU
JOBO JBY} POPUDMIIODAL 9p ITEJ ‘9q O] Us9s 9q PIROYS pue ‘eq pnoys sseoord oy 1)
ssyseydws pip 11 1nq sompaooid uoKo9|9s Lo 90IADE dLIoads 9PNOUL 10U PIP 1] “SOIEPIpUED
9A100dsord 0 uoAId oq 01 wONRWLIOJUT 0] SUOTSOTINS PUB ISIPOIYD JUIOSILIGAPE UR
PapROUT goLyM. “9ANINO9XS JaIYo o) jo jusunurodde oyj uo JB[NOID UOTIRNSUOD B Pansst
oM (FOVI0S) seAnnoaxg jory) Aioyiny (8007 JO KIOI00S o) YIM SUOISSTOSID
Suimorfoy (seinpaoosd juswpinioas ur so1ovid peq SUIPIOAR UO 9OTADPE I9JE] INO 310J9q

Pack Page 171



1c

1ueM JYSIW JFRIS JO I0qUIOW [RNPIATPUI UR YOI SONSST UIRWE 9Y] JBY} POPNIOUOD Ay G/

"Appornb a1our y10M 0] pue wayy Aq paisaod Ajsnoradxd jou jers
J0 8dnox3 950y} J9A00 0] WY} OJqBUS O] SJUIUIATURLIR S[IDUNOY) [RIDUIACIY TUNISIXS o1 0)
ponnbor arom soBueyo jeym Aqnjores poropisuod dnoi§ Fupyiom oyl pue ‘ssnssy Iopio
Ioysuen; jyels ojuoneol ut Apepaonied ‘enuoasss oq pinom asuodsar pider 7 AJ[eo0] 9Ajosox
0} JNORJIP 1SOW 0Q Pinoa yomym pue s1oadsord juouropdure eImjny  S[EnpIAIpUl UO
jordw 18018015 9] 9ARY PINOM [OIYM SINSSTOSOL} UO SNOOJ PInoys wsiueydaw sjeadde
[e10ads o) TRy} 910J0I0Y} POUIdDUOD 219m op4 ooe(d ur Ind sem wsiueyoow Apaads pue
DANDYO UB IBY] [BIIA SBM J1 JRY] JUBDW UOISEI0 sy} uo pasodord sedueyd oy1 Jo ainjeu
[RJUSUIRPUIL DU} JRL} PIASIOG 94, "UOHBSIUBSIOAI 1HaWUIaA0T {200 st oy ur pauaddey pey
Se ‘Sofep U UONESIuRSI0a1 oY) JO spasu tenarned ay; yns 0} peydepe ‘Arouryorw spouno)
[BIOUIACI] TUIISIXI Oy} IOPISUOD O] SN PajiAul adUepIng s,21v1G JO AIRJOIOOS Oy, i/

(gWoT)
pIeogy JUSWIOTRURIA JUOWILIOAOS [RO0] 9Y] PUR SUCHBIOOSSE ANIOYINE [BDO[ 9Y) ‘Suorun

open Juajoaut dnoxd Fupjiom [euuojul ue dn 19s 03 sdojs 4003 om 661 I1equiaidog ur
pue sopuond 1$9YSIY 1IN0 JO SUO SIY} PIIOPISUOD 94| "HOTIeSIUeTI00I JO I[NS31 joonp
se woyl Junooyje SuoISIop 2Fuajjeyo 0] JUIYSIM S[ENPIAIPU 10] wsiueydow speadde
QALIDOJIO ISOUI JYIDUIULIFIOP O} sh porrnbox 93v1G Jo A1e10I100g oy woxy souepmS g ¢/

STIVHddV

XIS
1wydey) ur passnosip 218 9661 [1dy | Ioye pajerado yorym sjuswoSueLIe UOHRIOPISUOD
loud oyj, "98ejs puooss oyl 03 Suipesdoid 910Jaq UIY) MOIAISIUI O} SITLIOYINE Poyse
oM pue sajepIpued [e20] payienb og o1 poreadde or1oy) sased jo raquinu ypRwS € UJ
"A[reIpaw 99138 01 ]G 219M 9M YPIYM JO Auofew oY) Guswasiape usdo o1 passoid o}
souoyIne Jeso] woiy s1s9nbo1 oz Sunyorordde paatacsi am 9661 111dy 1 03 Ioug 7/

"$a1epipued feurd)xs juiodde o3 Bupjoof ax0yeq
soofordwo juswuioaogd [eoo] o1 uoneiopisuod rodord Surarg arem senuoyInE JRI
$aA[SINO AJS1IES 0] 91qe sny) d1om 2y "dajs styy Fupye) a1039q UorSSIUIWO)) 9Y) yoroidde
0} S[IOUN0D payjse am ‘siseq uonnadwod uodo 10 SO[EAA-][® UR UO ‘P[a1} UOHBIOPISUOD
yo1xd 9yl 9PISINO SOIOUBORA OSILIOAPER O} PRYSIM SONLIOYINe Arejiun oIogp I/

JUDHIAISHIIADY JIPIA

“o1por1d
ur [jom 1o 0} pareodde sjuowaFueiie [200] 989 ], 'SI1IUNOD JYSIA [[e Ul SIUSUIALITe [O0]
poaoxdde pey om 9661 Arenuep K182 Ag -onss SI} JOA0D OS[E PJNOD 9A0QR O] PAIIAJOI
sjuowdsduerre [2oo] oy ‘g9 ydeiFered w 1no jos sprengoyes oy 0 00(qns 9eryy paydasoe
‘S66T AR U1 ‘pUBSUOIUN ORI} PUR SITLIOYINE [BOO] YHAM 1YSIOM YONUI paLiIed juotsaide
OIN 343 jey) pastuB0051 om Inq UOTRIOPISUOD Jotd WOILj Popnoxsd 3q JOU P[roys Jyels

0c

paoeld,, teround ui jey) mo1A 91y] YOO OpN PAIAPISUOD U] PeY JJRIS  pooejdun,, 19yye Afuo
uoneIapIsuoo 1oud 03 papiue 9q ProYys - vonzedwod noyiim AJLoyIne mau 3y M sqof
oh1oads 01 pajeooje usaq pry oym 1o sqof Funsixe HOY) UI POXISJSULII 9 PIIOM Oym
JJBIS UBDW 0] POOJSIOPUN oM POIYM - SISeq pooer(d,, ® uo Suruaysuel] Jyels jey) Junes
JUSWSAIZR [IUNO)) JUIOL [RUOHEN ¥ JO J[NSa1 ® Sk ‘eoueping ino jo uoneoiqnd oy 1ayje
JUIUIOA0F JEOO] UIYIM PoSIoWws UONRISPISUOD JOLId UO MOIA JO DUISIP IDYIOUY 0/

Be1s (paovepdup,, pue (pade|d;, Jo UOHRIIPISHO)

‘suoneordwi yons yjm yoroidde ue 0] pojussuod saey j0U pinod
9\ "PeSIMBApT Isiy orom satouroea usym sysod 10y Ajdde o Ajjuniroddo sy poruop usoq
aaRy os[e pjnom (ML Aq pa1oaod oq 01 jou peSpnf axam Asy) osnedsq sjdwexs 10y)
OLS 9Y} Woiy papnoxa JJuIs J8y] JURSW DARY P[NoMm I 'sn 03 9[qeidasorun usaq oAy
pinom juowaSuenie  jood,, oyl JuoUIUILIOD SIY} NOYNA,  stuswaSuese [eoof 1daooe 0}
UOISIOIP INO 0] [RIDNIOSEM JJBIS [[B JOJSURN} 0] JUSWSQISE Juadal SONLIOYINE [BOO] 69

-ooueping o woix Suniedop sjuswoFULIIR UONRIIPISUOD Joud [e20] 2a01dde
PINOA 9 9I0J2q pornbal sem soalejuasardor uorun open) pue jjeis Jo jeyl pue wore
9U} UL SSNTIOYINE MOU pue SUNSIX9 Y] [[8 JO JUOLuadI8e o} GE6T YOIRIN Ul $p/¢ JB[NOIID
Ino ur sjuotuofueiIe 950y 10J BLIOJID QWS INO J0S OA\  'SHURWe0ISe yons o] 1oofqo
10U P[ROM om ‘gore Jepnoned e w sjuswoSueiie [eoo] J0] oddns snowuBRUR SBM 2I5Y)
QIoUM “TBY) POPAOUND 9M ‘POULILJUOD UIAQ ISN{ PRY UDIYM JJRIS I9JSURI] O] JUSUNIUIWIOD
91} JO JUNO2OE Fule] ‘PUB PIAJOAUI SONLIOYINE O} YIIM SUIIDU0D ISIY) POSSNOSIP oM 89

‘Appanoafye pue Apjomb ojeredo o3 wsiuryoow
sreadde oy 10y jueirodwr S10wW oYl [[R } OPEW SIYY, “JJEIS 0 SaroueneA FUpB[NoID Usym
Burpueisino orom sjeadde yons ou jvy] UIRIIED 9q O] POSU PINOM SINLIOYINE “3I0JOI0N]
S[ENPIAIPUL 2soy} 0} Jiey oq O3 lopio uj “Ajoyne remonred e o) jwowudisse moy)
jsurede peadde 03 Kyunpoddosy) oAy “osInOd JO ‘pNOM IsIDIaX0 UonEFI3Fesip oy JO
SUIODINO S} YIIM POIJSHBSSIP 010/ OUYM JJRIS 'JJBIS AQ PISIOPUS pue “91qeinbo “1esp orom
sainpsooxd uoneSes3Sesip 110y 1oy 2105U9 0} aIeo renoried oxe) o] sonuoyne Joj juelodun
SBM JI UOSBII SIY} 104 -juowosSuelie opim-4£1Unod 9y Iopun pey ARy pInom Asy) uey)
sonuone Areyun Surmoquleu oy ur sisod 10y Kjdde oy senmunizoddoiomay aaey pjnom
fuoyne Areyun repnonsed e 03 pajeoofie Suroq e Addeyun 2104 oYM j3eis JuswoueLe
sy} yita ‘repnopied uy -yowvordde siy) UM palBIOOSSE SOTEIUBAPESIP SWOS 219M IR
jey) SnOIOSuOD alom A\ A[[njared sjesodord 959y PoIopISUOD UOISSIWIWIO) YL, L9

"S3IOUBIRA 9]B[NOIID O PeY A3Y) WOy 0] JJBIS JO JIoquiny
oy} Sunoinsar Jo ‘sonuoyine Areyun 10y ‘oFeiurape oyl pey osje ‘yoeoidde Jood,, ot se
0} po1xaal A[friousd seam yorym ‘yoroxdde pary sty “Ayzoyme auo AJuo ul ssod 1oy Ajdde
pIned 1yds Suroq jou a19M YOIgM $[IDUNOD DLISIP 9SOL) UL JJels oI ‘sonjuoyine Arejrun
azow 10 231y} ur s1s0d 105 Kjdde oy Kyrunyroddo oy s1eofzo [PUNCD AJUN0D 19JJO pPNoM
siseq Ajuoyine 108$900paid v UG UONBISPISUOD IOd SBIIR OWOS Ul OSNEOA] ISOIE MOIA
sy, “Aiuoyne Kreyrun jey) jo juswkojdws oY) 0} SuriIAySURY) 9q P{OM OYM JJIS 9501}
0} IOYMNY )1 Junj O} jnq ‘senuIoyine Jossaoapald oyl ur Jyels 0 AJUo jou ‘UOIIRISPISUOD

Pack Page 172



(44

‘sjuowaFueLie uoneIapisuos roud oy jo uoneiuswsydwi ay) Suonuowr -

‘(rnoy 103dery)
005) SANLIOYINE MAU Y] JO JJEIS JO UONRISUNUIDI PUE JUdwSeurW ‘uonesiuesio oy
Mma1Ad1 Jopun dooy pue 19p1suod o} 19y 9y Jo (1)(q)(7)oy uonoss wpun Anp mo -

12IaM SYSe) wgmﬁmmrﬂoh urewr Ino sofLIoyIne Mopeys ayj Jo suol1od]o oy} BYPYY 8

‘sjuswoFuelre sfeadde pue ‘sonunuoddo
fenba ‘uonedorggesip ‘uoneropisuod roud pue uonnedwiod “roysuLy) JyRIS-[[B JO
sjdiounid o13 ‘sopnp [euonppe 103 syuswiAed ‘sjusunurodde wiiejur o1 - RIS Jo S1S193U} 9Y)
P10317e YoIyM sonsst Jofew oy} [[e uo ‘90urpIng panssi pue ‘pajnsuod PeYy UOISSIWIIO))
oyl swmy Yorym Aq ‘G661 AR { UO Pa1Od[o Iom SeNLIoYInNe AIBJIun MOPEYS oY), €3

SNOLLDHTH ALIHOHLAY MOAVHS JHL Y411V

"WNWUIW g 0} sotouepunpar Krosndwon
doay] 0 oW [[B 18 295 POOPUI PIp SONLIOYINE 18y} 9A01d 0] 91om S1UOAD Jnq ‘asuodsar
Mo} e pojold sty uredy  jjels Sururenss Aq 91qissod IOASIOUM SOIOUBDURDII PIOAE
0} sanuoyne Mou JuIFeInodud 961 Arenuef ui Ie[noxd dn-mofjoJ € PanssI a1ojeIaly)
UOISSIWWIO)) 9Y ], “AIBNUR{ IO JOGUISDA(] UT AT - UMOUY SPBLI UOIQ PRY JUOUIIIIOS ONUIASL
JUDUILLISAOS [200] 9y} JO 3Wr001n0 2y] pue pojojduwiod Ajadre] useq pey sisod ojur Jjejs Burmors
Jossevoxd oy [nun sorgojeass Jururel) oY} UO SUOISIONP 93E] O] SONUIOYINE 103 ojqrssod
9q 10U P[NOM 11 JBY} MIIA DU} JO IOM SWOS pue papuodsal sonuoyNe Jo ey uely
$s977 -uonesiuedroar 10y yjers oredord o1 Supye; orem sonuoyine Sunsixo oy sdoys oy
uo uoneuniojur Fupeds arreuuonsanb e yim dn SIY} POMO[[0] oM SeGT ISnSnY U 7g

‘sjuowoduelre Suyjesunos pue sowweidoid
Sururery soy Suruueld voyM IOpISUOD O} WIOY) JOJ SONLIOYINE [BIO] O} A0TApR onssy
0} 9[qe 2JOM ‘GAGT AlenuE[ Ul PUE ‘SO[EA UI PIROE JUSWOTRUEA] JUSWIUIIAOL) [RO0T] o1}
§i1a\ pUE S1001JJO JUOWIUIOAOS [BO0] OANRIUSSIIADI (IIM POPasU oG JYSIW TRy PISSROSIP
oM “Sutoeyoq pnom Koy soSueyo oy 10§ Jers Surredosd 10y syuownSurire soerd urjnd
PINOYS SONLIOYINE [EO0] JBY} JINSUS O} PIUISOUOD 319 IM “parrnbar sem Juijposunoo pue
Sururer) U0 9DIAPE 19YJOYM IDPISUOD O} ST PIJIAUL 9DUEPING $,97E1S JO AIBISINS oYY, ‘g

ONITTISNNOD ANV ONINIVIL

‘sjuowodueiie sjeodde o3 Butuuns pue Furdofasap ur soueysisse pue joddns 1ay)
107 suostodireyo juopuadopul oy} 03 puR SILIRIOIONS [BIDWIAOL] oY} O] SYURY] INO Iojjo
01 9Y1] P[NoM op\ "A[9AND9LJ0 pasjiom sjuatnadueLre steadde eoor oy 1o s15088ns pas8poj
o1om yorym sfeadde [euorjeu jo 1oqunu moj oy, “spoued sieadde o) Aq proydn orom
043 YOIy JO “10PIO I19JSURI) JJRIS Y} 0) Pajeyar 1YSI0 ‘0s2Y) JO [0AS] [BUOIIRU 31]) POYIEaI
9A[OM] pUR [9A9] [BIO] JB UM IJeop oxom s[eadde jo Ljuofewr oty ‘Apwonbasqng  -og

9A[2M] PUB [9AD] [BDO] 1B Ylim 1{eop arom seadde yo Ljuolew 2y ‘Apuenbosqng gy

‘JIBIS YA wisIueyoow e Juraasde ur ssoxSoxd
WIms o3ewr o) Ajtoyine spy) passosd AJ[nyssaoons ogq  "AJunod ouo uy SARIp JO pouresy
Anyuenbasqns jng jurod syl wo SOTLIOYINE ¥ L0 SOOURINSSE POAIIDNI OM GEGT 19GOI0Q) -
squvdegur sonuoyine Arejun yim sSueaty o Suling J9A9] [RUOHEU O} JTUBD [9AD]
[BO0] 38 P2A[0Sal ¢ Jou p[nos yorym sjeadde osoyy Ajuo jeyl 21nsua 03 se os ooeyd ul axom
SWISTUBYDIIU [EDO] 9ANIO9LJO T8} 2INSUI 0 sonjioyine Juidin Uo Posnoo] udyl 9\ "piesy
3q 01 speadde 10§ (oA fruoneu JB soe[d Ul sesm dromowel) B GG toquardes Ag gL

‘poSesiaus pey om se saakojdwo juouruiasod
[E20] [[B 19A0D 0} Popuajxa Slom sjuswegueiie syouno)) ewuracid padepe Ajeroads oy
1oy} 2I0SUD 0] uaye) 219m sdajs puw sonLroyine £q asn 10§ uorjejuaunoop syeadde prepur;s
JUIUWIUISAOT [BD0] PUR SUOIUN YIIAM UOTIRI[NSUOD Ul urede ‘peonpord osje INOT YL 'SL

"suosiadireyo juepusdapul oyl Jo 901 21} pue ‘wisturydw sjeadde
oy AQ Pa1aA0d Jyels ‘sjuatueSuriiv UOHRIOPISUOD 10LId [BDO] PIpN[OUL PISSTIOSIP SIojjew
9y], "9sIBI 0] poysim Asyl [oiym sonsst Aue pue wsmreyosw speadde oy3 ssnosip o3
raquisydag uy suosiodireyo 1wopusdopur yirm Surjeowr e Play 9pM “S661 ISNSNY Ul 9SI0pUY
01 9[qE SBM UOISSHUWOY) 9y} YoIyMm JusuiuIsAod [r00] §iim UOHEBIMSUOD ur suosiadieyd
speadde juopuadopur jo 1811 ® dn moIip NOSING PU® GINOT aU1 ‘A[Supioooy L/

‘euonerado Af[ng sjuowoueIIe oY) 9B
0} SHIoM Iaylny SuiyelIopun ag pnom g0 oyl ey pajeorpul pue Ajdde pynom yorgm
sout[peap pue sainpaooxd oy paquiossp 3] ueuIIoAcS [800] Aq premioj ind sonsst ooy
[BUONIPPE 9Y} pUe poulddU0d SBA UOISSIUILIO)) 9] YOI UM SONSSI arqereodde omy oty
MO IS SIYL, 66T AR § uo syuowoTuelre sjeadde uo (G6/p) JR[NOIO INC PINSST I 9/,

"sopis eakojdwo pue yekojdws a1 woIy soaneIuasaidal yo equinu fenbs
ue JO JSISU0O pinom paued oy) “osed oy Ul 5503uY JeuosIod o 9ARY PINOM SI9qUIDW jourd
[eadde oy ySnowpe ‘se ‘uewareyo juspuadopur ue oAy pnoys feadde ue 1eey o} dn
Jos [oued o) 1ey) Jueprodwi 11 1ySnoyy apy  -Suueey e SurBueire JOJ pUB UOHBIUAIROOP
JUBAQ[I QU] JO UONRIOPISUCD pue UOISSIWIQNS IOJ S[qRISWI 10IS B PIPUILIIODAX
o10Jo1ayl oy ApoInb poproop 9q pinom speodde poleAlOR Sea AIOUIYOBUI S[IOUNC)D)
[eIOUIAOI] QY] 90UO Jey) pue ‘oIndSIp oY} 9A[0SaI O} [9A9] [BOO0] 1B OpBUI UJ9Q 9ARY
PInoYs 10h3 A1045 Keyd ojut 1yBnoiq seas AIouIyorRW S[IOUNOY) [BIOUIAOCI] 91} 910J3q I8yl
POUI3OUOD 2Iam A Sonssi urew oY) Jo joadsar ug sieadde Jo uonerepisucd Aepap jou
PINOYS PUB UOISSTURUOY) 2} Aq POIOJUOW 9q JOU P[ROYS 9soyl Je1y pajdodoe jng 10A0D
0} A1SuIyoRwW o)) poysim A9y} YoIym SIonBW I9YI0 uIelIod poynuepl dnoi8 Jupyiom
oy} uo ssanvjuosordor juswu1oa08 [eao] oyl -aoeld Supye; sem uopneduwiod arsym
sjsod 10§ voneropsuoo soud usA1g aq 03 dnoid ejendordde o) ut [enpIAIpUT U SpN[OUI O
ampreyisutele jeadde jo 1ySu v 9q 0) papoou a1oy 1eYy) papensiod OS[E 910M oA “ATLIOYINE
Mou Fuoim a1y 03 pouisse ‘msia jo jutod S [ERPIAIPUT Y} WOI 9nq JOPIO IOJSueI)
oY} Ul UOSR[OUL ‘AIpU0o9s 10 IOPIO 19JSURI] OU} WOIJ UWOISNJOXI “ISIJ ‘91aM 1S93U0D 0)

Pack Page 173



144

‘51500 juowefeurw pue s[oAs] Alefes ‘sarmonns Fuigyers 9jendordde uo sourjoping
10 sylewiyousq postud000r AJ[RWIO) JO O] OY} Sem JUIBISUOD PUODAS I, ‘68

"0101S JO A1810109S 91 01 pajuasaid om aouspiad Surnyoddns pur aoiApe
Aue Ul 20UoPIUOD 9)9[dWIOD 2ARY 0] PUR ‘SUOISIOLP SIULIOYINE [BI0] Ul UOIUOAIDIUI
Aue 10y uorjediynsn{ Fuoils B JABY 0] PI2U P[ROM M JBY] SNOIISUOD A[OINOE 210M 9A
‘paidope 9q 0] S[oAD] AJe[es PUE SOINJOILIS JUSTUoTRURI 9y} JUIUIIIOP 10] ANfiqisuodsal
1e39] ays pey sopuoyine (oo ‘Med 11913 104 "90IADE JRU) UO PIseq uonoalp e Suryew
ur AJGRUOSEAI PO PRY AY Jey) ‘AIBSSIDU JI MB[ JO 1IN0 B UI “9JBNSUOWAP PINOO 91RIS
Jo A1e101008 21)3 ey ose pue osodind si; ur reapd pue papiom Ajesard sem ao1Ape Yons
1R[] 210J2I2Y] [BIUISSI SEM ][ UOISSIUIUIOY) J1f} JO IDIAPR 9] UO AJUOC Inq ‘OS O P[nod
91B1S JO AIBIRID0S OUJ, "UOIOE JO 9500 refnored e jdope 0} senuIOyINE [EOO[ JOSIP
01 Jomod 3] 9ARY JOU PIP UOISSIIWO)) 3G ], SINLIOYINE [BD0] PUE 2JElS JO AIRI0109S oY)
‘uoIsSIwo) 9y uoamlaq sdiysuoriefal pue Jo sromod AI0ITIeIS 94 91aM 9SIY) JO ISIY O,
“STUIRIISUOD JO IOQUINU B IOPUN SURIOM 9q P[NOM M JBY] POSIUS009I 9M I0A0SIOIN  "§Q

-sopioyine yiim diysougred up 3no A1red 03 Jy3nos oM yorym pue ‘orgnd oy
0 $921A10S JO UOISIa0id oy} 01 SI Aue SUIPIOAR pue Jjess Jo sisarojur o) Suipiendoyes
ANy ss900Id IOJSURI] YIOOWS B 99SIDA0 O] Sem yoIym ‘Ainp awiid o osipredoaf o)
10U SNOIXUR ISOW 210M 9A WIS 10] [IOULIN] JO ST} B 18 SANLIOYINE Yilm saindstp 0y pes|
PIROD 11 1BY] UIODUOD pue ‘BoIe SIY) Ul soniigisuodsar pue  WOLRIOSIP  SonuOyNE
uo Aporendorddedr  SuryoroIows UOISSILILIOD) 9} JO MSU 2y} INOqe LISOUOD I Yiim
1Y8noIq 9]01 IOMOLIRYU SIY) USAT °,SOPRIT JOMO] UI JJEIS I J[9SH UIIDUOD 0) Pasu 0]
Apoyirun [oq ppnom pue] s1oSeueit JOIU9S JO UOTIRIGUNIIA) PUE JSQUUNU 1} U0 YOJM ISO[D
Aprenorred e doay,, pinoys uorssTwo)) oy Anp sy} SuiSIeyosip ui 1Byl - UOISSIIIWIO.) 9]
01 soueping paysijqnd 1oyl ul papnjoul Appusnbosqns pue - POIFLIRID OLIO UYSOM
oU3 ‘SUOHEBINSUOD 10] 99)Iwwo)y ay) £q jsonbor jueSin ue o) osuodsar uy g

"parea)
S[ounod JunsIxo 9y} Jo Aueul se ‘sepuIoyIne mau oyl ur Aed pue samponys Juoundeuriu
JO moraor Burof-uo ue 9q O} POPULIUT Sem I Ieylegm Iesjoun Suraq ‘poyrip se
uawaninbar ay) Jo yipealq judredde pue sInjeu Sl 1k §10q POUISOUOD SBA IIJJTUILIO]) S,
‘paysiqnd sem [jIg] TUSWILIOAOD [8007] oy} uoym Ajuo pareodde pue ‘papadxoun sem
«S[ounoo jedourd mou 9y JO JJeis 9y JO uoneIsUNILI pue juswafeuew ‘uonesiuedio
9y} mMa1401 19pun dogy pur IOPISHOD,, 0 UCISSIUIIOY) JJelS 91 103 Juswraxnnbar syy, -9g

SALLIMOHLAV MIN TH.L NI AAVILS
A0 NOLIVIANNNTYH

ANV INFINAOVNVIA ‘NOLLVSINVOIO
- () (@ () 0¥ NOLLDAS

‘moy roydey) ur passnosip st (1(q)(Z)oy uonoos
Ispun ssuyqisuodsorino 01 yorordde 1 -oaoqe oIS SYSel oY JO ISIY ayiIng |je
0} UOTJRIQI UI Paiinbal sem worjor JRyM PaquUIOssp Apeaife aaey syderSered Surpasard ayj,
*SEOIB 9A0QR 9] JO Yoes Ul ssa1doxd 110yl sSnosip 0) ‘seAneInesordal Jyeis pue uorun Jpen
puR ‘SoNLIOYINE AIB3IUN MOPRYS 77 [[¥ 19W 94 G661 10qo1oQ pue saquisides Suting '8

'ssao01d sjusuurodde
3y} 0 uopreyes ur repnonted ur ‘gyers woly syurefdwos pue souonb yum Fuieop -

{IopI0 I9)SURI)
J3e1s 3eIp oy3 0) suonaquiuod Fuuiedard ur sse18oid  sepmomne Jo yoen Surdosy -

$I19pIO Ioysuey) JIelS JJRIp oYl
Jo uoneotqnd oyy a1030q sovpd ur sem wsraryosur sjeadde [eroads oy 1Y) Sunnsud -

YN0A FHLIVHO

Pack Page 174



LZ

9¢

I0Ju9s uo suoisIap Aq pasipredosf oq prnom yels Jotunl Jo SISI9IUL ) JRY SOUSPIAD
SJQILIPACIUODUI PUE 1B[O INOYNAL Aunnios orqnd 10} Ajioyine Aue AJUSpIO) st moj[e
01 9]QBHBAR PRl 0M UDIYM UOnBWIOJUl 9y} Jo Ajjenb oyl Joao siquop Aueur 003 o1om
2103 ‘(31BME AJ[NJ SOULIOYINE 9SOY} OPBUW 9M UDIYM JO) SOSBO SWIOS UI AJ9IXUR I0] UOSEOI
po0d pry om JIYMm 1Ryl PIPR[OUOD IM TUNIODIE OJUT SUOHBIIPISUOD 99yl [1e Juppey, 16

‘passed aAvy Apeal|e pjnoM UOHUIAIIIUI QAT 101 aur oyl 98vIs yorym Je ‘ssanord
usunuiodde 5y Jo puo oY} UM SAINIONIS SOLIOYINE [{e JO 21m301d [[1) B 3ABY 10U P[ROD oM
I0AOmoy sreoyjo Funutodde pue sarmonys Supdojeasp yo sseoord sy ur 98eys Kpreo
UE J& 08 0P 0] Pasu PNOM 3 AJOAIIOIJIS DUDAISIUT O Jey) ‘A[pU0deS ‘pue ‘uonesuesioal
1oy suoneredard s Ajoyne Areyun e 0} [ewipnford sAefop ur paynsal 9Aey pnod
o1RIS Jo Aiejoxoog oyl £Q UOHUDAISIUL 1YY “ISI ‘SNOIOSUOD 9I0M OM UOHIPPE U  'g4

"A[SALI09]J9 SAOTAISS IIAT[OP 03 AJIJIQE S)I 1091JE P[NOM UOIOY
[ons juij) SUIe]d O} PIf SARY P{ROD 2InIoNIs S31 woy 3sod UaAIS & sA0wWaI 0 AjIoyIne UL uo
juswanmbay v Apre[iuuls “A1RNIqIR USA9 10 0ANSS[qNS SEAM UONONPaI 9Y) JeY} ‘uoneonnsnl
Swos Yim ‘pon3ie oary pinoo it ‘oFejusorad 10 junowre uaald e Aq S1500 JuowaFeurw
) 9onpax 03 sn Aq paxnbar usaq pey Ajuoyine ue ‘opduwrexs 10y g1 -eduelsur ienonied
e Ul PoNSn{ seMm SIY1 1Byl OPNOUOD 9M PINOYS “anssi 0] 2JelS JO AI80I09S JY) YSB pInod
M YOIM UOKDDIIP 9} JO QINJRU 9} I9AO SIUIRIISUOD O[GRISPISUOD OS[E 9I9M 2IDU, ‘C6

‘oBrioAe
S O $$90X3 Ul A[IUROLIUSIS 219M S1S00 S, AJoyine refnonsed v ey juiod ouo Kue
Je urel1o0 9g 0} 9fqIssody J1 Jupjew “S9q 1B SAIJEOIPUI 310M SUCIIRINO[ED PUE Biep
mo jey) 3nsar oyl Y pajepdn Apjueisuod Suroq sem pey om UONEBULIOIUL oY) -

pue ‘sairejes dn 9ALID JYFIw SaPMOLpP
juawpnIoal Jo ‘Agder8003 ‘vonisod onuUOU009-01008 S, AJLIOYINE 94} SE YONs SIOORI OO -

‘sonoyine fews u ‘108pnq 9y yo uonzodoxd
e s 1oydny 9q 03 A[93I] 059 §1500 JuowoSeurUI ‘O[OS JO SOIWOUOIISIP 9y} 0} Inp -

1SUOSBAI
JO roquInu ¥ JOJ UOLNED I PIBDI) 9q O PRY SUOTIR[NO[RD Ino 1By pasiudooar om dojs
Sy} FULIDPISUOD U] "9JvIS JO AIRI0I00S 9} JO UOTUAYB Y]} O] SISED 9SOYF MBID 0 IO M
PIIGPISUOD PUE PIUIIOUOD AJLIOYINE IY) 0] JB[D SMITA INO IPBUL M 9S8O JOBD UJ 'S]S00
JuswWoFEURW IOIUIS 0] PAIROO[e U9aq pey 198pnq oy o uonrodord oFesoae ueyy 1oySiy e
‘SONLIOYINE [[EUIS UT ‘010U SISED 910M 989y, “Jjeis town{ 1oy suoneordur erusiod sy pur
amjonys refnoned € Jo N0 FuiSLE UAPING SO0 9Y) JNOGE SUIIOUOD SNOLIAS 9ALLY 0} panunuod
oM ‘SDUBINSSE Yons ojidsop puE ‘SoOUBISUL JO JOQUINU [[EWS AISA B Ul ISASMOH  “bG

*9UIAIAIUT 0] 935 03 1yTu
aq jou p[no 31 Jey) popensiad syl orom om pue A[[erousd s1s00 Furpyels 1940 joxuod Iy
Jurstoxoxe Jo uonuslw 1oy pajess 10 peydope Suroq oxmonns Surgyess renonred oy 1oy

uonedyusne popraoxd 19310 Loy} S9SBD ISOWE U] SSIHIOYINE 950Y] YIM STUNSIU [RULIOY P[Y
10 3ouspuodserrod ojur paiojuo om parsisiod SLIGOUOD 3SIY] ISYAY “SNOLIOS DIOW DIOM
SUIOOUOD INO “PIiY) FUNITBUIOI O} [} ‘OJIM ‘DIIY} JOYJOUR YIIM SIOBIUOD [BWIOJUI PRY M
‘SOTLIOYINE JO PINYIouO I9A0 jsnl 10BIUOD 0] AIPSSO30UUN I PUNC) 0M ‘SULIDI PROIq U] €4

‘s3uraes 103 adoos
SurAJnuapl pue SoIMONNS I9Y) SUIMIIASI SILIOYINE £IBIIUN 0} PO SUOISSTOSIP A[Ie8 INO
SOOUE)SUI JO I3qUunt © U SB jnyasn pasoid s1ovjuoo [euriojul A19A 0Soy, "paaIos uonendod
oY1 0} 9ALR[AX I0 [RJ0} ul Joype ySiy aq 01 pareadde yorym sisod juswaFeury [[BISA0
pue “AJiIqisuodser Jo [9A9] pojeIDOSSE 9y 103 Pa1oadxa 9q 1y uey) 19ySIy J1OM YOIYM
sotre[es ‘paarss uonendod 913 03 9AITRQ1 10 [B10} UT IOUHS S1aZeuRU JOTUAS JO sToquiny ySiy
Apuaredde :popnpour sopuoyme Arejiun yiim pasier am sjurod ays jo sojdwexy -aanejus)
K1oA A[1IBSS200U 210/ SUI0OW0D 1IN0 o98els Ajxeo jeyl 1y spesodod oy yo Suipueisiopun
mo Fuihyired jo osodind oyy yoy Adwirs sonuoyINE  PoJOBIUCD M SISEO AURW Ul
Po9pUl plie ‘sISeq [RULIOJUI U UO SONLIOYINE Y11 104 0] 1YSNos ap\ "pouroduod Kjuoyine
9} YIIM PISSNOSIP UOY) oM Yoryas sorjrwoue juaredde Aue Joy woy) Surururexs ‘padojaasp
Aayy se sormonns 19yl GO SANUIOYINE AJRJUN WIOE] UOHBULIONUI POUIRIQO 9M  °T6

“YSU SIY) 118D PIp SOIMIONLS
JuswaeURW JOTUOS SOMLIOYINE 19YIOYM SSOSSB 0] St} J[NONJIpP e sem 11 ‘siojeredwod
9]qeIO1 JO YOB] 9} PUB NIOM 92U} JO 2INIBYU SAIIOS[GRS 9] USAIL) *SIIOUBPUNDII S[RPIOAR
ISIMIAYIC UT FUNNSAI OIS PIROD S[9AS] IOTUN{ 9IOUI JB SAINJONIIS ‘SONNOLJIP [eIDURULY U
JI9SII pUnOJ 191e] pUR JUDMOTRURUI JOTUASJO SHFOUaq oULL pUR SOLIBIES o) UO §1500 Yy
Afaane[a: penrnour Ajuoyine e J1 JBYl SEA INOYSNONJ wroouod Jumunuod g CI6

“JJe3S JO SISIoUl oY) prendojes
0} 19pIO Ut AJRSSOO0U SEM UOUOAISUI Y0NS 18] UMOYS 9q O} PIdU P{nom JI ‘SUOISIOSP
(SSNLIOYINE [8D0] UI QUOAIIIUL O] 91RIS JO AIBIOIDQS 9Y) ISIAPE O] 91om oM JI :yoeoidde
onewseid v jdope 0} poposp om puw sanUOYINE [iM UONOE Aue Fuiye) 1oy spunoid
PI[OS A13A 9ARY 0} PO PINOM M JBLI PIPIOUOD 9 SUOIIBIIPISUOD IS} JO MAIA U] "0f

"UON3IOSIP SH UIYJIM PUR JUSTIORISe
DNS U3 Wiy “ozIs s71 Jo AJLI0yIne ue JOoJ SOLR[es y3ry A[oAlR[o110S 0] “9SOYD 0S 1 JI ‘001
sonIoyIne Axe)un oy} Jo yors Yol SHLY, "DNS 2Ul AQ 198 9501} urY] SO[BOS AIR[eS JIOMOIIRY 10
Tomo] uryim yiom ‘ordourid Jo IojRW ¥ S ‘SarIoyine [e20] [[e 1By} PUSWILLOIaI O} SN I0J
9]qRUOSEAI U33q 9ARY PINOM J1 TRI) 0ADI[Oq JOU PIP 9y “AjuIoyine 198xe] & uey) sysod refrus
10} S[0A9] Arefes 1oySiy 198 0] AjoyIne [[RWsS ® I0f 1wourdaife DN o) uryiim ajqissod
se 31 ‘pueq tepnoned roy; uryyim aioymAue sourefes yoyid o] WopoaIy oyl pey SepLIOYINE
pue paddepioac spueq uvoneindod oy sy -2z1s vone[ndod s L1ur0yine 9y 03 Surprodoe
spueq ojul podnor8 arom sojeos KIv[es pROIQ AI2A 9SO, ‘[OAS] () 1B SOONIIIO))
SunenodaN jurog ajeudordde oyl Aq pooISe ISI[IRY USSG PRY YOIYM SISOLJO IOIUIS
PUR SOAINDIXD JAIYD O] sSpurq AIL[RS oY) 9YOMm SIOFRUBUI IOTUDS JO SILIB[ES UO SUOISIOP
(Senuoyne 10y yromowely Ajuo oy, -oanoafgns A[ySwy 9q pinom ySry 00] 105 a1om
saurees Jo dnoid 1o Arefes repnonied e royoym jnoge juewadpn{ Aue 1Ry juesw suyy,

Pack Page 175



6¢C

8¢

“9SINOD NP UL JRO PILLIED 9 P[ROM UOHEN[RAd qOf
juopuoadopur ue jeYj) poULIJUCD puesate[es SuTISIXS IIBY) UO SI2D1IJ0 Sulisixs oy} pajuiodde
sonuoyine yied [ewoley  JSBOD) ONYSAOIQUIS PUE SUODEOY UODAIG  [9A9] Arejes
paysijaelse Ajsnoraaxd ayi 1e 19010 yied jeuoneu v juiodde o3 ‘“eoryo Jumsixo oyl
JO JuswraInar o) uo ‘sfqissod 31 punoj Kyjuoyiny yied [eUOTRN BIUOPMOUS HISA? 9y U]
‘A[3urpiooor pasiapeom pue sanuoyine yred ooyl oyl Aq paidope aq 01 yoeoidde Juoisisuco e
S[(RUD PINOM } "POISIXS 90UIPIAS Y0NS JoYyjaym Sururuislep Jo sueow ojeuidoidde oy oq
pinos uonenieas qol juspuadopur ue 1oy} SeM MIATAINQ "ISBAIOUI UE I0] 9pBL FUIAq 9SBD
Surourauoo e noyjm pasoidunraq jou ppnoys Arefes Fumnsixa oyl By} PISIAPE Im SISeq
ey uQ ‘spunoId 9soy) vo poynsnl oq PInod 19ySurI} JOAIP B JBY] PUB QWITII MU 9]
sopun ApueoipruSys Suiueyo oq jou pinom senjiqisuodsar s1901yy0 yred jeuoneu Junsixo
1BY1 109339 9] 0] 9SIOIOXD UOTIBINSUOD IDI[IES Y] SULMP PIAIIAI suoneiuosaidar
JO 1UNOOOE Y00} oM ‘sIodiyjo yied yeuoneu jo soure[es ayj uo Sulsiape uj ‘goj

“INO SIY) P A[9AIIO9]]3
dqetetun vonesyueSIoar oy Ul payoear agels oyl Jey) 119 oM 10A9MOH “AJSUIPIOIOR PasIApE
OARY PINOM 9m ‘ssocoxd oy ur o3els IOI[IBY UE Je ONSST S SULIOPISUOD U33q oM pey
‘pue arqeroyord aq pnom uonpsdwoo vado ue jeyl mora oyl Y AyjedwAs oaey ‘o)
UI “PIP 9M ‘UOISTOUO0D STy} FuTyorar uy 1001Jo red [euoneu SUSIXS oY) JO JOJSULI] J00XIp
Aq paypiy 99 pinoys 1sod oY) Jey) POpPNOUOD M - PI[[IJ 2q APB2I[R PINOM SanLIoyIne AIejrun
ur s)sod ojqeredwod Iajo osneooq o8ejueApESIP JIRUN U JR SI9OWJO yied [euoneu
Funsixo nd prnom ssaooxd vonesiuedioor oyl ur oFels o1e] sup e uonnedwiod B jey)
suonriuosordar Juons owros remoned ur pue - UOENSUCY 9Y) 0] sasuodsarayl jo
WSI] oy} Wy Jnq paouefeq AJoUL) 91oMm SjuowmungIe 9y, ¥edugo yied jeuoneu Funsixo oy jo
Joysuel) oa1p 1o ‘paousy-unr 10 uado ‘vonnaduwos sxom suondo 2y, 190130 yIed [euoneu
/301a33s pred jo peoay 2 Jo juowiuiodde a1 10] sjusuroSuRLIE 3Y) UO PIIASUOI SM "Z0T

VAN 23 v sisod 10yj0 03 Juouninidal 1oy sjuowoguelre woneraprsuod ond -
‘0014105 pred jo peoy/1oomyjo yivd [euonEY 91} JO AIR[RS -

‘o01410s pred Jo peoy/1e01o yied [gUOIjRU Y} JO JUSWINIONT -

:SEOIB 921Y} O PAsnooy

SYJIN 0} 90IADR INQ) “UOISSIWIWOD) 91} JO el ay) unpim (SYJIN) Senuogne yied
[euoney  mou oy SurSuriq 1op1o ue opew 91}S JO ATRI0INAS A} G6GT I2QUIAAON UY ‘10

SHLLIYOHLAV I Vd TVNOLLVN

SHIAOT YHH.LO OL
ONTIITHASNVIL JAVLS INHANIHAOD TVOOT

‘Ko 94109130 pue oAlsusyerdwod e ur
3581 SIY} JN0 ALIED 0] $90IN0SOI PUB SZIS IS INO YIIM UOHESIULSIO Ue 10J d[qIsea] Jou sem
1 TRy} 9A91[9q oM dIoumeyun,] “ss3001d 1oysuer) oy SuLmp Jjels Jo sise1ejul oYy prengojes
01 sanuoyIne yum Suppiom 1oy Anjiqisuodsar ano yHm s[quedwod Ajjoym jou sem o
J POLLIED 9M YOLIYM Ul IDUURUI POJOLIISSI S} Ul UIAD YSE} ST JeY] Papm[ouod 9ABY M "001

‘so0Kordwo pue srokojdwo usamiaq saimpaood Sunenodau paysiqeisd ySnoxy)
oyur perdyus Apodord uooq pey JjosH yoIym quowaaide DN Y £q pemojje ANIqIxaf
opum AI9A 91 sem J0)oB] Koy oy ‘SIoFBUBW JOTUSS JIAY) HNIoaI 0} APornb A1oa oaow
01 SUrARY 0J0m SONLIOYINE AMOPRYS UDYA SUID) B 8 SIMIONIS Judsodeuews Oojul MIIAl
aA1SUSYRIdIWIOD © JONPUOD 0 2[QISEI) U93Q IABY PINOM JI IOYISYM IQNOp oAy “Jess Jorunf
Bunosjoad Jo souenodun oy serjuoyine 03 SurIpopun Ul AJure ‘SSa000s JO JINSBIUW SUIOS
QARY PIP BAIE SIY) Ul 3IOM INO JEy) SI UOISO[OUOD I "UONLISPISU0D [1ja1ed uonsonb siy
U0AIS 9ARY 9p4 J0OP INO J& paoe[d usaq 9ARY J0AJU PINOYS AP STy 1el) pue payyusnf arom
SUOTIRAIOSIT 953y} e} SOJENSUOWP UOHUSAIONI PUSWIMIOOII0} J0U UOISIIP Ino Jey) pandie
aq pmoo 1 Anp (1}(q)(7)op uolodg s3I o Aled 0} UOISSIWIO]) dY) JOJ J[qIses] pue
ojenrdordde sem 11 Je] MOY JNOGE SUOIIBAIOSAI SIOLISS PRY OM ISIISX UL JO LIS YV 66

"poyusnf
U93q 9ARY PINOD 238)S JO ATBJ0109G Y} AQ UOIIUSAIDIUL JEY) S0UIPIAD OU SABY O} SNUNU0D
M "S66] I0quIoda( Ul senjLoyIne Algjun Zg [[e J0J SeUe[es PUB $aIMonys JOwos o JO
aamyord Jo[[ny v puey 03 pey am souo0 padueyo jou pey uorisod oy Jety) POUIU0D UaY) I
‘G661 1snSny ur uoisnppuos Areurunpid mo jo 9ye)§ JO A1ej0I08g oY) PIWIOUE 9 86

‘KJLI0YINE UR O} UOIDAIIP B ONSST 0] 2je)§ JO
£1e121008 oY) SuIstApE pagnsni 9ABY PINOS am }[9) 9 YOI UL SOUBISUT OU SeA I} ‘S10308)
2SOyl I[e JO msar B sy ‘sessooosd Supfelw-uoIsIoop | SonuIoyne [ed0] Ul SUSAISIUI
03 93818 JO AIB101008 oY) 9s1ApR 0} uonisod € UI 10U 2Iam oM ‘SarmOnNys juotegeURU

HAId JHLdVHO

Pack Page 176



Ie

-orerrdozdde oroym sorem ui
JJeis Jusweraaod [eoo] o1 Ajuiond 9A13 0] Supjass pue JuswaISe 2y} Jo JLIdS oY) UTHiIM
Funrerodo oxe sonjuIoyIne JeY) SOIEDIPUI 9jEp 0] SjUSWOBURLIE 953Y] JO SUMOHUOW IRQ
-wonedwos wado Apny 01 paodcord 0] usym pue SISBQ S[BA-][B UE UO sisod asnreape
oy ojeurdosdde 9q pjnom 1 USYM IPIOIP O] UOTAIOSIP STILIOYINE JARS IRMOID INQ 01|

‘BoIR
Ayunoo 1owioy oy ui soanvIuosaxder JJeis pue SanLIOYINE [[e JO Juow22Ide oY) prYy Aoy
1) popiaoad sjuowoFueite [eoop ojerodo 0] senuIOYINE 0] pPamofe 9I10ja1ayl (96/p)
IR[OOIO INQ) WAL} JO UOISIOA PIIFIPOUI B YIm JO ‘Sjustadueiie Uoielapisuod toud jeoof
FunsIxa 1oyl YIM SnUnUod 0} (SIM JYSIW SOrLIOYINE SBOIR SWOS Ul 1ey] PASIFo0ar om g
yoroxdde 1ySia oY) SEM SIY) 1BY] PIPRIDUOD IM POAIIDAI 9m SOSu0dsaI 9yl Jo IS oyl Uy 601

"WYY O3 JSI0JUL JO DI0M UDIM SOIOUBORA AUR
10y Ajdde 03 L&1runyroddo ety ‘uorjesuaduiod JUIWILIAP FUIAISD 919 OM IO ‘UOIIBI0] Mol
v 0] poLIsJsuel} uaaq pey oym Jyers Suiarg osje ayiym sonuoyne Suumoqudioun ur jjers
«pooerdun, Gururewor Aue 10400- ppnom yoroldde siy) jeyl Sem mMIIA INQ /66T YOIRA
1¢ mun A(dde pnoys juowoSureiie Sty ey} pue BaIe AJUNOD IDWLIOY 9Y) U SSIIIOYINE JO
Jeis fjewosy suonesidde oyaur uay) pinoys 1 Juswajdwod Jyels SunsIxo S UM WOy
KoueorA ® [[1J 01 o[qeun sem Ajioyine ue i jey) pasodord opy  "SMOIA INO UO SJHOWWOD
SI0410 pue  satjuoyine SuniAul JB[NOID UOTRINSUOD B pansst pue 9661 [11dy 1 1o33e L|dde
pinoys sjuswoeSuriie uoneropisuod 1oud Jeym pPoIapISUOD oM 9661 ATBNIqe] Ul Q01

9661 TRIdV T HHLAV SINFAEONVIAV NOLLVIHUISNOD d0OTdd

“fouepunpay
frospndwoo wey) Ioylo sueow AQ S[oAd] Suljjels ul suononpal 10379 o} ‘ojqissod se
I8y Se “)Y3n0s aARY SONLIOUINE JBL) AYLIOMO]OU ST 11 SSI[OUIIIAIN "OWl} SWOS IOF UMOUY
9q “0I0JoIoY] ‘Jou [[IM uonesiueSioor wiory Suisue  SOIOUBPUNPAI JO JUSIXD [N} AU
‘1661 toquaidog og pun 9rerodo o1 anunuoo [fim swoyos uorjesuaduiod Aouepunpal oy,
"JJRIS 9SOY} 91epOiOdIE O} SHOR J19Y) SUMUIIU0D 019M SONIIOYINE puk 7 O} paonpal
u9aq pey styi (9661 Joquaidag) Sunum jo sw ouylly 9661 111dV 1 1e se JFess peoepdun
£€7 910/ 21911 JRY} UOISSILUIOY) 9} POWIOJUE SSYLIOUINE [BDO] 90U} JUDAD 9U) U “Hjels
pooejdun, 107 s1sod Juipuyy ur ssexdord 1roy) SUIUIOUOD SOULIOYINE IIIM JOLIUOD Ie[ngal
ur 91om 9m 9661 113dY [ J91Je pue 210J9q syoom o) I A[SuIp1090y “uonisod juswiLojduto
wio} Suof noyy aojuerend jou pinoo N gels o3 uonoejold juentodwi parsjo palreysuen
9Q O PAYSIM OYM JJRIS [[€ I9JSURI} O} JUSITWWIOD JY] [IYM “JBY] SNOIDSUOD J10M IM /0]

YTASNVAL HHL ONTIOLINOIW

9661 TIAdV T HHLAYV SHLLIALLDV

0¢

-pa8po] 219 sfeadde yons ou JusAd oY)
uy "seanpaoord 0m) 9SOy} UPMIOQ SUT] Y] UO IDIAPE PONSSI am 2I0JIoY) G661 1990100
up “wsweyosw syrodde [eivads spouno)) [erouls0lg oY) Iopun [eadde ue ayew 03 ysim
OS[e PNOM - AouaSy JUOHIUOIIAUE 9} O} SuIje]ol WSTURYOoW IndSIp §,90L30 UYS[OIM U}
Aq pa19A0D 910M OYM - S[RRPIAIPUL 950U} JO JoqUINU [[euIs ® Jey) Ajjiqissod & sem a1y,
"So[eAr 10] Q18]S JO AIejoroos oyl Aq paredoxd suroyos 1osuel e Jo suedwr Aq AOualy
9} 0} POLIOYSURI] 9 0] 219 S[IOUNOD JOLUSIP UT SUM{IOM JJIS UONRINTAI 9JSEM JO roquinu
e ‘9661 Midy | uo Aousdy JUSUIUOIAUF 1] JO JUSWYSI[GRISI 9U) JO J[Nsal B S 901

ADNTOV INHANOIIANT THL OL ONTIIHAASN VAL 4AV.LS

‘G661 19quIada(] Ul AIe}aIoas
SWOH oyl £q opew SI9PIO UOHRUIQUIOD 991Y] YENOIY} Pejodjjo UdY} Sem Wyl 0] jjels
JO I9JSURI] 3Y] PUR SONLIOYINE MOU 9y} JO JUAWIYSI[GRIS? 91 ], ‘Kjuoyine Areyun 2yl 0} X0
Ajuoyime 11y o) 03 IoJsues} pINOYs PIISOUOD S[ENPIAIPUL SUf} I9YIOYM UO A[[eD0] PILjorRal
aq pinoys juswoeoide ue jey) Junsod8ns GeeT AInf UI SIOUNOD AjUNOD O] 9JOIM M
pue samSy o[3uIs I 0IoA SIOQUINU O} JeY} PoJEdIpUr sesuodsaIoy], Siopew Ajuoyine
o1y uo Apureur 1o Ajjoym Sunpiosm yyeis poddns [EXU0D JO SIBGUWINU Y} UO S[IOUN0D AJUN0d
PI)[TISUOD A\ “ISOLJO JAIYO A7)} JO 1SusTRURUI JOAIIP ([} JOPUN JOU YSNOYJ[E “O0IAIS oIT)
a1y 103 Apured 10 £[joum paspiom oym Jyers poddns Jo uonisod 9y} JOPISUOD 0] UOISSIIIO))
9y} PANAUL 0UBPING 90I() YS[OM UL -SOBLIOUINE PIUIGUIOD 99IY} Ouf Pagiow dlom
SOTLIOYINE 2117 poseq-Kunos JySo Sunsxs oY, ‘SOBAL Ul SONHIOYINE S11j JO UONEsIuegIoar e
OOLI3PUN 301J() SWOK 9y} ‘UONESIUETFI001 JuouIIoA0S [BOO] 01 9810100 djeredss € uf "GOT

SHILIMOHLAV TAId GANIFINOD

“BOIR O} UI SONLIOYINE PUB JJBIS YA JuowoSueLie [B00] € 9013¢ 0} 001f OIom
Koy yorordde juaroyip v onsind 03 paysim sYJIN J1 "Yied [euoneu 913 4G PO19A0D SLAJE IO
voIR AJUN00 1oulIo] oy} I Jyels [ 0} Ajddu p[noys uoneIapIsuoo 1ond Jey) sem [9A9] J001JO
yred [RUOIIBU MO[aQ SIDUEDRA I0] SjustogurIIe UONRIOPISU0 Jo11d uo a01ApE G Y0

XIS ¥d1dVHO

Pack Page 177



sonnp 1m0 SuI[i[n) I00QR 108 A MOY [1RIaD Ul paqiIdsep aaey sofed Suipeoard oyy, '8

‘wnwiu g 03 3doy ueaq aaey ‘08e1S SIYI 1B ‘SIIOUBPUNDOI
frospndwonjeyy pue A[LIBJUN[OA PIAIIYDR “O[OYM S UO ‘DIom S[OAD] SUIJRIS Ul SUOTIONpPaI
2591 1Y) AYIOMO]OU ST J1 $SO[aYNaAAN “uorlesiursIoor patuedwioode Yorym sjusoSuese
Suryress ur [earoydn oy JO 9[EIS ) JO UONELIIPUL UE 9AIS seIndy 259y, 1ied ur 1o Afjoym
JOUIIS “JUIWUIIAOS [RO0[ OAR9[ O} UOISIDOp 11Oy} Ul IOJOB] B SBM UOIESIURSIONI JBl)
‘Kyuofeur 18013 0Y] J0] IGAIMOY ‘QUNSSE UBD 9Ay pAIuae[dur u39q 10U UOTRSIUESIoa]
pey 1uowuIsA0d [ROO] YliM PIUTEWIOl 9ABY pnom ‘suonem8oy o1l JO [I] MR Aq
POISAOD JOU 310M 10q ‘966 T [IdY T o1ioud suiio) juowrairjal A11ea AIR)UnjoA 10 9DUBISADS
AIBIUN]OA UO 1Jo] OYM JJEBIS $7 | Sururewar oy Jo Auewr moy Kes o3 sfqissodwr st 3 L]

-uonesueS1001 woly JunN[nsol st porynuap;
Ajreopo uooq snyy oaey seinyredop Ioy) ‘owoyos sty) Jepun uonesusdwod 10y o[qidip
arom 9661 (idy 1 0 1oud juowkordws JuowniIoAoS [B0] 1JO] OYMm JJRIS 91} JO OF9°T
JO[RI01V 'OV $661 9 Jopun 1o Aq apeut uoistaoxd Aue 03 a[qeinguie sem juswiojdurs
JO $SO] 250Um,, spenpiatpui Juikyienb o1 pred oq o1 uonesuadwiod 10§ papiaocid g1
suonepngoy (£ouepunpey Joy uonesuoduio))) JUSUILISAOD [BIOT 94 JO [II Med 9]

"SUOISNOUOD ‘DANBIND] “BUIMO[O] SY) UMBIP PUR Idjjewl siy} parojdxa
ARy 9N "SpoA9] Burjyess JuowureaoS [e00] UO ‘eaey I IO ‘pey uoliesiuedioar poedun
A JO JUDWSSOSSE 91RINIOE UR B aaLIe 03 93e)s sty je o[qissod 10U St i] "2JRWIIIS? Jey) ey)
JoySry ApueoryudIs 9q PINOM SOIOUBPUNPAI JO IOGIUNU 9] Jey] sIea) peaidsopimorom a10y)
‘gonestuedIoal oyl noySnoxy) pue sAep 1S9YIRd 9Y) WOI] -uonesIuedIoal JO JNSaI € sy
00 Aporeunrxoidde q 9onpar pjnom s[oaa] Fuiggels JUaIUISA0S [0 18] 901J() US[IAL 91}
£q potedonue sem 3t poysijqnd is1ij sem [i1g (So[eAr) JUSTUISAOL) [BIOT 9 USYM, "STT

*91qIssod 19A219(M SOTILIOYINE (1M SNSUISUOD ¥ YOTBAI 0] SINOARIPUI
INO U PBY 9m $$e00NS 9} JO 2Inseowr ¢ se predar om yorym (7o ydeiSered) uorsesoo
SUO UBY} 2JOW OU U0 Yam0d ST} aSn 03 91B1S JO AIRJOID0S Y] ISIAPR 0] SN IOJ AIRSSI00U
Sem 1] 10SOISR[ B SB I[QR[IBAR UOTIORIIp JO 1amod §,9]81S JO AIB19109S 2Ui UM ‘aInjeu
ul AJOSIApE SBM O[0X InO Jey) ssevoxd Siy] 0 [RISIJoUDq Sk 31 pIeSar op  JIels 109j01d 03
SOIPOQ 1910 PUE SOULIOYINE )M 19139507 jI0Mm 0} SN I0J yiomowrel] 1y3u o) papraoid -
1oy 1adey)) ur Ino 198 suoseal oyl 103 10y oy 3o (11)(q)(Z)0 uonoas 1epun Ajnp Ino uey)
IOY10 - JIWRI 1IN0 1RY) 9AN[9q OS[R 9A SBl sty uriojaad o) paoeyd [[osm a1oMm “sopmmio])
K10STAPY 013 TossanopaId st puE “UOISSIIIWIOY) JIBIS o4l Jey) 2Asreq op “(om], 1aydey)
29s) juojeasid sem Ajorxue pue Ajurepsoun uoym saSe)s A[1eo ayj Suump os Ajrenonied
sem SIY, poprenSojes oq 150G PINOD JJRIS JO SISAIUI 9Y) MOY I9PIisu0d 0] padojaasp
9q O} WISTURYOSL OLUOS 10 [BJIA SEM JI ‘0[E0S PUR 2Injed SIif} JO uopesiuesioal e ul 17

SNOISY'TONOD

[43

‘paxmbai aq $901AI9S INO PINOYS /66T ANf [HUD 9[QR[IBAR 2¢ O} 9NUNUOD
M om ng ‘syjuowr Surwos oy; ul K1eSSOO9U 2q [[IM UOISSIWIO)) 9y} woly aouepmg
Toying ey) 10odxo Jou op oAy JyEIS JO Jequuaur awir)-ed SUo 0} peonpal 2q 0} JBLIBIOINNS
31} JO S[2AD] Suljyels oy I0] [OA9] MO[ ARUSIOIIINS E PAUDROI 9ARY 9SoY], ‘SouLIoyIneg
pue s[enpiaipur woly souanb jo sroquinu SuIseainep paAladal saey om judy | 20Ul €YY

SINHTNADNVIIV TdNLOd

"L66T 19quiedag (g [run s
rei ‘uonesiuegioos 0] Jurjepor sjuswded vonesuaduwod 105  pouad paguosald,, a1 Jo
uoleInp 9y} 103 parmboi aq pynom vonesusdwod Fururaduod wsiueydsul jeodde ue -

puE {10570 9ARY 0] 9SEOD P[NOM STUSWISTURLIE UOHRISPISUOS Jotd 1)
WIYM ‘L66T YOTRI T [IIUR OpE 9q PInod uoneIapisuod Joud Sururaouod sfeadde -

‘udy 1 10338
SYIUOUI XIS 10] 9[GRJITAR 9 0} 9NUNEOD P[IOYS ISPIO Jajsuen) Jeis oyl jsurede sppadde -

:smofjoy se eadde oy
Jo 100([gns oyj 01 Supioooe syjuow g1 03 dn 10y ojerado 0 SNUIIUOCD DPINOYS WSIUEYOIU
steadde oy jey; popnpuod opy Ajdde 03 onunuod pinoys jusuegueie sjeadde [eroeds oyj
yorys Fuunp porrad oyj UO SIIPOQ I9YI0 PUER SIATLIOYINE PAIINSUO 3M 9661 AR U ZTT

9661 "TIUdV T YHLAV SINHNHONVHEAY STVHAIV

96/
Te[nOII) Ul STY) 0} WOHUANE SOLLIOYINE MOIP OM 966 T ABIA UI pue Suljjesunod pue ururex;

30 souelodu Oy JO PIOUIAUOD POUTRWISI OAA “ARM [BNIST 9Y} UI QUILLIONP O} SonLIoUne
MIU 9y} 0] SIONRU MOu d1om juswfojdwe pue Sururer uonesiuegdioor Suimofjod "[11

ONITTIISNAOD ANV ONINIVIL

NHAHS ¥HILdVHO

Pack Page 178



se

“SUOISSNOSIP
N0 03 SUOHNQLIUOD d[GEN[EA IIAY) 10} pue - A[feonseIsnijue pue A[Surim usald sem
1 ponmbor Sem JI0J0 BXJXD 10ASUIYM ~ IOTAIIS DATIOOJJO PUE [BAO] II9Y} JOF JRLIRIO100G
INO 103 POAIISAI SI SYUEIL) JO JOA [R109dS PUE [RUY ' "9[qRN[BAUI SBA DIADE 9SOYM SIONJ0

123

Auew pue uorssiwwo) sonruniiodd jenby oyy ‘suorun apex oy} JO SIIIO [EUOISAI pue
[eUOLIEU 33 (S9[RAL) PIROg JUQIWOTRURIA JUSUIISAOL) [2D07] 94} O} NP OS[E AI8 SYURI],
"pajewnIsazopun aq jou pyuoys paoey Aoyl sainssaid oy isieoyyo euuosiod oy 107
uoneIrwpe pue 3podsar mo Junyeysos 1oy uoarSioy oq Aew 9p “seaneiussaidar Jyers
DUE JUSWIUIIAOT [BO0] WO} INOYSNOIY) PaATooal om Jeyy djoy pue [jrspoos oy Aq pajsisse
ApeaId sem s1om o jey; osiseyduio 0 Ysim 9m 350 e 0f nodol ino Furmerp uj ‘021

*901TWWOY) AIOSIAPY 9} JO SISQUISLI
Se 9[se} 9y Jo jesino o e pejurodde weeq 9ABY 0] XIS [[e 10J snooSejuRApe usaq
oAy pnom it eyl o8pni om ySispury yitpy,  -eouonradxa Jo wnyoads opim e pajussorder
SISUOISSIUIWO]) XIS oYt Jeyl Jom mo o} [nydjoy Aqjeroodss sem It 9as1[aq spy 611

"SUIDUOD 9SY])
SS2Ippe 0] Wway) FuISin pue JuowoFeurl JO UOIUIIIL Y] O} JJ8IS JO SUIDUO0D oY)
Furmerp £q pormooo ey UOHROIUNIWWIOD Ul UMOPYESIq B SI0YM SIOURISWUNDILD
Ul 9[01 [njasn ¢ wiogiad 0] 3[qe SEM UOISSIUWIWIOD) JJBIS AY] P1indoo pey
sse001d upjew-uoisiosp oy ur skepop Aym urepdxe oy Afferoadss ‘sjuswdofaasp Jo
paurrogur Jyess dooy 0] opews Furoq 10§38 SNOIOSUOD € 30 dueliodur 9y} pauijispun
Adwis sTy3 Ing “spouueyd [RIoRIOUR Y3 UBY} A[9AIION)F SI0W J10M O} UOHEOTUNUILIOD
JO S[OUURYD [LIdLJO 10J 1NOIJIIP 1 oW PJNOD SJU9A9 Jo 9oed oY) sowl) 1y
“JJeIs yiim Suneorunuwrod o) yoeosdde saroe-oxd e Fundope sanuoyine asoy)
Aq paASI[AI JIRIS JO SOIIXUT 9} PUT “DIPIOAR UIIQ IARY PNOD SINOLIIP SIOUBISUIL
SWOS U} "SUOTUN OPEI] PUR JJeIS YIlM UOIIROIUNTIWIOD JO 1BY) SBM ONSST POJR[al Y

*SuoISIOap Sunsiroys jsurede [radde oy
JJeIs 10] WSIULYO9W P321Fe pue JBo[0 B JO JUSUIYSI[QEBISO oY} im Ja3eF0] “0wooino
Irej e SuUIASIYOE 0] [RIONID sem polinbor sem wonadwios © 10 POISIXO YojRw
-qof & 1ooym Sururuueiop 10y vLIANID pasiSe pue jusiedsuen ‘esp jo uondope
a3 Jey) posiseydwo oq pynoys 3y *ss9001d juswjurodde oyy Suump Ajirey pajesn
919 J3els soseo Jo Ajuofew oyj ut jey) 2a91eq am ‘(96 03 ¢6 sydeiSered) sompasord
Uono9[es JUIUIoOuoo sjurejdwos [RUIIO) JO IOQUINU [[RWS B PIAIOSI oM YInoyy 4

‘fin1oyine renorned g 03 Juowugisse
Joy) yum Addequn orom oym  gyess 1oy jou Kjoyes juepodwy ue papraoid (gg o)
LS sydesgered) uoneropisuoo soud uo souepms mo pue wsiweydsw speadde oy,

"SI0 IS9IIR] O} OS[E ‘MIIA INO UL ‘Sem I
UOIIESIUBSIONT 91} JO SODUBISWINOID Oy} U] “SONLIOYINE MOU Y} O} JJRIS JO ISJSURI) pue
uore3o135esip yioows e Jo uonowoid o3 0} jeyuswepuny sem (g7 0161 syderSered)
P31I9JSUBI]} 9 O] POYSIA OYM JJRIS [|B IOJSURI} O] JUSTUITWIUIOD 9U] 10Y) 9AJI[AQ 9M 4

*ooueohIudIs re[nonred
JO 9q 0] 13pISU0D 9 YOIy 8s3001d wopesIULSI001 2y JO s10adse 9s0Y] 01 HONUS}IE MRIP
03 Ajduuts ysiam om syderSesed Suipnjouos esoy) Ul 1PV 66T 24 JO O UOIIAS Iopun

Pack Page 179



LE

"palInuOpI U994 194 10U SBY AJLIOYINE 10SS900NS Olf Ul
150d B WIOYM 10} [ERPIAIPUI UR 9qLIOSIP 0} Pasn AJUOWWIOD Wi} Sy,

[IOUNOY) UOIU[) 9PRI], SA[eM

‘suonemsay (Juswlojduy Jo wonoeloiy)
SFuD{elIOpU() JO ISJSURLY, Y],

“KJLIOYINR 10SS900NS JURA[I O} JO Juswidojdura oy 03 Jyels Sunsysuer
1PV 1661 241 JO 7 UOII09S 19puUn IpBL J9PIO0 UL - JOPIO I9JSURI] JJRIS

"PI9Y 2q 03 MajAIaul aAnnadwod B
Surinba1 jnoyim 21mdNIs mou oY) ui jsod © 0 [enpIAIpUI U $3}RO0[[@

“s181X9 yogew-qof e jelf) pauruLIoiop SuiAey ‘A1LIOYINE UR QISYM SS300IJ

“S3IOUEBIRA SUI[[I] puB SUISIIIOADE Uaysm Ijels Jo dnois repnomed e o3
‘aouelsul sy a3 ur ‘Auronid 9ae3 sonoyIne SIayMm juoweuelie 9y,

*3DIAIIS JO SUONIPUOD
pue swi2) pue Aed 03 Furje[al syeneW UO JuaWEOaISE SUIYORII 10
WISHIRYOQUI JUSWIUIOAOS [e00] o) JO Jed - (S)[1ounoy) JUIOf [RUOTIRN
pIeog JuauradeurA JUSWUIIAOL) [BOO']

‘sopLIoyIne pio 9y} wi siapjoyisod

30 samIqIsuodsor 9y} YIim UDieW 9[qeins ¥ papisold sainjoniis
Fuggeis  senuoyine mau oy} ut sjsod 1ogiaym Sururiio)ep JO sS8001]
"ODIAIS JO SUOLIPUOS pue swiio) pue Aed 03 Surje[s1 sionew

uo juoweaIde TUIYOROL 10 WSIUBYDIIW JUDHIUIVA0ST [200] 2Y) JO jred

- (s)oopruwruro) SurenofaN jurof

“SOTILIOYINE JOSS300NS 2y 0 Hyds
Buroq 9I9M SBOIR 9SOYM SOIIOYINE WO JJu1s SUIIROO[IE JO SSA001

SIOLISK(] YS[OM JO [Iouno))

SonunoD) YS[aM JO AJquiassy

AIVSSOID

paoerduny

ONLM

HdN.L

OLS

ur-gurnolg

UOT)BIPISUOD IOLL]

OIN

HNOT

Bumyorew-qog

ONI

wonegddgesi(y

amd

)\ 4

I XdNNV

Pack Page 180



8¢

juowuonAug oyl jo juswneds( o1 119) -
JWIYDS UONBIGURWIAI JO $SO] 10§ uonesuaduwroo pasodoig

G6/T 1B[MOIID - Jururely,

¢ ou unsing geis
G6/1 IB[NOID - UONBIOPISUCD JOLI]

JUQUINOIIAUF Y] JO Juauneda(y
0] 10119] - SWAYDS Aouegpunpal 10§ uonesuadwo))

21e3S JO AIR10ID9S O] IO}9] - Ioysuel] Jyels
JRINONIO JJRIp - 921A10s pred Jo pesy jo jusunuioddy

[ ou unafnq Jeis

197391 9ouepIng -
sanifiqrsuodsal jeuonippe 10y sjuswied [euonIppy

¥6/z Femons - poued wrioul 9y)
ur sonjroyIne Junsixos uy sgurperdar pue sjusunuiodde Jyeig

JUAWIUONAUY o1} JO juswredacy
0} 19139] - 2wayos Aouepunpai 10] uoijesuadurod posodoiy

JenoI JJe1p - porrad wixojur oyl
ur sanLoyine unsixo ur sdurperdar pue sjusunurodde jyeig

$6/1 BN - UOISSTUILIOY) JJeIS 2} JO of01 pue diysroquia|y

218§ JO A1B10100G
0} 901APE 0ol IO AIOSIAPY - Iojsue} Jeis

IRINDI 99NIWWO)) AI0SIAPY - nonjesiuedIosroy ond siopew
POIB[aI pUE JUSLUIIILIDOX JNOQE SONLIOYINE SUSIXS 0} 30IAPY

100fqng

S661 Arenuef gz
S661 Arenuef ¢y

S661 Arenuef ¢y

G661 Arenuer ¢

Y661 Ioquiads( 61

P661 I9qUIad(y g

7661 19qQUIAON 9]

661 1oquieldag 91

$661 1oquoydag 9

661 Ioquadag g

661 AIngg

661 dunf /g

661 2unf

v661 LB 6

€661 1240100 1T

areq

HONVAIND ANV SV INIHUID NOISSININOD 40 LST'T

¢ XdNNV

Pack Page 181



a4

ov

278]S JO AIRIDIOAS 0} IDIAPE [BUI] -
SOIIB[ES PUE SAINJONNS JHIWFBURY JIOIUSS

2DUEBPING UOISSTHIUWIOD) -
901AIS JO PEDY JO Ssouefes sopuoyine yred [euoreN

2ouepIng UOISSIWWO)) -
SjuowoTuRLIE JUSUNININI Sonuomne sied jeuonen

Go/L YepnoIn - sjuswoaSueie oindsip
:AoualBy JuomwIIoNIAUY U} O] Jjels uone[ngai 9)sem JO I9JSuRi],

oouepImS JO UOTJRULITIUOD -
DFIfM Ul JO JJBIS PUB UONRISPISUOD 1011

2010 YS[opy, woxy eouepInS - senuoyine yied [euoeN

103}2] UOLIBI[NISUOD - DIAISS
pied jo peay jo jusunurodde seyuogine yred [euoneN

$6/9 18[NOIID -
sa1npaooId UOT}O91aS PUB JUSUNINIDNY

191391 UOIRYNISUOD -
DHLAA 913 JO JJeIs 9Y) PUB UOT)RIOPISUOD IOLI]

$6/S Ie[noID - gouepms
S UOISSTUIUIO) A} JO UOLBWIIJUOD (UOTRIOPISUOD 10U

¢ Ou unjefing jyeis
ponsst arneuuoysenb Jururery,

91B1S JO AIB3OID3G O3 JaN9] -
SOLIB[ES PUE SITIONIIS JuswoSeusl JOIUSS

Ioyop souepmsS - yyess poddns 901At0S 011y

9181 JO AIRJOIO9S O] I0)19] -
SOINJONI]S pUe SOLIR[eS JusWwoSruURW JOTUSS

¥ OU UnO[INg JFeIS

S661 Ioquiade( 1

S661 J12qUIDAON LT

S661 12Q01Q ¢

§661 1290100 £7

S661 12010 81

S661 1aquiaydeg gz

S661 1oquardag g|

S661 Iaquaideg g1

G661 19quaidag y

S661 1sn8ny I¢
$661 1080y g

S661 1SN8nY G7

G661 Isusny g

S661 Ang v

S66T AR 97

S66T ABIN 6T

pus pooejdun,, pue  paoefd,
uo ooueping - uoneroprsuco Joud 1oy S[qISIe JyeIS

SOILIOYINE MOPRYS
01 JO}9] UOISSIWILIOY) - $SLIR[Es :901AX0s pred Jo pesy

S6/t B[O -
uonesiueSIoal JuowIaAog eo0] 10§ sjuowafueLre sjeaddy

sonuIoyINE Mopeys Jo sieonjo rodoxd
0} 121191 - ponss| aouepIng pur WOISSIUIIO)) JJRIS JO 9[0Y

PIoY 218 SUONO9[d AJLIOYINE MOpPRYS
worssruno)) senruniroddp
renbg Aq paredsid coueping s91e[NOID UOISSIUIWOY) -

uorjesiueSIoa1 juswuisaod (oo Jo suoneordui Ajjenby

OO 9nsSI 03 $9915¢ 91e)S JO A1810103G -
sysod oo1a19s pred Jo peoy 1oy uonnedwod wadQ

freroroeg Arjuowerprey 9y) woly 1y3nos
wonoaxip - sjsod 9014198 pred Jo pesy 103 vonnedwod uadQ

¢ ou upnof[nq jJeis

I9Y19] UOIIBI[ASUOD -
Jye3s pooedun pue paoejd :UOHBIOPISUOD  IOL]

souepIng UOISSIWIWOY) -
swounurodde pue voneSoi3Fesip :sseooid 1ojsuen; Jeis

GG/ IR[NDID - sjuswrsaIe [e00[ (UOIIRIIPISUOD IO

IRIOOIO JJRIp -
uonesiuegI001 Juowuieaod [eoo[ 10) siueurafuelre sjeaddy

souepIng UOISSIWIUIOY) ~
soourer) Jo uorsod UOIBISPISUOD JOLIY

TR[ROIIO UOISSIUIWOY) - 901A10s pred jo peoy :syusunuioddy

QU909 § JO 19119 S UOISSIUIWIOD) oY)
0} asuodsar s, A1e10100G AIRjUuswRljIRg - I9JSURI) JJUIS

S661 A OT

S661 ARN G

S661 AeN G

S661 KB S

S661 Ae ¥

s661 Hdy 8z

G661 THdy LT

s661 mdy 1z

S661 USIBIN 8T

S661T HOIB €1

S66T UdIPN €1

G661 YSIBAl €1

S661 U2IBN [

S661 Areniqag gz

G661 Areniqay] /

G661 Arenuef (o7

Pack Page 182



(4%

"'ONETO ‘BIpIeD “Sfred sAeyie) “90LJO YS[OM ‘T UOISIAIQ OYD'T

WOI Paure}qo

9q ued 2A0GR PIISI] SIayef ooueping pue siemono Y3 yo sardo)

“UOISSTIIWIO)) 9} UMOP FUIpuIp

sjusuraguelIe S[OUNo))
[edUIA0L] fe1oadg 2yl Jo uoneIngg - sjuowoueiry [gaddy

96/9 JB[NOIID UOHRINSUOD -
sjuourdguerte sjeadde spounos erowacid oY) Jo wonRIng

96/S IR[NOIIO - Fururel],

L ou unofnqg Jeis

96/ 18]I “9ouepIng UOISSTUIO) -
9661 [Hdy T I0jfe sjuoweSurIIe UONRISPISUOD  IOM]

OO US[M 3
0] 9OLAPR UOISSIUIIOY) ~ JOPIO Z OU I9JSueI) JJrIS

96/€ TB[NOIID UOTBIASUOD -
9661 [1dy [ 1oy sjuotoFuelie UOHRIOPISUOD  IOHL]

96/ 1e[NOID - UOIBUIGILIOSIP SUIPIOAY
96/ 1e[NOIIO - FurUILI],
9 ou UNSYINg FeIS

S6/6 Te[IOD -
(M(9)(@)oy uonpag o voneordde :sonuoyine yied feuonEN

$6/8 1B[NOIIO -
uopjeIapisuod roud :sonuoyine yied [euoneN

9661 AINf YIST

9661 Amf ST

9661 A2 €1
9661 AN €

9661 11dy 7

9661 UYOIBN 9T

9661 UOIBIA $1

9661  Arenigaq Zy
9661 Arenuef [¢
9661 Arenuef ¢z

66T 10quss0( 9

S661 19quUIdd( 9

S661 Iequiaded9

Pack Page 183



	Agenda
	2 Papers to note
	Minutes of Previous Meeting
	FIN(4)-07-15 PTN1 - Letter from Wales Audit Office
	FIN(4)-07-15 PTN2 - Additional Information from Health Inspectorate Wales
	FIN(4)-07-15 PTN3 - Letter from National Assembly for Wales Chief Executive
	FIN(4)-07-15 PTN4 - Letter to Chair from Health and Social Care Committee
	FIN(4)-07-15 PTN5 – Additional information from Welsh Government on landfill tax

	3 Renting Homes (Wales) Bill: Evidence Session 1
	4 Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales: Evidence Session 1
	Research Briefing

	5 Collection and Management of Devolved Taxes in Wales: Evidence Session 2
	Research Briefing

	7 Local Government (Wales) Bill: Consideration of Draft Report
	FIN(4)-07-15 Paper 4 - Further information from the Minister for Public Services




